
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 20, 2020       PAGE 1 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
Electronic Meeting 

October 20, 2020 at 11:00 AM 
 

AGENDA 

The public will be able to view the meeting on San Juan County’s Facebook live and Youtube channel.  

 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

INVOCATION 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Public comments will be received by joining the Zoom Meeting. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84141002383?pwd=S2JlOVoreXRzRTZLZmJZZ1lLL2N2UT09 

There will be a three minute time limit for each person wishing to comment. If you exceed that three minute 

time limit the meeting controller will mute your line. 

1. Online Instruction 

CONSENT AGENDA (Routine Matters) Mack McDonald, San Juan County Administrator 

The Consent Agenda is a means of expediting the consideration of routine matters. If a Commissioner 

requests that items be removed from the consent agenda, those items are placed at the beginning of the 

regular agenda as a new business action item. Other than requests to remove items, a motion to approve 

the items on the consent agenda is not debatable. 

2. October 6, 2020 Board of Commission Meeting Minutes 

3. Week of 10/7-10/13/2020 Check Registers 

4. Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health Department and the 

State of Utah Health Department for FY21 Violence and Injury Prevention Program contract 

5. Consideration of an Agreement between The Utah Highway Safety Office and San Juan 

County Health Department in support of the rural seat belt pilot program being conducted in 

San Juan County. 

1



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 20, 2020       PAGE 2 

6. Consideration and Approval of the purchase of EMS and Sheriff 800 Mhz Radios using 

CARES Act Funds 

7. Renew and Extend the County’s Drought Declaration 

8. Consideration and Approval of the UDOT Federal Aid Agreement Contract as a pass-through 

agency for the McElmo Creek Bridge with an increased cost of $71,072 

9. Consideration and approval of the UDOT Federal Aid Agreement Contract for Recapture Creek 

Bridge with an increased cost of $46,009 

RECOGNITIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

10. Employee Recognition, Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer 

11. Consideration and Approval of the updated Emergency Operations Plan, Tammy Gallegos, 

Emergency Manager 

12. Presentation and update on the Aquatic Invasive Species (AIS) Program. Sergeant Krystal 

Tucker, Utah Division of Wildlife Resources 

13. Letter of Support for Goosenecks State Parks Dark Sky 

Designation, Natalie Randall, Director Economic Development & Visitor Services 

14. Consideration of the Lisbon Valley Mine Plan Modifications Comment Letter, Nick Sandberg, 

County Public Lands Coordinator 

BUSINESS/ACTION 

15. Consideration and Agreement of a Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement between San 

Juan County and the USDA, Forest Service Manti-La Sal National Forest, Sheriff Jason 

Torgerson 

16. Consideration and Approval of an Aging Contract for Meals on Wheels Funding with the State 

of Utah. Tammy Gallegos, Aging Director 

17. Consideration and Approval of the lease agreement with Horsepower Fleet Leasing, LLC 

Master Lease Agreement, Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer 

18. Consideration and Approval of the Deer Haven Park Subdivision Amendment 6, La Sal, Scott 

Burton, Subdivision Administrator 

19. Consideration and Approval of the Double R Ranch Subdivision, Amending and vacating Lot 1 

of the Dyke Subdivision, La Sal, Scott Burton, Subdivision Administrator 

20. Consideration and Approval of the Zufelt Subdivision, Lot 4 Amendment, Spanish Valley, 

Scott Burton, Subdivision Administrator 

21. Consideration and Approval of the San Juan Estates, Phase 3 Lot 33 Amendment 2, Spanish 

Valley, Scott Burton, Subdivision Administrator 

2



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 20, 2020       PAGE 3 

COMMISSION REPORTS 

ADJOURNMENT 

*The Board of San Juan County Commissioners can call a closed meeting at any time during the Regular 

Session if necessary, for reasons permitted under UCA 52-4-205* 

All agenda items shall be considered as having potential Commission action components and may be 

completed by an electronic method **In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons 

needing auxiliary communicative aids and services for this meeting should contact the San Juan County 

Clerk’s Office: 117 South Main, Monticello or telephone 435-587-3223, giving reasonable notice** 

3



Online Log In Instructions.  

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84141002383?pwd=S2JlOVoreXRzRTZLZmJZZ1lLL2N2UT09 

 

Meeting ID: 841 4100 2383 

Passcode: 195172 

One tap mobile 

+16699006833,,84141002383#,,,,,,0#,,195172# US (San Jose) 

+12532158782,,84141002383#,,,,,,0#,,195172# US (Tacoma) 

 

Dial by your location 

        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 

        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 

        +1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 

        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

Meeting ID: 841 4100 2383 

Passcode: 195172 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/ketPyNC67I 

4

Item 1.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84141002383?pwd=S2JlOVoreXRzRTZLZmJZZ1lLL2N2UT09


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 06, 2020       PAGE 1 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
Electronic Meeting 

October 06, 2020 at 11:00 AM 
 

MINUTES 

The public will be able to view the meeting on San Juan County’s Facebook live and Youtube channel 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT 

Commission Chairman Kenneth Maryboy 

Commission Vice-Chair Willie Grayeyes 

Commissioner Bruce Adams 

 

INVOCATION 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Public comments will be accepted through the following google meet link meet.google.com/ptc-paiv-

sdo or by phone at +1 716-427-8815 (PIN: 235 323 895#) There will be a three-minute time limit for 

each person wishing to comment. If you exceed that three-minute time limit the meeting controller will 

mute your line. 

Lynda Smrz – Lynda commented on an event that went on in area BFE which she explained as 

agriculture. She explained that the event was a commercial event which should have required a 

Conditional Use Permit. She asked the commission to enforce current zoning ordinances. 

Robert Lucero – Robert explained that BFE was rezoned in 2005. He also explained that he was 

requesting the closure of the Strike Revine Trail due to insurance purposes. Robert presented a map of 

the area and explained why obtaining insurance was not possible. 

Mike Kelso – Mike, who is the current President of Red Rock 4-Wheelers, stated that Red Rock 4-

Wheelers does not support the closure of any D-roads. He explained that the Strike Revine Trail has 

been around since 1988 and he would like it to remain open. 

Carolyn Dailey – Carolyn expressed support of Lynda Smrz in opposing the closure of the D-roads 

making up the Strike Revine Trail. 

 

5

Item 2.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 06, 2020       PAGE 2 

Mark Boshell – Mark, representing the Governor’s Public Land Policy Coordinating Office, stated that 

his office as well as the State AG’s office is in support of public access to the roads. He stated that a 

letter of support to keep the Strike Revine Trail route open was sent to the commission. Mark also 

explained that the state has an interest in a couple of the roads being proposed for abandonment and that 

they are part of the RS2477 litigation.  

CONSENT AGENDA (Routine Matters) Mack McDonald, San Juan County Administrator 

The Consent Agenda is a means of expediting the consideration of routine matters. If a Commissioner 

requests that items be removed from the consent agenda, those items are placed at the beginning of the 

regular agenda as a new business action item. Other than requests to remove items, a motion to approve 

the items on the consent agenda is not debatable. 

1. September 15, 2020 Minutes 

2. Week of 9/16 and 9/23 Check Registers 

3. Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health Department and 

the State of Utah Health Department for COVID-19 San Juan County - PPPHEA 2020 

contract amendment.  

4. Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health Department and 

the State of Utah Health Department for 2019-2023 Healthy Living Through 

Environment, Policy and Improved Clinical Care (EPICC) Amendment 5 

5. Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health Department and 

the State of Utah Health Department for Local Health Dept WIC Program - San Juan 

Amendment 2 

6. Small Purchase Order Request for $12,500 to Phillips Electric Inc for the purchase of a 

generator for the landfill operations.  

7. Purchase of Communication Radios for the Public Safety Building of $12,999.31 using 

CARES Act Funds.  

Mack reviewed the consent agenda with the commission and briefly explained agreements and 

purchases being considered for approval. 

He also reviewed the remainder of the commission agenda under Recognitions, Presentations, & 

Information Items and Business/Action items 

A motion was made by Commissioner Adams to accept the Consent Agenda. The motion was seconded 

by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Commissioner 

Adams 

 

 

 

6

Item 2.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 06, 2020       PAGE 3 

RECOGNITIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

8. Bluff River Trail Support Letter, Nick Sandberg, San Juan County Public Lands 

Coordinator 

Nick Sandberg discussed findings by the BLM on an Environmental Assessment of the 

proposed Bluff River Trail system which resulted in a finding of No Significant Impact. He 

explained that the planning of the trail 10.6 mile system has been in the works for several years. 

Nick also stated where the trail is located and stated the uses of the trail. Nick proposed a 

support letter from the commission of the trail system and concurring with the BLM of its 

finding of No Significant Impact.  

A motion was made by Commissioner Adams to accept the letter of support. The motion was 

seconded by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes who asked why the environmental process took 

so long. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

 

9. BLM presentation of the new Management Team and Tribal Liaison and an update from 

the Canyon Country District, Gary Torres, Canyon Country District Manager 

Gary updated the commission on activities of the BLM, spoke of hiring of the Supervisory Law 

Enforcement Ranger and mentioned the program of free wood permits which will stay in place 

through the end of December. 

Amber, acting BLM manager in Monticello, discussed several staffing updates in the local 

BLM offices and what their rolls will be. Amber also updated the commission on several 

projects that the BLM is involved with and discussed the status of each project.  

Commissioner Grayeyes thanked the BLM for the Firewood permit program which was 

presented to the Navajo Mountain Chapter and other chapters in the county. Nicole from the 

Moab Field Office also briefly discussed area projects as well as thanked Nick Sandberg for 

comments on the Canyon Rims Travel Management Plan. 

10. A request of support to extend U.S. Route 163 west to Interstate 15 near St. George and 

east to U.S. 160 in southwest Colorado to help out with tourism and commerce. Landry 

H.  

Landry Heaton discussed a proposed plan to extend highway 163, by designation, from I-15 

east through Aneth to the Utah Colorado border. He stated that the original proposed plan to 

extend the highway was first proposed in 1987. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Adams to support the plan. The motion was seconded by 

Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

 

7

Item 2.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 06, 2020       PAGE 4 

11. Discussion and request to appeal Centrally Assessed Tax Appeals made to the State of 

Utah Tax Commission by Elk Petroleum a request for an $18,000,000 reduction in value, 

Delhi Trading a $483,000 reduction and Holliday Construction a $225,413 reduction in 

value. Kendall Laws, County Attorney   

Mack explained that centrally assessed values to Elk Petroleum, Delhi Trading, and Holliday 

Construction were being appealed to the state. He asked the commission if they would approve 

the county to use outside council to file cross appeals. County Attorney, Kendall Laws, stated 

that the cross appeals would give the county a voice in the appeal process. 

A motion to allow outside legal counsel to file cross appeals was made by Commission Vice-

Chair Grayeyes and seconded by Commissioner Adams. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

 

BUSINESS/ACTION 

12. Public Hearing and Consideration of the private request for the County to vacate 

portions of D-2475, D-0674, D-2765, D-2762, D-2764, D-2473 and D-2374, TJ Adair, Road 

Department Superintendent  

Clark Hawkins, San Juan County Road Department, stated that there has been a request from 

Robert Lucero, CEO of BFE, to close a number of D-roads in order to expand the business. 

Clark stated that the reasons for the request are because BFE could not obtain insurance for 

property upgrades. Clark also mentioned that the State of Utah is not in favor of the road 

closures. He also explained that the road closures may effect current RS2477 litigation that the 

county is involved in. 

Robert Lucero presented and stated that over the course of a couple of years he has met with 

the county and the state to talk about the business expansion of BFE into a resort and discuss 

the rerouting of the Strike Revine Trail. He also explained that trails shooting off from Strike 

Ravine as well as the environment are being damaged by individuals recreating on the property. 

Along with environment damage there are also safety issues to individuals as they recreate and 

maneuverer the rough terrain. Robert also explained that because of these factors, he has been 

unable to obtain insurance. He also reviewed several maps of the area and discussed how 

leaving the roads open effect his business. 

A motion to go into Public Hearing was made by Commissioner Adams, The motion was 

seconded by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

Public Comments: 

Mike Kelso - Mike explained that efforts by the Red Rock 4-Wheelers were made to work with 

BFE to mitigate risks on the Strike Revine Trail by proposing to put up signs and fencing, but 

were refused. 

8

Item 2.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 06, 2020       PAGE 5 

Lynda Smrz - Lynda spoke about zoning and explained that the BFE is in an A1 zone. She also 

stated that damage to the area has been done by outside tourists who do not take care of the trail 

or take care of the land. 

John Marsh - John explained that the property owner, BFE, should be able to use their property 

as desire, but that they should be responsible for maintaining and renovation of the property. 

He also felt that a request to close the county roads was going a little too far. John also 

suggested that the property be rezoned and appropriate property taxes be assessed. 

Online Comments: 

Kurt Williams – Kurt, from Salt Lake City, represented Expedition Utah and the Utah 4-Wheel 

Drive Association. He stated that he and his organizations support public land access 

Ben Burr – Ben, representing Blue Ribbon Coalition which fight for public land access, 

explained that his organization is opposed to the road closure in this instance. He also stated 

that his organization also supports private property rights and invited Mr. Lucero to reach out to 

his organization to help solve the problem. 

Mark Boshell – Mark, from the Governor’s Public Land Policy office, clarified previous 

statements that he made about public rights of way and showed support of the county’s right to 

maintain roads or not maintain roads as the county see fit.  

Phil Lyman - Phil explained that the county may need to be careful about setting a precedent 

that could affect future decisions. 

A motion to leave public hearing was made by Commissioner Adams, Seconded by 

Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

A motion to deny the proposed application while encouraging the two parties to work together 

to improve access to the area was made by Commissioner Adams and seconded by 

Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

 

13. Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health Department and 

the State of Utah Health Department for Maternal and Child Health FFY 2021 – Kirk 

Benge, Public Health Director 

Kirk requested that the commission renew a contract for Maternal and Child Health which is 

used to promote child health and wellness, breast feeding, and postpartum depression in 

mothers. He explained that until contract details are worked out the contract amount to the 

county is $8,000. 

A motion to approve the contract was made by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes and 

seconded by Commissioner Adams. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

9

Item 2.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 06, 2020       PAGE 6 

Commissioner Adams 

 

14. Consideration of a Recreate Responsibly Avalanche Memorandum of Understanding with 

Utah Avalanche Center using CARES Act Funds. Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative 

Officer 

Mack presented a MOU with the Utah Avalanche Center for consideration. He explained that 

the county would contribute $500 annually to support the efforts of the Utah Avalanche Center 

to provide safety information to visitors during the winter months. 

A motion to support the MOU was made by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes and seconded 

by Commissioner Adams. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

 

15. RESOLUTION OF APPOINTMENT OF A SAN JUAN COUNTY REPRESENTATIVE 

AND AN ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE UTAH COUNTIES 

INDEMNITY POOL ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING, Mack McDonald, Chief 

Administrative Officer 

Mack presented for approval a resolution appointing a representative and an alternate 

representative at the UCIP meeting in St. George. He explained that Commissioner Adams is 

already on the board and so an alternate representative would need to be approved. 

A motion was made by Commissioner Adams supporting the resolution and approving 

Commissioner Grayeyes as the alternate representative. The motion was seconded by 

Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

 

16. A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING AND ENCOURAGING THE NAVAJO NATION 

TO ALLOW SAN JUAN COUNTY TO MAINTAIN ALL “B” ROADS IN THE SAN 

JUAN, UTAH PORTIONS OF THE NAVAJO NATION AND AMEND THE CURRENT 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT TO PERFORM MAINTENANCE OF 

THESE ROADS, Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer 

Mack presented a resolution encouraging the Navajo Nation to allow the county to maintain all 

B-roads on the Utah portion of the Navajo Nation and amend the intergovernmental agreement. 

Larry Tuni, Dennehotso Chapter President, spoke in favor of approving the proposed 

resolution. 

Matthew Austin, Dennehotso Chapter Manager, also spoke in favor of approving the proposed 

resolution. He explained that he has family members who live along routes not currently 

maintained by San Juan County.  

10

Item 2.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 06, 2020       PAGE 7 

A motion to approve the resolution was made by Commissioner Adams and seconded by 

Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

 

17. Consideration of a Support Letter authorizing the County Chief Administrative Officer 

to apply on behalf of the Historical Commission for $35,000 of funding from the Utah 

Navajo Trust Fund-Non-Chapter Funding for the replacement of the existing roof 

structure of the Historic Oljato Trading Post. Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative 

Officer.  

Mack presented for consideration a letter of support allowing the county administrator to apply 

for funding, on behalf of the Historical Commission, to replace the roof of the historic Oljato 

Trading Post in the amount of $35,000. Mack stated that other grants have already been 

obtained to help with other parts of the project. 

A motion to approve the letter of support was made by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes and 

seconded by Commissioner Adams. 

Voting Yea: Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Commissioner Adams 

Voting Nay: Commission Chairman Maryboy 

 

 

COMMISSION REPORTS 

Commissioner Adams - Commissioner Adams reported on attending a UAC meeting in Midway which 

was very informative 

Commissioner Grayeyes - Commissioner Grayeyes reported on doing work for the Navajo Mountain 

Chapter.  

Commissioner Maryboy - Commissioner Maryboy reported that he has been getting ready to meet with 

Utah Farmer's on a visit where they will visit areas in the Bluff and Montezuma Creek area. He also 

expressed concern for President Trump who was infected with COVID-19  

ADJOURNMENT 

A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes and seconded by 

Commissioner Adams. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Commissioner 

Adams 

*The Board of San Juan County Commissioners can call a closed meeting at any time during the 

Regular Session if necessary, for reasons permitted under UCA 52-4-205* 

All agenda items shall be considered as having potential Commission action components and may be 

completed by an electronic method **In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons 

needing auxiliary communicative aids and services for this meeting should contact the San Juan County 

Clerk’s Office: 117 South Main, Monticello or telephone 435-587-3223, giving reasonable notice** 

11

Item 2.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 06, 2020       PAGE 8 

 

APPROVED: 

  

DATE: 

 

 San Juan County Board of County Commissioners   

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

  

 

 

DATE: 

 

 San Juan County Clerk/Auditor   

 

12

Item 2.



13

Item 3.



14

Item 3.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Kirk Benge, Director, Public Health 

TITLE: Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health 

Department and the State of Utah Health Department for FY21 Violence 

and Injury Prevention Program contract 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend Sign Contract 

 

SUMMARY 

The purpose of this contract is to provide support in order to maintain the violence and injury prevention 

program in the health district. 

The service period of this contract is 10/01/2020 through 09/30/2021. 

The state health department agrees to pay $50,539.58 in accordance with the provisions of this contract. 

This contract is funded with 100% federal funds. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

This is a continuation of the Violence and Injury Prevention Program (VIPP)  which has been renewed 

annually between the Utah Dept of Health and San Juan Public Health since 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The current proposed budget included VIPP estimated revenue of $14,500. This contract increases 

required programmatic revenues (and anticipated expenditures) by approximately $36,000 

15

Item 4.



Page 1 of 14 
 

                UTAH DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CONTRACT 
                         PO Box 144003, Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
                           288 North 1460 West, Salt Lake City, Utah 84116 

                        
 

 
 
2124508        212700635 
Department Log Number      State Contract Number 

 
 
1. CONTRACT NAME:  The name of this contract is San Juan Public Health Department - FY21 

Violence and Injury Prevention Program 
 
 

2. CONTRACTING PARTIES:  This contract is between the Utah Department of Health 
(DEPARTMENT) and the following CONTRACTOR: 

 

PAYMENT ADDRESS MAILING ADDRESS 
San Juan County 
735 S 200 W, Ste 2 
Blanding UT, 84511 
 
Vendor ID: 06866HL 
Commodity Code: 99999 

San Juan County 
735 S 200 W, Ste 2 
Blanding UT, 84511 

 

3. GENERAL PURPOSE OF CONTRACT:  The general purpose of this contract is to provide support in 
order to maintain the violence and injury prevention program in the health district.. 

 
 
4. CONTRACT PERIOD:  The service period of this contract is 10/01/2020 through 09/30/2021, unless 

terminated or extended by agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions of this contract.  
 

 
5. CONTRACT AMOUNT:  The DEPARTMENT agrees to pay $50,539.58 in accordance with the 

provisions of this contract.  This contract is funded with 100% federal funds, 0% state funds, and 0% 
other funds.   
 

6. CONTRACT INQUIRIES:  Inquiries regarding this Contract shall be directed to the following 
individuals: 

 
    
CONTRACTOR   DEPARTMENT 
 
Kirk Benge 
(435) 359-0038 
kbenge@sanjuancounty.org 
 

   
Disease Control and Prevention 
Health Promotion 
Vanonda Kern 
(385) 267-6528 
vkern@utah.gov 

 

7. SUB – RECIPIENT INFORMATION: 

16

Item 4.



Page 2 of 14 
 

 
DUNS: 079815014  Indirect Cost Rate: 0%  

 

Federal Program Name: Maternal and Child 
Health Services Block 
Grant to the States 

Award Number: BO4MC28130 

Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

CDC Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

BO4MC28130 

CFDA Title: Maternal and Child 
Health Services Block 
Grant to the States 

Federal Award Date: 10/1/2020 

CFDA Number: 93.994 Funding Amount: $10280.00 
 

Federal Program Name: PREVENTIVE HEALTH 
AND HEALTH 
SERVICES BLOCK 
GRANT 

Award Number: 1 NB01OT009323-01-00 

Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

CDC Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

NB01OT009323 

CFDA Title: PREVENTIVE HEALTH 
AND HEALTH 
SERVICES BLOCK 
GRANT 

Federal Award Date: 8/7/2020 

CFDA Number: 93.991 Funding Amount: $4311.00 
 

Federal Program Name: HRRDM; PUBLIC 
SAFETY & PUBLIC 
HEALTH INFO CAT 6 

Award Number: 2018-PM-BX-K021 

Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

BJA Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

2018-PM-BX-K021 

CFDA Title: HAROLD ROGERS 
PRESCRIPTION DRUG 
MONITORING 
PROGRAM 

Federal Award Date: 9/25/2018 

CFDA Number: 16.754 Funding Amount: $7792.70 
 

Federal Program Name: UTAH OVERDOSE TO 
ACTION 

Award Number: 1 NU17CE925013-02-00 

Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

CDC Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

NU17CE925013 

CFDA Title: Injury Prevention and 
Control Research and 
State and Community 
Based Programs 

Federal Award Date: 7/29/2020 

CFDA Number: 93.136 Funding Amount: $22155.88 
 

Federal Program Name: CORE STATE 
VIOLENCE AND 
INJURY PREVENTION 

Award Number: 5NU17CE924839-04-03 

Name of Federal Awarding CDC Federal Award 5NU17CE924839 

17

Item 4.



Page 3 of 14 
 

Agency: Identification Number: 
CFDA Title: Injury Prevention and 

Control Research and 
State and Community 
Based Programs 

Federal Award Date: 6/19/2020 

CFDA Number: 93.136 Funding Amount: $6000.00 
    
8. REFERENCE TO ATTACHMENTS INCLUDED AS PART OF THIS CONTRACT: 

 

Attachment A: SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

Attachment B: MCH activities 

Attachment C: PBG activities 

Attachment D: Category 6 activities 

Attachment E: Data to Action activities 

Attachment F: CORE Activities 

 
9. DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED INTO THIS CONTRACT BY REFERENCE BUT NOT ATTACHED: 

A. All other governmental laws, regulations, or actions applicable to services provided herein. 
B. All Assurances and all responses to bids as provided by the CONTRACTOR. 
C. Utah Department of Health General Provisions and Business Associates Agreement currently in 

effect until 6/30/2023. 
 

 
10. This contract, its attachments, and all documents incorporated by reference constitute the entire 

agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior written or oral agreements between the 
parties relating to the subject matter of this contract. 

 

 

  

18

Item 4.



Page 4 of 14 
 

Contract with Utah Department of Health and San Juan County, Log # 2124508 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties enter into this agreement. 

 

CONTRACTOR      STATE   

 

 

 

By: ______________________    ________   By: ________________________    ________ 

Kenneth Maryboy Date Shari A. Watkins, C.P.A. Date 
County Commission Chair  Director, Office Fiscal Operations  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

19

Item 4.



Page 5 of 14 
 

Special Provisions – Attachment A 
San Juan County Health Department 

Violence & Injury Prevention Program 
October 1, 2020 – September 30, 2021 

 
I. DEFINITIONS: 

A. “ULACHES” means Utah Local Association of Community Health Education Specialists 
(attachment B). 

B. “Safe Dates Program” is a school-based prevention program for middle and high school 
students designed to stop or prevent the initiation of dating violence victimization and 
perpetration, including the psychological, physical, and sexual abuse that may occur 
between youths involved in a dating relationship (attachment B & C). 

C. “Bystander Programs” refers to evidence-based bystander intervention programs. 
(attachment B & C). 

D. “Pax Good Behavior Game” is a universal preventive intervention used by teachers and 
schools to teach self-regulation, self-management, and self-control in young people 
(attachment B & C). 

E. “Wyman’s Teen Outreach Program” is a public health program that promotes positive 
youth development through a social-emotional learning curriculum, community service 
learning, and supportive relationships with adults (attachment B & C). 

F. “EITC” means Earned Income Tax Credit (attachment B & C). 
G. “Catalyst” is a reporting system, where local health departments will be reporting 

completed activities, successes, and/or challenges (attachment C & F) 
H. “Opioid Overdose Community Crisis Response Teams” refers to a public health formed 

team, formed to address opioid overdose, with a community-level approach (attachment 
D & E). 

I. “Opioid Overdose Community Crisis Response Plan” refers to a specific plan, addressing 
opioid overdose, from a community level approach, in the event of a crisis, or spike in 
overdose data (attachment D & E). 

J. “UCO-OP Steering Committee” refers to the Utah Coalition for Opioid Overdose 
Prevention Steering Committee (attachment E). 
 

II. FUNDING: 
A. Total Funding is $50,539.58 in federal and state funding. 

1. Maternal and Child Health Block Grant; activities listed in Attachment B. 
a) $10,280.00 shall be reimbursed for the period of October 1, 2020 to 

September 30, 2021. 
2. Preventive Health and Human Services Block Grant; activities listed in 

Attachment C. 
a) $4,311.00 shall be reimbursed for the period of October 1, 2020 to 

September 30, 2021. 
3. Comprehensive Opioid Abuse Site-based Program Category 6: Public Safety, 

Behavioral Health, and Public Health Information-sharing Partnerships Grant; 
activities listed on Attachment D. 
a) $7,792.70 shall be reimbursed for the period of October 1, 2020 to 

September 30, 2021. 
4. Utah Overdose Data to Action Grant; activities listed in Attachment E. 

a) $22,155.88 shall be reimbursed for the period September 1, 2020 to 
August 31, 2021. 

5. Core SVIPP Grant Funds: activities listed Attachment F. 
a) $6,000.00 shall be reimbursed for the period August 1, 2020 to July 31, 

2021. 
 

B. The DEPARTMENT agrees to reimburse the SUB-RECIPIENT up to the maximum 
amount of the contract for expenditures made by the SUB-RECIPIENT directly related to 
the program. 

20

Item 4.



Page 6 of 14 
 

1. Unless otherwise provided, allowable expenditures include wages and salaries, 
fringe benefits, current expenses, and travel and mileage. 

2. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall report monthly expenditures on the Monthly 
Expenditure Report (MER) submitted to the DEPARTMENT. 

3. The amount reimbursed is based on the services provided by the SUB-
RECIPIENT as reported each month on the MER submitted to the 
DEPARTMENT. 
 

III. DEPARTMENT CONTACT:  
A. The day to day program contact is Lauren Radcliffe, lradcliffe@utah.gov, 385-303-2303. 
 

IV. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DEPARTMENT: 
A. DEPARTMENT agrees to provide written confirmation of receipt of reports within 10 

working days. 
B. DEPARTMENT agrees to provide written or over the phone feedback on results/progress 

within 20 working days of receipt of report. 
C. DEPARTMENT agrees to provide training and technical assistance as requested/needed. 
D. DEPARTMENT agrees to conduct one site visit during the contract period at mutually 

agreed upon times with a jointly developed agenda during contract period. 
 
 

V. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SUB-RECIPIENT: 
A. Reports on the progress report measures for each of their activities as listed in the 

Catalyst web-based application system or other agreed upon reporting system. Progress 
reports shall be submitted quarterly by the 15th of December, March, June, and 
September. 

B. SUB-RECIPIENT shall perform its SUB-RECIPIENT responsibilities as set forth in 
Attachments B, C, D, E, and F. 
 

VI. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENT: 
A. The CONTACTOR shall conform to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) including 

associated regulations and policies and Civil Rights laws, regulations and policies, which 
includes providing reasonable accommodations to those with disabilities and displaying 
required notices of rights. 

  

21

Item 4.

mailto:lradcliffe@utah.gov


Page 7 of 14 
 

Attachment B 
San Juan County Health Department 

Violence & Injury Prevention Program 
October 1, 2020 – September 30, 2021 

 
Maternal and Child Health Block Grant 

Grant# B04MC28130  -  CFDA 93.994  -   LEJ-4328-MCH0-MBG21 
 
 
I. FUNDING: 

A. Total Funding is $10,280.00 for October 1, 2020 thru September 30, 2021. 
B. The DEPARTMENT agrees to reimburse the SUB-RECIPIENT up to the maximum of the 

contract for expenditures made by the SUB-RECIPIENT directly related to the program. 
1. Unless otherwise provided, allowable expenditures include wages and salaries, 

fringe benefits, current expenses, and travel and mileage. 
2. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall report monthly expenditures on the Monthly 

Expenditure Report (MER) submitted to the DEPARTMENT. 
3. The amount reimbursed is based on the services provided by the SUB-

RECIPIENT as reported each month on the Monthly Expenditure Report (MER) 
submitted to the DEPARTMENT. 

 
II. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SUB-RECIPIENT: 

The SUB-RECIPIENT shall: 
A. Participate in the Safe Kids Local Coalition: 

1. Attend at least four (4) coalition meetings during the contract period. 
2. Expand partnerships with organizations that may contribute to the purpose of 

keeping kids safe through a shared risk and protective factor approach. These 
may include: 
a) School district partners 

b) Housing partners  

c) Food security 

d) Business/economic partners 

e) Local Communities That Care partners 

f) Youth council representatives 

g) Other non-traditional and relevant partners that are working on  

shared risk and protective factors 

B. Participate in the ULACHES Injury Workgroup. 

C. Document one success story related to bullying prevention efforts through a  

shared risk and protective factor approach in Catalyst. 

D. Develop strategies to address bullying through a shared risk and protective factor  

approach.  The strategies must encompass one or more of the following activities and 

must impact another negative health outcome. Additional approved strategies can be 

adapted from the Menu of Violence and Injury Prevention Strategies from the Colorado 

Department of Public Health and Environment until a similar menu can be adapted for 

Utah 

(https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bePpITN1iVJ0VTK9GR_dnCENvVGe27sshUxsr0

h8I58/edit). Strategies must be reported in Catalyst by December 15, 2020. 

1. Health Care Access 
a) Policies and programs shown to improve access to care including  

behavioral health care 
2. Social Norms 

a) Policies and programs shown to change harmful social norms  

such as: 

(1) Positive parenting strategies 

22

Item 4.

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bePpITN1iVJ0VTK9GR_dnCENvVGe27sshUxsr0h8I58/edit
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bePpITN1iVJ0VTK9GR_dnCENvVGe27sshUxsr0h8I58/edit
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bePpITN1iVJ0VTK9GR_dnCENvVGe27sshUxsr0h8I58/edit
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bePpITN1iVJ0VTK9GR_dnCENvVGe27sshUxsr0h8I58/edit


Page 8 of 14 
 

(2) Safe Dates program 

(3) Bystander programs (Upstanding) 

(4) Spanking prevention strategies (No Hit Zones) 

b) Policies and programs that support implementation of evidence  

based curriculum in the community and schools that improve health such 

as: 

(1) Pax Good Behavior Game 

(2) Safe Dates 

(3) Wyman’s Teen Outreach Program (TOP) (Pre-approval and 

coordination needed with Family and Youth Outreach Program within the 

Bureau of Maternal and Child Health) 

c) Policies and programs shown to improve parent/child resilience 

such as: 

(1) Parents as Teachers (Coordination needed with the Office of 
Home Visiting) 
(2) Child Parent Centers 

3. Economic Stability 
a) Policies and programs shown to increase economic stability such 

as: 

(1) Housing stability approaches 

(2) Comparable worth policies  

(3) Increases in EITC filings 

4. Connectedness 

a) Policies and programs shown to increase connectedness such as: 

(1) Community events that bring residents together 

(2) Promoting family meals 

5. Enhance the Physical Environment 

a) Policies and programs that enhance the physical environment to  

improve injury or violence outcomes such as: 

(1) Implementing a systemic trauma informed approach 

(2) Approaches that modify the physical and social  

environment to prevent crime and youth violence (increasing 

lighting, managing accessibility to buildings and public spaces, 

street cleaning, increasing security, abandoned building and 

vacant lot remediation, creating green space, and sponsoring 

community events that bring residents together. 

 

III. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS: 
A. SUB-RECIPIENT shall include the following statement on all products produced by 

Maternal and Child Health Block Grant funds: “This project was supported by the Health 
Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) of the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services (HHS) under CFDA #93.994 Maternal and Child Health Services - Title 
V Block Grant. This information or content and conclusions are those of the author and 
should not be construed as the official position or policy of, nor should any endorsements 
be inferred by HRSA, HHS or the U.S. Government. 

 
 

  

23

Item 4.



Page 9 of 14 
 

Attachment C 
San Juan County Health Department  

Violence & Injury Prevention Program  
October 1, 2020 – September 30, 2021 

 
Preventive Health and Human Services Block 

Grant# 1 NB01OT009323-01-00  -   CDFA 93.991  -   LEJ-4323-LHD-BLK21 
 
 

I. FUNDING: 
A. Total Funding is $4,311.00 for October 1, 2020 thru September 30, 2021. 
B. The DEPARTMENT agrees to reimburse the SUB-RECIPIENT up to the maximum of the 

contract for expenditures made by the SUB-RECIPIENT directly related to the program. 
1. Unless otherwise provided, allowable expenditures include wages and salaries, 

fringe benefits, current expenses, and travel and mileage. 
2. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall report monthly expenditures on the Monthly 

Expenditure Report (MER) submitted to the DEPARTMENT. 
3. The amount reimbursed is based on the services provided by the SUB-

RECIPIENT as reported each month on the Monthly Expenditure Report (MER) 
submitted to the DEPARTMENT. 

 
II. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SUB-RECIPIENT: 

The SUB-RECIPIENT shall: 
A. Maintain one injury prevention program with a designated injury prevention coordinator to 

implement a shared risk and protective factor approach.  
B. Maintain at least one employee who has the skills to: 

1. Describe and explain shared risk and protective factors of injury and violence 
2. Access, interpret, and use indicator data linked to shared risk and protective  

factors 
3. Plan and implement shared risk and protective factor prevention activities 

based on evidence based or promising interventions  
4. Serve as a resource for at least one specific risk or protective factor. 

C. Maintain at least one (1) employee to receive and utilize indicator reports published by  
VIPP and other sources and have the ability to use the UDOH Indicator Based 
Information System (IBIS) query system to obtain local data on these indicators 

D. The injury coordinator and staff will complete the following required trainings and provide 
the DEPARTMENT with documentation of completed trainings: 
1. VIPP Shared Risk and Protective Factors 101 

2. VIPP Shared Risk and Protective Factors 201 

In addition, the injury coordinator will complete at least two of the following trainings and 

provide the department documentation of completed trainings: 

1. New Recommendations: Strategies to Address Shared Risk and Protective 

Factors for Driver Safety (CEU: 1 Hour) 

(https://training.safestates.org/course/https-www-safestates-org-page-

srpfdriving/) 

2. Let’s Talk: Shared Risk and Protective Factors – Creating Social and Community 

Connectedness (CEU: 0 Hour) (https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-

shared-risk-and-protective-factors-creating-social-and-community-

connectedness/) 

3. Let’s Talk: Shared Risk and Protective Factors – Establishing Neighborhood & 

Built Environments (CEU: 0 Hour) (https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-

shared-risk-protective-factors-establishing-neighborhood-built-environments/ 

4. Let’s Talk: Shared Risk and Protective Factors – Access to Health Care (CEU: 0 

Hour) (https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-

factors-access-to-health-care/)  

24

Item 4.

file://///utah/ddcp/BHP/VIPP/Administrative/Contracts/LHD%20Contracts/LHD%20FY21%2010.1.20-9.30.21/Attachments/New%20Recommendations:%20Strategies%20to%20Address%20Shared%20Risk%20and%20Protective%20Factors%20for%20Driver%20Safety%20(CEU:%201%20Hour)
file://///utah/ddcp/BHP/VIPP/Administrative/Contracts/LHD%20Contracts/LHD%20FY21%2010.1.20-9.30.21/Attachments/New%20Recommendations:%20Strategies%20to%20Address%20Shared%20Risk%20and%20Protective%20Factors%20for%20Driver%20Safety%20(CEU:%201%20Hour)
https://training.safestates.org/course/https-www-safestates-org-page-srpfdriving/
https://training.safestates.org/course/https-www-safestates-org-page-srpfdriving/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-and-protective-factors-creating-social-and-community-connectedness/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-and-protective-factors-creating-social-and-community-connectedness/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-and-protective-factors-creating-social-and-community-connectedness/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-and-protective-factors-creating-social-and-community-connectedness/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-and-protective-factors-creating-social-and-community-connectedness/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-establishing-neighborhood-built-environments/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-establishing-neighborhood-built-environments/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-establishing-neighborhood-built-environments/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-establishing-neighborhood-built-environments/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-access-to-health-care/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-access-to-health-care/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-access-to-health-care/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-access-to-health-care/


Page 10 of 14 
 

5. Let’s Talk: Shared Risk and Protective Factors – Educational Achievement (CEU: 

0 Hour) (https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-

factors-educational-achievement/) 

6. Let’s Talk: Shared Risk and Protective Factors – Economic Stability (CEU: 0 

Hour) (https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-

factors-economic-stability/)  

7. Applying a Shared Risk & Protective Factor Approach to Injury and Violence 

Prevention – Evaluating Shared Risk and Protective Factors to Address ACEs, 

Suicide, and Opioid Misuse – Examples from States (CEU: 1 Hour) 

(https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-

approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-evaluating-shared-risk-and-

protective-factors-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from-

state/) 

8. Applying a Shared Risk & Protective Factor Approach to Injury and Violence 

Prevention – Leveraging Injury Prevention Efforts to Address ACEs, Suicide, and 

Opioid Misuse – Examples from States (CEU: 1 Hour) 

(https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-

public-health-approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-leveraging-injury-

prevention-efforts-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from/) 

E. Document one success story that resulted from shared risk and protective factors 

efforts in Catalyst. 

F. Expand their prevention partnerships to include the local substance authority, and at  

least one of the following: 

1. School district partners 

2. Housing partners  

3. Food security 

4. Business/economic partners 

5. Local Communities That Care partners 

6. Youth council representatives 

7. Other non-traditional and relevant partners that are working on shared risk and  

protective factors 

H. Develop strategies to address shared risk and protective factors across multiple violence  
and injury prevention topic areas.  This can be implemented virtually. This strategy must 
encompass one or more of the following approaches and must impact two or more 
violence and injury prevention topics. Additional approved strategies can be adapted from 
the Menu of Violence and Injury Prevention Strategies from the Colorado Department of 
Public Health and Environment until a similar menu can be adapted for Utah 
(https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bePpITN1iVJ0VTK9GR_dnCENvVGe27sshUxsr0
h8I58/edit). Strategies must be reported in Catalyst by December 15, 2020. 
1. Health Care Access 

a) Policies and programs shown to improve access to care including 
behavioral health care 

2. Social Norms 
a) Policies and programs shown to change harmful social norms including, 

but not limited to: 

(1) Positive parenting strategies 

(2) Safe Dates program 

(3) Bystander programs (Upstanding) 

(4) Spanking prevention strategies (No Hit Zones) 

b) Policies and programs that support implementation of evidence based 

curriculum in the community and schools that improve health including, 

but not limited to: 

25

Item 4.

https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-educational-achievement/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-educational-achievement/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-educational-achievement/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-educational-achievement/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-economic-stability/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-economic-stability/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-economic-stability/
https://training.safestates.org/course/lets-talk-shared-risk-protective-factors-economic-stability/
https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-evaluating-shared-risk-and-protective-factors-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from-state/
https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-evaluating-shared-risk-and-protective-factors-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from-state/
https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-evaluating-shared-risk-and-protective-factors-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from-state/
https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-evaluating-shared-risk-and-protective-factors-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from-state/
https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-evaluating-shared-risk-and-protective-factors-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from-state/
https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-evaluating-shared-risk-and-protective-factors-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from-state/
https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-evaluating-shared-risk-and-protective-factors-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from-state/
https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-public-health-approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-leveraging-injury-prevention-efforts-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from/
https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-public-health-approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-leveraging-injury-prevention-efforts-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from/
https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-public-health-approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-leveraging-injury-prevention-efforts-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from/
https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-public-health-approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-leveraging-injury-prevention-efforts-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from/
https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-public-health-approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-leveraging-injury-prevention-efforts-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from/
https://training.safestates.org/course/applying-a-shared-risk-protective-factor-public-health-approach-to-injury-and-violence-prevention-leveraging-injury-prevention-efforts-to-address-aces-suicide-and-opioid-misuse-examples-from/
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bePpITN1iVJ0VTK9GR_dnCENvVGe27sshUxsr0h8I58/edit
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bePpITN1iVJ0VTK9GR_dnCENvVGe27sshUxsr0h8I58/edit
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bePpITN1iVJ0VTK9GR_dnCENvVGe27sshUxsr0h8I58/edit
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1bePpITN1iVJ0VTK9GR_dnCENvVGe27sshUxsr0h8I58/edit


Page 11 of 14 
 

(1) Pax Good Behavior Game 

(2) Safe Dates 

(3) Wyman’s Teen Outreach Program (TOP) (Pre-approval and 

coordination needed with Family and Youth Outreach Program within the 

Bureau of Maternal and Child Health) 

c) Policies and programs shown to improve parent/child resilience such as 

including, but not limited to: 

(1) Parents as Teachers (Coordination needed with the Office of 
Home Visiting) 
(2) Child Parent Centers 

3. Economic Stability 
a) Policies and programs shown to increase economic stability including, 

but not limited to: 

1) Housing stability approaches 

2) Comparable worth policies  

3) Increases in EITC filings 

4. Connectedness 

a) Policies and programs shown to increase connectedness including, but 

not limited to: 

(1) Community, social, school, workplace, etc. events that bring 

residents together Promoting family meals 

5. Enhance the Physical Environment 

a) Policies and programs that enhance the physical environment to improve 

injury or violence outcomes including, but not limited to: 

(1) Implementing a systemic trauma informed approach 

(2) Approaches that modify the physical and social environment to 

prevent crime and youth violence (increasing lighting, managing 

accessibility to buildings and public spaces, street cleaning, 

increasing security, abandoned building and vacant lot 

remediation, creating green space, and sponsoring community 

events that bring residents together. 

  

26

Item 4.



Page 12 of 14 
 

Attachment D 
San Juan County Health Department 

Violence & Injury Prevention Program 
October 1, 2020 – September 30, 2021 

 
Comprehensive Opioid Abuse Site-based Program Category 6: Public Safety, 
Behavioral Health, and Public Health Information-sharing Partnerships Grant  

Grant# 2018-PM-BX-K021 - CFDA 16.754 - LEJ-3815-PSP20 
 
 

I. FUNDING: 
A. Total Funding is $7,792.70 for October 1, 2020 thru September 30, 2021. 
B. The DEPARTMENT agrees to reimburse the SUB-RECIPIENT up to the 

maximum of the contract for expenditures made by the SUB-RECIPIENT directly 
related to the program. 
1. Unless otherwise provided, allowable expenditures include wages and 

salaries, fringe benefits, current expenses, and travel and mileage. 
2. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall report monthly expenditures on the Monthly 

Expenditure Report (MER) submitted to the DEPARTMENT. 
3. The amount reimbursed is based on the services provided by the SUB-

RECIPIENT as reported each month on the Monthly Expenditure Report 
(MER) submitted to the DEPARTMENT. 

 
II. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SUB-RECIPIENT: 

The SUB-RECIPIENT shall: 
A. Send one (1) staff a DEPARTMENT sponsored and facilitated training on 

dashboard interpretation and data dissemination. 
B. Check dashboard data weekly for data anomalies and determination of further 

data review. 
C. Coordinate Opioid Overdose Community Crisis Response Teams to include 

regular dashboard data updates. 
D. Electronically notify DEPARTMENT if action is taken as a result of data 

anomalies. 
E. Implement Opioid Overdose Community Crisis Response Plan when applicable. 
F. Update Opioid Overdose Community Crisis Response Plan annually. 
G. Perform other duties as needed and as mutually agreed upon with the 

DEPARTMENT. 
  

27

Item 4.



Page 13 of 14 
 

Attachment E 

San Juan County Health Department 

Violence & Injury Prevention Program  

September 1, 2020 – August 31, 2021 

 

Overdose Data to Action Grant  

Grant #1NU17CE925013-01-00 -  CFDA 93.136  -  LEJ-3806-ODA21-PRV2 

 

I. FUNDING: 
A. Total Funding is $22,155.88 for September 1, 2020 thru August 31, 2021. 
B. The DEPARTMENT agrees to reimburse the SUB-RECIPIENT up to the maximum of the 

contract for expenditures made by the SUB-RECIPIENT directly related to the program. 
1. Unless otherwise provided, allowable expenditures include wages and salaries, 

fringe benefits, current expenses, and travel and mileage. 
2. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall report monthly expenditures on the Monthly 

Expenditure Report (MER) submitted to the DEPARTMENT. 
3. The amount reimbursed is based on the services provided by the SUB-

RECIPIENT as reported each month on the Monthly Expenditure Report (MER) 
submitted to the DEPARMTENT. 
 

II. RESPONSIBLIITIES OF SUB-RECIPIENT: 

The SUB-RECIPIENT shall: 

A. Serve as the lead agency and/or coordinator for a multi-disciplinary data focused group. 
1. Hold at least (4) meetings during the contract period. 
2. Maintain or develop partnerships with organizations that have similar purpose of 

prevention opioid misuse and overdose, including public safety. 
3. Provide data updates to inform potential actions from the Opioid Overdose 

Community Crisis Response Plan or Opioid Overdose Community Crisis 
Response Teams. 

B. Conduct at least one (1) additional Opioid Misuse and Prevention activity during the 
contract period. Inform the DEPARTMENT of selected activity in Catalyst by December 
15, 2020. 

C. Participate in UCO-OP Steering Committee meetings. 
D. Provide community level events to the DEPARTMENT to post on UCO-OP calendar of 

events. 
E. Provide at least one (1) overdose education and naloxone training, including naloxone 

dissemination (if available through alternative funding sources), to populations of 
increased risk for overdose or responding to an overdose. 

F. Promote DEPARTMENT events, resources and materials for Stop the Opidemic, Talk to 
Your Pharmacist Month, 2-1-1 Substance Use Disorder Helpline, Chronic Pain Self-
Management Programs, and Naloxone for Opioid Overdose 101 
(https://naloxone.utah.gov/n-training) training to the community.   

G. Work with community pharmacies to enroll in Utah’s Standing Order for Naloxone. 
H. Develop an inventory of community resources and services related to opioids and identify 

gaps. 
I. Perform other duties as needed and as mutually agreed upon with the DEPARTMENT. 

  

28

Item 4.

https://naloxone.utah.gov/n-training


Page 14 of 14 
 

Attachment F 
San Juan County Health Department 

Violence & Injury Prevention Program 
August 1, 2020 – July 31, 2021 

 
Core SVIPPGrant 

Grant# 5NU17CE924839-05-00     -  CFDA 93.136   -   LEJ-4352-VPS21 
 
 
IV. FUNDING: 

A. Total Funding is $6,000.00 for August 1, 2020 thru July 31, 2021. 
B. The DEPARTMENT agrees to reimburse the SUB-RECIPIENT up to the 

maximum of the contract for expenditures made by the SUB-RECIPIENT directly 
related to the program. 
1. Unless otherwise provided, allowable expenditures include wages and 

salaries, fringe benefits, current expenses, and travel and mileage. 
2. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall report monthly expenditures on the Monthly 

Expenditure Report (MER) submitted to the DEPARTMENT. 
3. The amount reimbursed is based on the services provided by the SUB-

RECIPIENT as reported each month on the Monthly Expenditure Report 
(MER) submitted to the DEPARTMENT. 

 
V. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SUB-RECIPIENT: 

The SUB-RECIPIENT shall: 
II. Virtually implement strategies to address the prevention of suicide or adverse 

childhood experiences.  

III. Report the following in Catalyst on a quarterly basis: 

B. Document one success story related to prevention of suicide or adverse 

childhood experiences efforts through a virtual environment. 

C. Report the number of residents reached by suicide and adverse 

childhood experiences efforts through a virtual environment. 

D. Report tools being developed and anticipated release or publication date 

E. Report brief description of challenges and actions being taken to address 

them. 

F. Report brief descriptions of innovative prevention activities happening or 

being implemented by partners that may be of interest to CDC, or other 

key stakeholders. 

 

29

Item 4.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: Month XX, 20XX 

SUBMITTED BY: Kirk Benge, Director, Public Health 

TITLE: Consideration of an Agreement between The Utah Highway Safety Office 

and San Juan County Health Department in support of the rural seat belt 

pilot program being conducted in San Juan County. 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend Sign Contract 

 

SUMMARY 

The purpose of this agreement is to provide financial support the rural seat belt pilot program being 

conducted in San Juan County during FFY2021. The goal is to continue efforts to support the 

comprehensive grassroots project that is designed to increase seat belt and child restraint use in rural 

communities using the positive community norms approach. 

CONTRACT PERIOD: The service period of this contract is 10/01/2020 through 09/30/2021. 

CONTRACT AMOUNT: UHSO agrees to pay up to $15,000. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

This is a continuation of the of the Rural Seatbelt program, which we have participated in each year 

since at least 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

These funds are already included in the current proposed budget, in expectation of continuance of the 

project. 

30

Item 5.



1 | P a g e  
 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MOA) 
This agreement is made and entered into by and between: 

The Utah Highway Safety Office 
4501 South 2700 West Bldg #3, 2nd Floor, Taylorsville, Utah 84129 

Hereinafter referred to as “UHSO” 
And: 

SAN JUAN COUNTY UTAH HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
– hereinafter referred to as “Provider” 

 
The purpose of this agreement is to provide $15,000 to your organization to support the rural seat belt 
pilot program being conducted in San Juan County during FFY2021.  The goal is to continue efforts to 
support the comprehensive grassroots project that is designed to increase seat belt and child restraint 
use in rural communities using the positive community norms approach.      
 
IT IS, THEREFORE, MUTUALLY AGREED THAT: 
 

1. The provider will participate in the planning process by: (1) participating in five planning 
meetings, via phone, with the Utah Highway Safety Office (UHSO) and Western 
Transportation Institute (WTI); (2) reviewing goals, plans and reports provided by the UHSO; 
(3) supporting evaluation efforts; (4) supporting behavioral and attitudinal surveys 
administered by WTI among core groups; (5) identifying and recruiting stakeholders; (6) 
attending one virtual planning meeting, (7) participate in at least 2 webinars provided by 
WTI.   

2. The provider will lead a local coalition to address the objectives of this pilot project and 
assure the strategically planned activities are conducted. Coalition membership must 
include representatives from state and local government, private and non-profit 
organizations, and other stakeholders. The provider will hold coalition meetings at least 
quarterly and must include minutes from coalition meetings and a list of members in 
quarterly reports submitted to the UHSO.   

3. The provider will support the communications and media plan by: (1) reviewing all elements 
of the annual plan, provided by the UHSO, and submit feedback; (2) supporting the media 
campaign by seeking placement of at least two print articles, 2 or more social media efforts 
and other forms of earned media utilizing the program resources; (3) recruiting law 
enforcement or local leaders to publically support and promote the campaign using local 
media and social media outlets.   

4. The provider will utilize the workplace and law enforcement tools by conducting an activity 
quarterly through the following efforts: (1) presenting messages to workplaces and/or law 
enforcement agencies; (2) conducting activities utilizing the workplace booklet and law 
enforcement booklet and social media tools; (3) promote workplace seat belt use policies 
and/or participating in at least one activity being piloted by the UHSO.         

31

Item 5.



2 | P a g e  
 

5. The provider will conduct activities across the social ecology by: (1) reviewing, distributing 
and updating all toolkits during the year; (2) supporting four occupant protection campaigns 
being promoted by the UHSO; (3) working with local law enforcement leaders to encourage 
increased support of enforcement and education regarding safety restraints; (4) utilizing 
social media quarterly, placing adult media message, utilizing the key leader booklets/tools 
with community leaders; (5)utilizing the school leader booklet with school staff and 
delivering four presentations to schools, businesses or other places that represent the 
county.  

6. The provider will report on all activities, listed above, on a quarterly basis and submit 
quarterly reports and invoices to the UHSO.  Below are the reporting requirements. 

 
The Provider will notify the Utah Highway Safety Office Program Manager immediately if they are unable to fulfill 
the stated objectives or activities, for any reason, including but not limited to COVID-19, to discuss alternate 
plans.  If objectives and/or alternate plans are not successfully met, the grant reimbursement amount may be 
prorated based on activity completed.  The service report needs to adequately meet stated requirements to be 
reimbursed for the full amount. 
 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR SERVICE REPORTS 

SERVICE REPORT REPORTING PERIOD SERVICE REPORT DUE PAYMENT ISSUED 

1st Quarter Report October - December January 31, 2021 $3,750 

2nd Quarter Report January - March April 30, 2021 $3,750 

3rd Quarter Report April - June July 7, 2021 $3,750 

4th Quarter Report July - September October 22, 2021 $3,750 

Final Report October – September October 22, 2021  

 
The UHSO’s Federal fiscal year begins on October 1, 2020 and ends on September 30, 2021.  It is 
imperative that the schedule for services (above) be adhered to.  Please send service reports and 
invoices to: Utah Highway Safety Office, Keri Fuhr, 4501 South 2700 West, Bldg #3, 2nd Floor, 
Taylorsville, Utah 84129 or email to kfuhr@utah.gov 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, PARTIES HAVE EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________  _______________________________________ 
Provider / Agency     Provider’s Agent (print/type name) 
 
 
_______________________________________  _______________________________________ 
Signature of Provider     Date 
 
 

32

Item 5.



3 | P a g e  
 

_______________________________________  _______________________________________ 
Keri Fuhr, Program Manager, Utah Highway Safety  Date 
 
 
 
_______________________________________  _______________________________________ 
Carrie Silcox, Director, Utah Highway Safety   Date 

33

Item 5.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer 

TITLE: Consideration and approval of the purchase of EMS and Sheriff 800 Mhz 

Radios using CARES Act Funds 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

SUMMARY 

Purchased radios for the 6 ambulances and one additional radio for the EMS vehicle as well as 15 hand- 

held 800 Mhz radios.  These will be purchased using a State of Utah Contracted Vendor.  

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$32,618.22 for the ambulances and $64,008.16 for the Sheriff Vehicles using CARES Act Funds 

34

Item 6.



35

Item 6.



36

Item 6.



37

Item 6.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Tammy Gallegos, Emergency Manger 

TITLE: Renew and Extend the County’s Drought Declaration 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

SUMMARY 

We declared a drought emergency in September of 2020, we are now experiencing extreme drought 

conditions and need to renew the drought declaration. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

Approval 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

38

Item 7.



• Majority of climate sites recorded below normal 
precipitation for September.

• Mostly dry and occasionally breezy conditions are 
expected for at least the next week as high pressure 
remains to the west and a large trough sits to the east.

Drought Message of the Day:

Drought Briefing 10/13/2020 

12:54 PM

Update for the week of October 8-14, 2020

Extreme to Exceptional Drought Persists Across the Area

Central RegionGrand Junction, CO
39

Item 7.



• Expansion of exceptional (D4) drought across portions of 
northwest, west-central, and southwest Colorado.

• Expansion of exceptional (D4) drought across portions of 
northeast and east-central Utah.

Important Changes since Last Week: 

Drought Briefing 10/13/2020 

12:54 PM

One-week Change in Drought Status

Central RegionGrand Junction, CO
40

Item 7.



Total Precipitation Percent of Normal

Maps courtesy of the Midwestern Regional Climate Center

Drought Briefing 10/13/2020 

12:54 PM

Weekly Precipitation

Central RegionGrand Junction, CO
41

Item 7.



Soil Moisture Difference from Normal

Soil Moisture Change

Drought Briefing 10/13/2020 

12:54 PM

Soil Moisture Status from CPC

Central RegionGrand Junction, CO
42

Item 7.



Average Temperature Difference from Normal

Maps courtesy of the Midwestern Regional Climate Center

Drought Briefing 10/13/2020 

12:54 PM

Weekly Temperatures

Central RegionGrand Junction, CO
43

Item 7.



• Impacts include low soil moisture, lower stream 

flows, and drying vegetation. Wildfire starts are 

more prevalent with above normal fire potential 

forecast for October across eastern Utah and 

western Colorado.

Drought Briefing 10/13/2020 

12:54 PM

Summary of Impacts and Fire Danger

Central RegionGrand Junction, CO
44

Item 7.



13 October 2020 to 20 October 2020

Drought Briefing 10/13/2020 

12:54 PM

WPC 7-day Precipitation Forecast

Central RegionGrand Junction, CO
45

Item 7.



Temperature

Precipitation

Drought Briefing 10/13/2020 

12:54 PM

CPC Week 2 Outlooks for 20-26 October 2020

Central RegionGrand Junction, CO
46

Item 7.



Drought Briefing 10/13/2020 

12:54 PM

CPC Week 3-4 Outlooks for 24 Oct – 6 Nov, 2020

Precipitation

Temperature

Central RegionGrand Junction, CO
47

Item 7.



Drought Briefing 10/13/2020 

12:54 PM

CPC Monthly Outlooks for October 2020

Central RegionGrand Junction, CO
48

Item 7.



Drought Briefing 10/13/2020 

12:54 PM

CPC Seasonal Outlook for Oct, Nov, Dec

Central RegionGrand Junction, CO
49

Item 7.



Please monitor our web page for updates: http://www.weather.gov/gjt

Follow us on Facebook and Twitter for the latest information:  

@NWSGJT NWSGrandJunction

Partners 

National Drought Mitigation Center - https://drought.unl.edu/

National Integrated Drought Information System - https://www.drought.gov/drought/

USDA Climate Hubs - https://www.climatehubs.usda.gov/

US Forest Service - https://www.wfas.net/

US Geological Survey - https://waterwatch.usgs.gov/

Midwestern Regional Climate Center - https://mrcc.illinois.edu/

High Plains Regional Climate Center - https://hprcc.unl.edu/

• Extreme (D3) drought continues across the majority of eastern Utah 
and western Colorado.

• The drought has worsened to the Exceptional (D4) category over 
some portions of the region, favoring west-central Colorado.

• A cold front moved through the area on Sunday which brought light 
rain to the valleys and some snow to the northern mountains.

• Generally dry and breezy conditions will prevail this week, increasing 
fire weather concerns.

• Eastern Utah and western Colorado will remain sandwiched 
between high pressure to the west and a trough to the east, though 
the ridge could break down mid to late next week.

Drought Briefing 10/13/2020 

12:54 PM

Summary

Central RegionGrand Junction, CO
50

Item 7.

http://www.weather.gov/gjt
https://www.facebook.com/NWSSpringfield
https://drought.unl.edu/
https://www.drought.gov/drought/
https://www.climatehubs.usda.gov/
https://www.wfas.net/
https://waterwatch.usgs.gov/
https://mrcc.illinois.edu/
https://hprcc.unl.edu/


Drought Declaration 10-20-2020-2 

 

Declaration Declaring the Existence of a Drought Emergency in San Juan County, Utah Pursuant to U.C.A. 17-8-7 

Whereas, the drought conditions thus far in 2020, creating a threat to human health and safety, the environment, the 

agricultural industry, potential wildfire rise, impacts to culinary, secondary and agriculture water supplies; as well as the 

general economy of San Juan County; and  

Whereas, the ongoing drought will likely cause many livestock producers in San Juan County to reduce the size of their 

herds and force many of them to import feed from other states which will create a major financial impact on livestock 

producers; and  

Whereas, the continued lack of adequate precipitation, coupled with insect infestations and plant stress, will likely result 

in less than normal agricultural production upon San Juan County farms and ranches through 2020, as well as a 

reductions of forage growth on the public and private rangelands within San Juan County; and  

Whereas, the use of public and private rangelands within San Juan County will likely be severely restricted or even 

temporarily suspended as a result of the continued lack of precipitation; and  

Whereas, the long range weather forecast does not predict significant increases in precipitation in San Juan County and 

the State of Utah in general during 2020; and San Juan County is in the category of extreme drought.  

Whereas, with the current conditions fire restrictions have been put into place and that the availability for firefighting 

resources are expected to be limited; and  

Whereas, fire restrictions and drought conditions will likely impact the visitor and tourism industry as many will make 

plans to go to other areas; and  

Whereas, drought conditions will impact the ability of the San Juan County Road Department to properly and 

adequately maintain the county’s roads; 

 

Now therefore, be it hereby resolved as follows: 

Section 1. Declaration of  Drought Emergency. Pursuant to 17-8-7, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, we, 

the San Juan County Commission, do hereby declare that a drought emergency exists within the jurisdictional 

boundaries of San Juan County, Utah. 

Section 2. The provisions of this declaration and the provisions adopted or incorporated by reference are 

severable and the provisions of other resolutions in conflict with this resolution are hereby repealed.  

Section 3. In the opinion of the San Juan County Commission, it is necessary for the preservations of the peace, 

health and safety of the County and the inhabitants thereof that this resolution take effect immediately after 

approval and adoption.  

 

 

51

Item 7.



Approved and Adopted by the San Juan County Commission, State of Utah on the _______ day of ______________, 

2020. 

 

 

 

San Juan County, a political subdivision of the State of Utah  

 

 

____________________________________________ 

Kenneth Maryboy, San Juan County Commission Chair 
 
 
 
 
Attest:         [Seal] 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

John David Nielson 
San Juan County Clerk/Auditor 
 

 

52

Item 7.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer 

TITLE: Consideration and approval of the UDOT Federal Aid Agreement 

Contract as a pass through agency for the McElmo Creek Bridge with an 

increased cost of $71,072 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

SUMMARY 

For the last year, the County has worked with UDOT on the McElmo Creek Bridge Project that was 
approved using the County as a pass-through agency using Navajo Nation funding by the Board back 
in September 2019 Commission Meeting. The original costs for the project prior to design was 
$1,476,00 of which Utah along with Federal Funding was providing $1,376,075 and the Navajo Nation’s 
participation was 6.77% of the costs at $99,925 has now increased in costs now that design is 
completed to a total of $2,525,801 of which the Federal Funding will provide $2,354,804 increasing our 
portion to $170,997, an increase of $71,072. The County has made Aneth Chapter and the Navajo 
Nation aware of the increase in costs.  

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

Approved as a pass-through agency for the Navajo Nation/Aneth Chapter back in September 2019 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Total increase will be paid by Aneth Chapter.  

53

Item 8.



1 of 3 
Revised 9-28-20 

State of Utah 
Department of Transportation 

The Local Agency(ies) desires to supplement the agreement entered into and executed on 4/1/2019.  All 
provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this supplement.  The changes 
to the agreement are described as follows: 
  
Updated funding for this Federal Aid Agreement Modification #1: 

  State Wide Transportation Improvement Program STIP 2021 - 2024
Fund Prior  2021  2022  2023 2024 Total Fed Aid State Other Pct

STP_BR $480,000 $2,045,801 $0 $0 $0 $2,525,801 $2,354,804 $0 $170,997 6.77% 
Total: $480,000 $2,045,801 $0 $0 $0 $2,525,801 $2,354,804 $0 $170,997 6.77% 

Funding from Base Federal Aid Agreement:  
 State Wide Transportation Improvement Program STIP 2019 - 2022

Fund* Prior  2019  2020  2021 2022 Total Fed Aid State Other Pct
STP_BR $0 $147,600 $1,328,400 $0 $0 $1,476,000 $1,376,075 $0 $99,925 6.77% 

Total: $0 $147,600 $1,328,400 $0 $0 $1,476,000 $1,376,075 $0 $99,925 6.77% 

Upon signing this agreement, the Local Agency(ies) agrees to pay its estimated matching share in phases when 
requested by UDOT. Phases typically include environmental, design, right-of-way and construction. The local 
match for this project is represented by the percentages of the Total Project Value shown above. In addition, the 
Local Agency(ies) agrees to pay 100% of the overruns that exceed $2,525,801 and any ineligible costs when 
requested by UDOT.  
 
UDOT will request payment of matching shares and overruns through an email that will be sent to Bruce Adams 
at BBADAMS@SANJUANCOUNTY.ORG, Local Agency(ies) Contact. The Local Agency(ies) shall pay within 30 
days after each payment request. The Local Agency(ies) shall make the check payable to the Utah Department of 
Transportation referencing the project number above and mail to UDOT Comptroller's Office, Box 141510, 4501 
South 2700 West, Salt Lake City, Utah 84119-5998. 
 
As part of this Federal Aid Agreement modification, the following additional requirements apply to section VI. 
Federal Aid Project Compliance of the original Federal Aid Agreement: 
 
VI. Federal Aid Project Compliance.  Local Agency shall comply with Title 23, USC, 23 CFR, 2 CFR Part 200, 
UDOT Local Government and State Aid Project Guide, UDOT’s Right of Way Operational Manual and the Federal 
Aid Project Agreement between UDOT and Federal Highway Administration concerning federal aid projects.  
They will also follow the Local Government Design and Process Manuals. 

Federal Aid Agreement 
Supplement for Local 

Agency Project 
CFDA No. 20.205 

San Juan County - Bruce Adams
 
  

Maximum Project Value 
Authorized

$2,525,801 

PIN Number 
14779
FINET Number 
54798 
FMIS Number 
F012180 
DUNS Number 
079217348 
 

Project Number
F-LC37(10)
PIN Description 
McElmo Creek Bridge - 037012C 
 
  

Agreement Number
(Original Agreement No.) 

199023 
Mod No.   1 

Date Executed
 
 

54

Item 8.



2 of 3 
Revised 9-28-20 

Compliance with the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act:  The Local Agency certifies 
conformance and continued conformance with Public Law 115-232, § 889 and 2 CFR § 200.216. 

LOCAL AGENCY Utah Department of Transportation

By    _____________________________________   By    ____________________________________ 
         Region Director

Date _____________________________________   Date ____________________________________ 
San Juan County Official 

  UDOT Comptroller 

  By    ____________________________________ 
         Comptroller’s Office 

  Date ____________________________________ 
 

 

55

Item 8.



3 of 3 
Revised 9-28-20 

Consultant Services 
Federal Aid Agreement Review/Approval Routing Form 

 
STATE OF UTAH  TODAY’S DATE 10/7/2020 
UTAH DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  PM REQUEST DATE 10/7/2020 
ENGINEERING SERVICES  

 FEDERAL AID 

AGREEMENT NO.
199023 

 MOD NO. 1 

Project No.: F-LC37(10) PIN No.: 14779 
PIN Description: McElmo Creek Bridge - 037012C FINET Prog Code No.: 54798 

UDOT Project Manager UDOT Contract Administrator
Rustin Anderson Udot Michael R. Butler (Acting as UDOT) 
210 West 800 South PO Box 148490 
Richfield, UT  84701 Salt Lake City Utah 84114-8490
(435)979-4557 (801)815-4367 
rustinanderson@utah.gov michaelbutler@utah.gov

Local Government 
San Juan County
117 S MAIN 
Monticello, UT  84535 
Bruce Adams, (435) 587-3225 
BBADAMS@SANJUANCOUNTY.ORG

Project Value $2,525,801 
Federal Match $2,354,804 
Local Government Match $170,997 
State Match $0 

This Federal Aid Agreement will follow the current Consultant Services electronic signature process.  Please 
follow the email instructions for processing the Federal Aid Agreement.  If legal reviews are required by your 
entity, the contract will still need to ultimately follow the electronic signature process.   

56

Item 8.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer 

TITLE: Consideration and approval of the UDOT Federal Aid Agreement 

Contract for Recapture Creek Bridge with an increased cost of $46,009 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

SUMMARY 

For the last year, the County has worked with UDOT on the Recapture Creek Bridge Project that was 
approved using County participation funding by the Board back in September 2019 Commission 
Meeting. The original costs for the project prior to design was $1,026,000 of which Utah along with 
Federal Funding was providing $956,540 and the County’s participation was 6.77% of the costs at 
$69,460 has now increased in costs now that design is completed to a total of $1,705,599 of which the 
Federal Funding will provide $1,590,130 increasing our portion to $115,469, an increase of $46,009.  

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

The Commission approved the original agreement back in September 2019 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$46,009 increase for a total impact of $115,469  

57

Item 9.



1 of 3 
Revised 9-28-20 

State of Utah 
Department of Transportation 

The Local Agency(ies) desires to supplement the agreement entered into and executed on 11/7/2018.  All 
provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this supplement.  The changes 
to the agreement are described as follows: 

Updated funding for this Federal Aid Agreement Modification #1: 
   State Wide Transportation Improvement Program STIP  2021 - 2024 

Fund Prior  2021  2022  2023  2024 Total Fed Aid State Other Pct 
STP_BR $420,000 $1,285,599 $0 $0 $0 $1,705,599 $1,590,130 $0 $115,469  6.77% 

Total: $420,000 $1,285,599 $0 $0 $0 $1,705,599 $1,590,130 $0 $115,469 6.77% 

Funding from Base Federal Aid Agreement:  
  State Wide Transportation Improvement Program STIP  2019 - 2022 

Fund* Prior  2019  2020  2021  2022 Total Fed Aid State Other Pct 
STP_BR $0 $102,600 $923,400 $0 $0 $1,026,000 $956,540 $0 $69,460  6.77% 

Total: $0 $102,600 $923,400 $0 $0 $1,026,000 $956,540 $0 $69,460 6.77% 

Upon signing this agreement, the Local Agency(ies) agrees to pay its estimated matching share in phases when 
requested by UDOT. Phases typically include environmental, design, right-of-way and construction. The local 
match for this project is represented by the percentages of the Total Project Value shown above. In addition, the 
Local Agency(ies) agrees to pay 100% of the overruns that exceed $1,705,599 and any ineligible costs when 
requested by UDOT.  
 
UDOT will request payment of matching shares and overruns through an email that will be sent to Bruce Adams 
at BBADAMS@SANJUANCOUNTY.ORG, Local Agency(ies) Contact. The Local Agency(ies) shall pay within 30 
days after each payment request. The Local Agency(ies) shall make the check payable to the Utah Department of 
Transportation referencing the project number above and mail to UDOT Comptroller's Office, Box 141510, 4501 
South 2700 West, Salt Lake City, Utah 84119-5998. 
 
As part of this Federal Aid Agreement modification, the following additional requirements apply to section VI. 
Federal Aid Project Compliance of the original Federal Aid Agreement: 
 
VI. Federal Aid Project Compliance.  Local Agency shall comply with Title 23, USC, 23 CFR, 2 CFR Part 200, 
UDOT Local Government and State Aid Project Guide, UDO

Federal Aid Agreement 
Supplement for Local 

Agency Project 
CFDA No. 20.205 

 
San Juan County - Bruce Adams 
 
  

Maximum Project Value 
Authorized 

 
$1,705,599 

PIN Number 
14778
FINET Number 
54797 
FMIS Number 
F012179 
DUNS Number 
079217348 
 

Project Number 
F-2416(1)7
PIN Description 
Recapture Creek Bridge - 037004C 

 

Agreement Number 
(Original Agreement No.) 

198484 
Mod No.   1 

Date Executed 
 
 

58

Item 9.



2 of 3 
Revised 9-28-20 

Aid Project Agreement between UDOT and Federal Highway Administration concerning federal aid projects.  
They will also follow the Local Government Design and Process Manuals. 

Compliance with the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act:  The Local Agency certifies 
conformance and continued conformance with Public Law 115-232, § 889 and 2 CFR § 200.216. 

LOCAL AGENCY      Utah Department of Transportation 

By    _____________________________________   By    ____________________________________ 
Region Director

Date _____________________________________   Date ____________________________________ 
San Juan County Official 

         UDOT Comptroller 

        By    ____________________________________ 

        Date ____________________________________ 

 

59

Item 9.



3 of 3 
Revised 9-28-20 

Consultant Services 
Federal Aid Agreement Review/Approval Routing Form 

 
STATE OF UTAH TODAY S DATE 10/7/2020 
UTAH DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  PM REQUEST DATE 10/7/2020 
ENGINEERING SERVICES    
  FEDERAL AID 

AGREEMENT NO. 
198484 

  MOD NO. 1 

Project No.: F-2416(1)7 PIN No.: 14778 
PIN Description: Recapture Creek Bridge - 037004C FINET Prog Code No.: 54797 

 
UDOT Project Manager UDOT Contract Administrator

Rustin Anderson Udot Michael R. Butler (Acting as UDOT) 
210 West 800 South PO Box 148490 
Richfield, UT  84701 Salt Lake City Utah 84114-8490 
(435)979-4557 (801)815-4367 
rustinanderson@utah.gov michaelbutler@utah.gov 

Local Government 
San Juan County
117 S MAIN 
Monticello, UT  84535 
Bruce Adams, (435) 587-3225 
BBADAMS@SANJUANCOUNTY.ORG 

Project Value $1,705,599 
Federal Match $1,590,130 
Local Government Match $115,469 
State Match $0 

This Federal Aid Agreement will follow the current Consultant Services electronic signature process.  Please 
follow the email instructions for processing the Federal Aid Agreement.  If legal reviews are required by your 
entity, the contract will still need to ultimately follow the electronic signature process.   

60

Item 9.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Tammy Gallegos, Emergency Manger 

TITLE: Basic Emergency Operations Plan 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

SUMMARY 

This is the San Juan County Basic Emergency Operations Plan. It is updated bi-annually.  The County 

Attorney has looked at the plan and has found no issues.  

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

We have had this approved every 2 years.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

61

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 
 
 
 

62

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN ACTIVIATION 
 
This Emergency Operation Plan (EOP) will be activated and implemented when San Juan County declares an 
emergency or when an emergency is imminent or probable and the implementation of this plan and the 
activation of the San Juan County Emergency Operations Center (EOC) is a prudent proactive response.  
 
Execution of the Emergency Operations Plan  
This EOP is effective for planning and operations purposes under the following conditions: 
 

 An incident occurs or is imminent.  

 The chief elected officials or designee declares a state of emergency.  
 
EOC staff should be familiar with the EOP guidelines, procedures, and supplemental information so that in an 
emergency they can complete tasks in a timely manner. The EOP will also provide guidance regarding official 
records that will need to be kept on file after an emergency response. 
 
Saving lives will take precedence over protecting property for decisions involving resource allocation and 
prioritization.  
 
Responsibility for coordination of emergency activities with regions, state, and private partners resides with 
the San Juan County Emergency Management Team and will be accomplished through established liaison roles 
within the incident or unified command structure as outlined in the National Incident Management System 
(NIMS).  
 
“The mission of San Juan County Emergency Management is to establish, coordinate, maintain county-wide 
Emergency Management activities and intergovernmental, private, and volunteer partnerships in order to 
establish sustainable communities and support responses to and recovery from emergencies, as well as collect 
and disseminate critical information.” 
 

63

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 

64

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 
 
 

65

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

FOREWORD 
 
 This plan applies to San Juan County; The EOP consists of a base plan, fifteen Emergency Support Function 
(ESF) Annexes, Support and Incidents Annexes. The base plan provides guidance for response, roles and 
responsibilities, response actions, response organizations, and planning requirements to any incident that 
occurs. ESF Annexes group county resources and capabilities into functional areas that are most frequently 
needed in a county response.  
 
Support Annexes describe essential supporting aspects that are common to all incidents. Incident Annexes 
address the unique aspects of how the county responds to specific incident categories. To support an effective 
response, all ESFs are required to have both strategic and detailed operational plans that include all 
participating organizations and engage the private sector and nongovernmental organizations as appropriate. 
Departments and agencies will be expected to develop and maintain standard operating procedures that 
outline specific responsibilities associated with these roles. Each department or agency involved will create a 
list of responsibilities that will serve as a guide for internal standard operating procedures.  
 
Further, this plan describes the role of the county EOC and the coordination that occurs between the EOC, 
cities, townships, communities and other response agencies. The plan outlines how San Juan EOC will serve as 
the focal point between cities, towns, townships, communities and the state in times of disaster. San Juan 
Emergency Management is responsible for updating the EOP on a regular basis to reflect and address the 
changing needs of San Juan County. This EOP complies with the National Incident Management System, in 
accordance with the National Response Framework, the Incident Command System and the State of Utah 
Emergency Operations Plan. 
 
San Juan County has a portion of the Navajo Nation within its boundaries as well as the Ute Mountain Ute 
Tribe and the Southern Paiute Tribe. The response to an Emergency or disaster on the Navajo Nation is 
coordinated through the Navajo Nation Department of Emergency Management in Window Rock. The Utah 
Navajo Chapters work with the Navajo Nation Department of Emergency Management for their needs. The 
Navajo Nation Department of Emergency Management then coordinates with the State of Utah for assistance. 
The same process is followed for the Ute Mountain Ute Tribe and the Southern Paiute Tribe. The State of Utah 
has a designated Tribal Liaison Officer who works with the Tribes, State and Local jurisdictions to help 
coordinate efforts in response to an emergency or disaster.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

66

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

PROMULGATION 
 
This plan was approved by the San Juan County Commission on ___________________  
 
WHEREAS, San Juan County recognizes it is at risk to a wide range of natural, technological, and man-made 
hazards and there is a need for ongoing emergency operations planning by all jurisdictions of government 
within San Juan County; and  
 
WHEREAS, the San Juan County Commission has directed the staff to utilize the resources of the county in a 
resourceful and effective manner in the provision of emergency management; and  
 
WHERAS, staff has drafted the 2020 Emergency Operations Plan to assist the county and its residents to be 
prepared for and effectively respond to an emergency; and  
 
WHERAS, this Emergency Operations Plan is needed to coordinate and support county response efforts in the 
event of an emergency or disaster and during the aftermath thereof; and  
 
WHEREAS, this plan will provide a framework for the departments of the county to plan, and perform their 
respective emergency functions during a Local, County, State or National emergency or disaster.   
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Homeland Security Presidential Directive 5, all agencies, departments, and 
organizations having responsibilities delineated in this Emergency Operations Plan will use the National 
Incident Management System; and 
 
WHERAS,  this plan is promulgated as the San Juan County Emergency Operations Plan and designed to 
comply with all applicable San Juan County regulations and provides the policies and procedures to be 
followed in response to emergencies, disasters and terrorism events.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of San Juan County, this Emergency Operations Plan as 

updated is officially adopted,  

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE SAN JUAN COUNTY COMMISSION, STATE OF UTAH, THIS ______ DAY OF 
_____________ 2020 
 
_________________________________     ATTEST: 
Commission Chairman 
 
_________________________________    ____________________________________ 
County Commissioner       County Clerk   
 
_________________________________ 
County Commissioner 
 
 
 
 

67

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

APPROVAL AND IMPLEMENTATION 
This document is the updated integrated emergency operations plan (EOP) for San Juan County This EOP 
supersedes any previous emergency management plans promulgated by San Juan County. It provides a 
framework for County departments to plan and perform their respective emergency functions during a 
disaster or national emergency. This EOP recognizes the need for ongoing emergency operations planning by 
all County departments. This plan addresses the four goals identified in the National Strategy for Homeland 
Security: 

 Prevent and disrupt terrorist attacks.  

 Protect the American people, our critical infrastructure, and key resources.  

 Respond to and recover from incidents.  

 Continue to strengthen the foundation to ensure our long-term recovery success.  
 

By integrating planning efforts in these four areas, San Juan County can produce an effective emergency 
management and homeland security program. In accordance with the Homeland Security Presidential 
Directive (HSPD)-5, all agencies, departments, and organizations having responsibilities delineated in this EOP 
will use the National Incident Management System (NIMS). This system will allow proper coordination 
between local, state, and federal organizations. As part of NIMS, the Incident Command System (ICS) will 
enable effective and efficient incident management by integrating a combination of facilities, equipment, 
personnel, procedures, and communications operating with a common organizational structure. All on-scene 
incident management will be coordinated using ICS. This EOP is in accordance with existing federal, state, and 
local statutes. The San Juan County Commission has approved this plan. The plan will be revised and updated 
as required.  
 
Under Title 53-2a-208 the San Juan County Commission and officials are hereby vested with the authority to 
declare a local state of emergency. The San Juan County Emergency Operations Plan has been duly adopted by 
the San Juan County Commission.  
 
Minor modifications of the plan can be made by San Juan County Emergency Manager through a delegation of 
authority by approval of this plan and acknowledged below without the senior official’s signature during any 
emergency event. I acknowledge that I, or a representative have reviewed this plan and agree to the tasks and 
responsibilities assigned herein. It is also agreed upon if necessary to upgrade this Emergency Operations Plan 
as it relates to responsibilities on a bi-annual basis and submit any changes to San Juan County Commission for 
their review and updates. 
 
DAT APPROVED: _________________________ 
 
_________________________________   _________________________________ 
County Commissioner      Commission Chairman 
 
 
________________________________   _________________________________ 
County Commissioner      County Emergency Manager 
 
 
 

68

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

San Juan County Emergency Operations Plan 
Table of Contents 

Cover 1 

Emergency Operations Plan Activations 2 

Record of Changes 3 

Record of Distribution 4 

Foreword 5 

Promulgation 6 

Approval and Implementation 7 

Table Of Contents 8-10 

Section 1 Introduction 11 

Purpose 11 

Scope 11 

Phases of Emergency Management 12 

Disaster Condition 12 

Planning Assumptions 13 

Incident Command System 13 

Incident Response and Management 14 

Initial Priorities 14 

Communication, Information Dissemination and Media Relations 14 

Section 2 Hazard Analysis 15 

Hazard Analysis 15 

Natural Hazards 15 

Technological Hazards 16 

Human-Caused Hazards 16 

Hazard Assessment 18-25 

Mitigation 25 

Mitigation Planning Process and Coordination 25 

Mitigation Goals 26-37 

Section 3 Concept of Operations 39 

Normal Operations 39 

Emergency Operations Plan Implementation 39 

Declaring a Local State of Emergency 39 

Local Government Resources 40 

Emergency Operations Center 41 

Escalation of Levels in the EOC 41 

EOC Levels of Operation 41 

Full Scale Activation 42 

Limited Activation 42 

Monitoring Activation 43 

ICS Forms 43 

Emergency Support Functions 43-46 

EOC Coordination 47 

EOC Support Planning 48 

69

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

After Action Reports Prepared 48 

Notification and Warning 48 

Section 4 Organization and Responsibilities 49 

Operations Section 49 

Logistics Section 50 

Finance and Administration 50 

Planning and Intel / Community Development Section 51 

Authority and Role of Support Staff 51 

Direction and Control 51 

Utah Department of Emergency Management 52 

Federal Agencies/Federal Emergency Management Agency  53 

National Weather Service  53 

Non-governmental Organizations/American Red Cross  53 

General Public 53 

Business and Industry  54 

County 54 

Delegation of Authority 54 

Section 5 Direction, Control and Coordination 54 

Rapid Damage Assessment 55 

Preliminary Damage Assessment 55 

Response Procedures 56 

Response Recovery 57 

Incident Reporting  57 

Reports and Record Keeping  58 

Federal Records 58 

State Records 58 

Post Assessment Communication and Reporting 58 

Determination of Recovery Strategy  59 

Continuity of Government 59 

Section 6 Disaster Intelligence 59 

Section 7 Communications 61 

Common Operating Picture 61-62 

Section 8 Administration, Finance, and Logistics 63 

Administration Information 63 

Records Preservations and Restoration 63 

Reports and Records 63 

Reporting guidelines  63 

Initial reports  64 

Updates  64 

Post emergency reports  64 

Reports and Record Keeping  64 

Reports and Records  64 

Financial Management 64 

Emergency Procurement 65 

70

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

Accounting 65 

Fiscal Agreements 65 

Logistics 65 

Training and Mitigation 66 

Training Opportunities 66 

Emergency Exercises 66 

Public Education and Awareness 67 

Section 9 Plan Maintenance and Distribution 67 

Emergency Operations Plan EOP Maintenance 68 

Section 10 Authorities and References 68 

Authorities 68 

Federal Authorities 68 

State of Utah 69 

Supporting Documents/Plans 69 

Agreements 69 

Section 11 Glossary 70-72 

Section 12 Acronyms 73 

Section 13 Emergency Support Function Maintenance 74 

Section 14 Emergency Support Functions Annexes  

Transportation  

Communications  

Public Works and Engineering  

Firefighting  

Emergency Management  

Mass Care  

Resource Support  

Public Health and Medical Services  

Search and Rescue  

Hazardous Materials  

Agriculture and Natural Resources  

Energy  

Law Enforcement  

Long Term Recovery  

Public Information  

Military Support  

Section 15 Emergency Preparedness Local Homeless Plan  

Section 16 Terrorism Annex  

Section 17 Supporting Documents  

Section 18 Forms  

Section 19 Maps  

Section 20 Contact List  

 

71

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

Section 1 
INTRODUCTION 
1.1 Purpose  
The San Juan County Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) establishes the framework for the effective and 
comprehensive integration and coordination of the emergency response and recovery actions of all levels of 
government, volunteer organizations and the private sector within the county. The EOP is a comprehensive 
plan that is risk-based and all-hazards in its approach. As such, it is the blueprint for all San Juan County 
emergency and disaster operations, including natural disasters, human-caused accidental disasters, epidemics, 
and terrorist incidents. The emergency response and recovery actions undertaken by different government 
agencies and volunteer organizations following a major disaster or emergency will ensure that the following 
objectives are met: 
 

 Reduce the vulnerability and health of citizens and communities within San Juan County to loss of life, 
injury, damage and destruction of property during natural, technological or human-caused 
emergencies and disasters or during hostile military or paramilitary actions.  

 Prepare for prompt and efficient response and recovery to protect lives and property affected by 
emergencies and disasters. 

 Respond to emergencies using all systems, plans and resources necessary to preserve the health, 
safety and welfare of persons affected by the emergency. 

 Assist communities and citizens within San Juan County in recovering from emergencies and disasters 
by providing for the rapid and orderly restoration and rehabilitation of persons and property affected 
by emergencies. 

 Provide an emergency management system encompassing all aspects of pre-emergency preparedness 
and post-emergency response, recovery, and mitigation. San Juan County Emergency Management is 
the lead agency for coordinating the response during a major disaster or emergency effecting San Juan 
County and is responsible for the following:  

o Assist families, businesses, and industry with developing their emergency plans 
o Develop effective mitigation practices for the community 
o Provide training and conduct exercises for the emergency response forces of the county 
o Develop and implement emergency plans, operating procedures and checklists, systems, and 

facilities for response to community emergencies 
o Work with local government and community agencies to develop plans and procedures to 

recover from a disaster 
o Coordinate the county’s response to disasters 

 
1.2 Scope  
This EOP establishes the fundamental policies, basic program strategies, assumptions, and mechanisms 
through which San Juan County will mobilize resources collect and disseminate critical information and 
conduct activities to guide and support local jurisdictions and to seek assistance when necessary from the 
State of Utah, Division of Emergency Management (DEM) during response, recovery, and mitigation.  
 
This EOP consists of a base plan, ESF Annexes, Support, and Incidents Annexes. The base plan provides 
guidance for response, roles and responsibilities, response actions, response organizations, and planning 
requirements to any incident that occurs. ESF Annexes group county resources and capabilities into functional 
areas that are most frequently needed in a county response. Support Annexes describe essential supporting 

72

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

aspects that are common to all incidents. Support Annexes address the unique aspects of how we respond to 
specific incident categories. This EOP applies to the communities located within the boundaries of San Juan 
County.  
 
1.3 Phases of Emergency Management 
 This EOP describes basic strategies that will outline the mobilization of resources and emergency operation 
activities that support local emergency management efforts. This EOP addresses disasters through the four 
mission areas identified in the National Strategy for Homeland Security: to prevent, protect against, respond 
to and recover from natural, technological or human-caused emergencies. 
 

 Prevention consists of actions that reduce risk from human-caused events. Prevention planning 
identifies actions that minimize the possibility that an event will occur or adversely 
impact the safety and security of a jurisdiction’s critical infrastructures and its inhabitants. 

 Protection reduces or eliminates a threat to people and places. The protection of critical infrastructure 
and key resources is vital to local jurisdictions, national security, public health and safety, and 
economic vitality. Protection safeguards citizens and their freedoms, critical infrastructure, property, 
and the economy from acts of terrorism, natural disasters or other emergencies. Protective actions 
may occur before, during, or after an incident and prevent, minimize, or contain the impact of an 
incident. 

 Mitigation is a vital component of the overall preparedness effort and represents the sustained actions 
a jurisdiction takes to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to people and property from the effects of 
hazards and threats. The purpose of mitigation is twofold: (1) to protect people and structures and (2) 
to minimize the costs of disaster response and recovery. 

 Response embodies the actions taken in the immediate aftermath of an event to save lives, meet basic 
human needs and reduce the loss of property and impact to the environment. Response planning 
provides rapid and disciplined incident assessment to ensure response is quickly scalable, adaptable 
and flexible. 

 Recovery encompasses both short-term and long-term efforts for the rebuilding and revitalization of 
affected communities. Recovery planning must be a near seamless transition from response activities 
to short-term recovery operations, including restoration of interrupted utility services, reestablishment 
of transportation routes, and the provision of food and shelter to displaced persons. More specific 
information concerning prevention, protection, response and recovery is addressed in the emergency 
support function section and incident annex appendices to this EOP. 
 

1.4 Disaster Condition 
 It is recognized that San Juan County is vulnerable to natural, technological and human-caused hazards that 
threaten the health, welfare and security of our citizens. The cost of response to and recovery from potential 
disasters can be substantially reduced when attention is turned to mitigation action and planning. Although 
San Juan County is vulnerable to snowstorms, and flooding, other hazards such as wildfires, drought, and 
landslides pose risks to San Juan County’s population and property. In the event of a major disaster or 
emergency, a large number of fatalities and injuries may result.  
 
Many people will be displaced and incapable of providing food, clothing and shelter for themselves and their 
families. Jobs will be lost with reduced prospect for future employment in the area. The economic viability of 
the affected communities may be jeopardized. Many private homes, businesses and major industries may be 

73

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

damaged or destroyed. The structural integrity of many public buildings, bridges, roadways and facilities may 
be compromised. Water and utility infrastructure may be severely affected. Emergency response personnel 
may be hampered in the response efforts due to transportation problems, lack of electrical power, debris, and 
damaged, destroyed, or inaccessible local structures. Timely deployment of resources from unaffected areas 
of San Juan County and the State of Utah will be needed to ensure an effective and efficient response. 
 
1.5 Planning Assumptions 

 Emergency management coordination in San Juan County is based on a bottom-up approach to 
response and recovery resource allocation (that is, local response efforts followed by county response 
efforts, then state response efforts, and finally federal government assistance) with each level 
exhausting its resources prior to elevation to the next level. Homeland security statute or regulations 
may govern certain response activities. The recovery of losses and/or reimbursements of costs from 
federal resources will require preparation and compliance with certain processes.  

 The county will make every reasonable effort to respond in the event of an emergency or disaster. 
However, county resources and systems may be damaged, destroyed or overwhelmed. 

 The responsibilities and functions outlined in this plan will be fulfilled only actual agency capabilities 
and resources are available at the time. 

 Damages to infrastructure will likely be manifested in direct physical and economic damages to 
facilities and systems, emergency response abilities will be diminished due to inaccessible locales, and 
may cause inconvenience or overwhelming distress due to temporary or protracted service 
interruptions and will result in long-term economic losses due to the economic and physical limitations 
of recovery operations. 

 The San Juan County EOC will be staffed with representatives from county agencies and private 
organizations grouped together under the ESF concept. The primary agency for each ESF will be 
responsible for coordinating the planning and response activities of the support agencies assigned to 
that ESF. 

 Effective preparedness requires ongoing public awareness and education programs so that citizens will 
be prepared, when possible, and understand their own responsibilities should a major disaster or 
emergency event occur. 

 Time of occurrence, severity of impact, weather conditions, population density, building construction, 
and secondary events such as fires, explosions, structural collapse, contamination issues, loss of critical 
infrastructure and floods are a few of the significant factors that will affect causalities and damage. 

 Disaster relief from agencies outside the county may take 72 hours or more to arrive. 

 Residents living within the county boundaries are encouraged to develop a family disaster plan and 
maintain the essential supplies to be self-sufficient for a minimum of two (2) weeks. 
 

1.6 Incident Command System 
 San Juan County has adopted the National Incident Management System (NIMS) as the standard incident 
management structure within the county. The Incident Command System (ICS) is the standard for on-scene 
emergency management throughout San Juan County. First responders in all organizations are encouraged to 
implement the training, exercising and everyday use of ICS. ICS is a combination of facilities, equipment, 
personnel, procedures and communications that operates with a common organizational structure and is 
designed to aid in the management of resources during incidents. ICS is applicable to small and large/complex 
incidents. All operations within the EOC will be conducted using ICS. 
 

74

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

All operations under the San Juan County EOP will be undertaken in accordance with the mission statement of 
San Juan County Emergency Management: 
 
“The mission of San Juan County Emergency Management is to establish, coordinate, maintain county-wide 
Emergency Management activities and intergovernmental, private, and volunteer partnerships in order to 
establish sustainable communities and support responses to and recovery from emergencies, as well as collect 
and disseminate critical information.” 

 San Juan County Emergency Management is responsible for the development of this plan. 

 Municipal, state, and federal emergency plans and programs will integrate with the San Juan County 
EOP to provide effective and timely support to the citizens of San Juan County in the event of a major 
disaster or emergency. 

 County agencies will develop appropriate plans and procedures to carry out the emergency 
responsibilities assigned to them in the EOP. 

 Local emergency response is primary during an emergency or disaster. San Juan County will coordinate 
with local officials to augment local emergency resources as needed. 

 All local governments and agencies must be prepared to respond to emergencies and disasters even 
when government facilities, vehicles, personnel and political decision-making authorities are affected. 

 When necessary, San Juan County Emergency Management will initiate requests for assistance from 
the state government through the Division of Emergency Management (DEM). DEM may initiate 
requests for assistance from the federal government through the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) and other states through the Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC). All 
activity undertaken under the EOP shall be coordinated using the Incident Command System, and the 
National Incident Management System, in accordance with Homeland Security Presidential Directive. 

 
Particularly in major disasters, the public looks to government at all levels for assistance through all available 
means. In addition to the increased potential for disasters, a number of other factors are also on the rise. 
These include property values, population growth and population density within hazard vulnerable zones. This 
sets the stage for increased impact and economic ramifications of catastrophic events. 
 
1.7 Incident Response and Management  
1.7.1 Initial Priorities  
The first minutes and hours following an emergency situation or disaster can be disorganized and confusing 
and limit the ability of the county to provide an effective response. In order to avoid this scenario, initial 
priorities have been developed that include but are not limited to:  

 Determination of the level of the incident and establishment Emergency Operating Center operational 
level.  

 Preliminary damage assessment to provide critical post-disaster information.  

 Creation of the Incident Action Plan (ICS Form 201) that includes initial incident period objectives.  

 Assessment of critical facilities including hospitals, public safety facilities, schools and other mass 
gathering locations, and similar structures. 

 
1.7.2 Communication, Information Dissemination and Media Relations  
Perhaps the most important element of an effective response is the ability to communicate and disseminate 
information. The flow of information between emergency responders, media outlets and to the general public 
is vital to maintain stability and order during an emergency situation or disaster. Effective communication can 

75

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

save lives and property while the lack of information can be life threatening or even fatal and increase the 
amount of damage to property.  
 
All outgoing information will be approved by the County Administrator or designee. All public statements, 
requests for assistance, instruction to residents and businesses, and any other information shall be reviewed 
and approved by the County Administrator or designee in order to maintain good order. The County 
Administrator designee will inform the media and general public of measures underway to address the 
situation, including local government decisions and actions. Furthermore, the County Administrator or 
designee will provide information about relief services available if necessary. There are many methods to 
communicate to the public and the news media. At the present time County utilizes Twitter, Facebook, 
Website, Email, Cellular Phones, and Land Line Phones. Other methods may be used as they become available. 
If San Juan County requires additional communication assistance, they will utilize a Joint Information Center 
(JIC). This center will provide a back-up and assist during an emergency to help with media and provide call 
takers. 
 
Section 2 
Hazard Analysis 
2.1 Hazard Analysis 
 A disaster can occur at any time within the jurisdiction of San Juan County or any of its municipalities. All 
areas of San Juan County are at risk for three types of events: 

 Natural Disasters – Avalanche, drought, earthquake, epidemic, flood, landslide, tornado, severe 
weather (rain, snow, wind, lightning, etc.), wildfires, etc. 

 Technological Incidents – Airplane crash, dam failures, hazardous materials release, power failure, etc. 

  Human-Caused Hazards - Transportation incidents involving hazardous substances, ground 
transportation accidents, civil disturbances, school violence, terrorists or bomb threats, sabotage and 
conventional nuclear, biological, or chemical attack, etc. 

 
2.2 Natural Hazards  
Numerous natural hazards exist in San Juan County that can constrain land use. Severe Drought, Wildland Fire, 
Flooding and Winter Storms 
 
Landslide: Are common natural hazards in Utah. They often strike without warning and can be destructive and 
costly. Common types of landslides in Utah are debris flows, slides, and rock falls. Many landslides are 
associated with rising groundwater levels due to rainfall, snowmelt and landscape irrigation. 
Drought: Even in normal years, Utah has a limited water supply. It is the second driest state in the nation. 
Most of Utah is classified as a desert receiving less than 13 inches of annual precipitation. Drought is a normal 
and recurring feature of climate and is a result of a deficiency of precipitation over an extended period of 
time, resulting in a water shortage that impacts normal water usage. The severity of a drought depends on the 
degree of moisture deficiency, its duration and the size of the affected area. Because it is so hard to develop a 
quantitative definition for drought, it is difficult to determine precisely when a drought starts and ends. 
Epidemic: Epidemics and Public Health Emergency Emerging and reemerging infections such as pandemics, 
mosquito-borne illnesses, hemorrhagic fevers, and the resurgence of tuberculosis and cholera in new, more 
severe forms, and the economic and environmental dangers of similar occurrences in animals and plants 
attest to our continuing vulnerability to infectious diseases throughout the world. 

76

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

Flooding: Although located in a semi-arid region, San Juan County is vulnerable to severe thunderstorms and 
snowmelt floods. 
Severe Weather 
Snow: Snowstorms over southeastern Utah have a dramatic effect on regional commerce, transportation and 
daily activity.  
Lightning: Each year, hundreds of Americans are hit by lightning, resulting in dozens of deaths and injuries. 
Lightning causes more deaths per year in the United States than those from tornados or hurricanes. 
Wildfire: Utah’s typical fire season is the dry period from May through October. A large number of wildfires 
are caused by lightning. The wildland/urban interface is defined as the area where structures and other 
human development meet or intermingle with undeveloped wildland or vegetative fuels. 
 
2.3 Technological Hazards  
Include hazardous materials incidents and nuclear power plant failures. Usually, little or no warning precedes 
incidents involving technological hazards.  
 
Hazardous Materials: Incidents can occur anywhere there is a road, rail line, pipeline or fixed facility storing 
hazardous materials. Virtually the entire county is at risk to an unpredictable incident of some type. 
Fixed Sites: The Emergency Management Department conducts annual review of facilities that store or use 
chemicals that are considered extremely hazardous substances by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 
The Emergency Management Department maintains and updates the hazard analysis and facility emergency 
response information every two years. 
Chemical Stockpile Emergency Preparedness Program: In December 1985, Congress directed the U.S. 
Department of Defense to destroy the United States stockpile of lethal unitary chemicals. Accidents involving 
explosions, fires and spills could have environmental consequences of major proportions, including human 
fatalities, destruction of wildlife and wildlife habitat, destruction of economic resources, contamination of 
water resources and water supplies, and degradation of the quality of life in affected areas.  
Urban Fires: The risk of an urban conflagration has been reduced with the establishment and implementation 
of fire prevention codes and inspection programs. Arson and institutional fires may require major 
commitments of fire suppression resources leaving the community vulnerable to other emergency responses. 
 
2.4 Human-Caused Hazards 
 San Juan County may not be able to prevent a human-caused hazard from happening, but it is well within the 
county’s ability to lessen the likelihood and/or the potential effects of an incident 
 
Transportation Incidents: Involve the interruption or failure of transportation systems, including air, rail, and 
ground vehicles. San Juan County has no public railway, bus, or passenger air transportation. The major U.S 
Highways include 191 and 491 (formerly known as “The devil’s highway” or route 666). State highway 191 
extends from the northern San Juan County line south through Monticello, Blanding, Bluff, and Mexican Water 
on into Arizona. State highway 491 extends from the Colorado State line west through Monticello. State 
highway 163 runs perpendicular to US 191, extending from Montezuma Creek west through Bluff, and then 
southwesterly through Mexican Hat and on to the Arizona state line.  
 
The movement of motorized vehicles in San Juan County is a common everyday occurrence. Due to the 
rural/frontier nature of the county, a majority of our residents depend on vehicular transportation as their 
primary mode of transportation. Due to the frequency of vehicular movement, there are a significant number 
of accidents that occur within the community. In the instance of an isolated incident or a “typical” multi-

77

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

vehicle incident, the normal emergency procedures of the County Sheriff’s Department and Local Police 
Department(s) EMS, and Volunteer Fire & Rescue Departments will address the situation. However, in the 
instance of mass casualties, extended closure of major transportation routes, injuries that exceed the ability of 
local medical providers to provide adequate triage or similar disaster level instances, a more intensive 
response is necessary. If this situation occurs mutual aid agreements with other agencies will be requested. 
 
Civil Unrest: While rare, incidents such as riots, protests, looting and other public displays can have an impact 
on a community. Typically, these incidents can be adequately addressed through normal public safety 
procedures. If an incident of civil unrest rises to a level that warrants a more intensive response from San Juan 
County. The County Emergency Manager with consultation public safety officials may take any measures 
necessary to protect the health, safety, property and general welfare of residents and businesses in the 
community. These situations are unique, very dynamic and can change very quickly. The County Emergency 
Manager is hereby authorized to use all resources to protect the interests of the residents and businesses of 
the county, as allowed by law. Each incident may require a unique response from San Juan County.  
Domestic Terrorism  
Terrorism is the use of force or violence against persons or property in violation of the criminal laws of the 
United States for purposes of intimidation, coercion or ransom. Terrorists often use threats to create fear 
among the public, to try to convince citizens that their government is powerless to prevent terrorism, and to 
get immediate publicity for their causes. The Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) categorizes terrorism in the 
United States as one of two types: domestic terrorism or international terrorism. 

 Domestic terrorism involves groups or individuals whose terrorist activities are directed at elements of 
our government or population without foreign direction. 

 International terrorism involves groups or individuals whose terrorist activities are foreign based 
and/or directed by countries or groups outside the United States or whose activities transcend national 
boundaries.  

 
A terrorist attack can take several forms, depending on the technological means available to the terrorist, the 
nature of the political issue motivating the attack, and the points of weakness of the terrorist's target. 
Bombings are the most frequently used terrorist method in the United States. Other possibilities include an 
attack at transportation facilities, an attack against utilities, other public services or an incident involving 
chemical or biological agents. 
Biological and Chemical Weapons: Biological agents are infectious microbes or toxins used to produce illness 
or death in people, animals or plants. Biological agents can be dispersed as aerosols or airborne particles. 
Terrorists may use biological agents to contaminate food or water because they are extremely difficult to 
detect. Chemical agents kill or incapacitate people, destroy livestock, or ravage crops. Some chemical agents 
are odorless and tasteless and are difficult to detect. They can have an immediate effect (a few seconds to a 
few minutes) or a delayed effect (several hours to several days). 
Regional and National Incidents: The potential exists for an emergency situation or disaster, whether located 
in San Juan County or not, to occur that extends beyond the county boundaries but can have significant 
impact on the community. These regional or national incidents vary in severity and often involve interagency 
efforts. Each incident may require a unique response from San Juan County. 
Utility Outages or Shortages: San Juan County Residents rely on public and private utility companies to satisfy 
their needs.  Temporary or extended utility outages or shortages can cause significant disruptions in the 
operations of essential government services, public and private business operations, medical equipment and 
services, and the daily lives of residents. Although many critical facilities have emergency standby power 
supplies, they are designed for temporary events and subject to disruption or failure. One of the primary 

78

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

concerns in relation to the potential loss of utilities is the harsh climate in our community. San Juan County 
can experience very hot summer conditions and very cold winter weather. Both of these extremes can be life 
threatening in a short period of time; sometimes within just hours. San Juan County will continue to make 
preparations for providing critical government services during a utility outage or shortage.  
 
Communications Disruptions: On a constant basis, advances in communication devices allow people, business 
owners, and government to correspond in faster and more lifelike methods. Along with these improvements 
comes a heavier reliance on communication devices and traditional means of communication are discarded. 
Although providers go to great lengths to ensure reliability, there are instances when these methods are not 
available. Not surprisingly, the likelihood of these methods failing is significantly higher during an emergency 
situation or disaster, especially if the situation involves geologic or seismic hazards. For these reasons, San 
Juan County is working on implementing redundancy in the emergency preparedness communication devices 
used in emergency situations and in the emergency operations center (EOC) in the instance of prolonged loss 
of communication methods. 
 
2.4.1 Hazard Assessment  
San Juan County has conducted an all-hazards assessment of potential vulnerabilities to the county. This 
assessment will assist with prioritization and outlines a direction for planning efforts. San Juan County 
recognizes the pre-disaster mitigation plan developed by San Juan County Emergency Management. This pre-
disaster mitigation plan serves to reduce the county’s vulnerability to natural hazards. The pre-disaster 
mitigation plan is intended to promote sound public policy and protect or reduce the vulnerability of the 
citizens, critical facilities, infrastructure, private property and the natural environment within the region. 
The hazard analysis table below provides information to understand risks and their corresponding likelihood 
and consequences in San Juan County. 
 

 

79

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 

80

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 

81

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 

82

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 

83

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 
 

84

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 

85

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 
 
2.4.2 Mitigation  
Based on the hazard analysis and hazard assessment above, San Juan County has designed mitigation activities 
to reduce or eliminate risks to persons or property and to lessen the actual or potential effects or 
consequences of an incident. These mitigation activities are detailed in the San Juan County Pre-Disaster 
Hazard Mitigation Plan. Mitigation activities may be implemented prior to, during, or after an incident, as 
appropriate, and can be conducted at the federal, state, county, or jurisdictional level. This section outlines 
the mitigation activities at each level of government as they pertain to the San Juan County mitigation strategy 
to reduce exposure to, probability of or potential loss from hazards. The plan is intended to promote sound 
public policy designed to protect citizens, critical facilities, infrastructure, private property and the natural 
environment. 
 
2.4.2.1 Mitigation Planning Process and Coordination  
The San Juan County Emergency Manager is responsible for coordinating the development of the San Juan 
County Pre-Disaster Mitigation Plan.  The county plan is a result of a planning process that involved entities 
from local, city, county, state, and federal partners. Every attempt was made to coordinate other planning 
efforts to reduce duplication of effort. The plan was posted to the Web site upon completion and comments 
were solicited. The plan was also submitted to FEMA region VIII for approval. 
 
 
 

86

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

2.4.2.2Mitigation Goals Identified in the Pre-Disaster Mitigation Plan 

 

87

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 
88

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 
 

89

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 
90

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 
91

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 

92

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 

93

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

94

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 
 

 

 

95

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 
 

96

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

97

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 
98

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

99

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

Section 3 
Concept of Operations 
3.1 Normal Operations                                                                                 
 

 
In the absence of a declared disaster or state of emergency, the emergency response forces of the community 
(EMS, fire, law enforcement and public works) will respond to emergencies within their jurisdictions with the 
authorities vested to them by law and local policy. Mutual aid and shared response jurisdictions are addressed 
through local agreements and do not require a local declaration of a state of emergency to enable them. San 
Juan County Emergency Management monitors local emergencies and provides EOC operational assistance as 
required. Notifications of reportable events are made to the appropriate agencies and warning points. Severe 
weather watches and warnings are relayed to agencies when issued by the National Weather Service. The 
county EOC levels may be escalated without a local declaration of a state of emergency to support local 
agencies in normal response or community emergencies. 
 
3.2 Emergency Operations Plan Implementation  
This plan is continually operational with changes in levels occurring under the following conditions: 

 An incident occurs or is imminent 

 A state of emergency is declared 

  As directed by the County Emergency Manager or designee 
 

3.3 Declaring a Local State of Emergency  
The Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (referred to as the Stafford Act - 42 U.S.C. 
5721 et seq.) authorizes the president to issue major disaster or emergency declarations before or after 
catastrophes occur. Emergency declarations trigger aid that protects property, public health and safety, and 
lessens or averts the threat of an incident becoming a catastrophic incident.  
An incident may start out small and escalate quickly or a major incident may occur at any time. The following 
is an example of steps leading to a disaster declaration.  

 As soon as an incident occurs, San Juan County Emergency Management begins monitoring the 
situation.  

 The EOC may be put on standby or minimally staffed.  

 An initial assessment of damages is provided if available.  
 
When conditions warrant, the San Juan County Emergency Manager, will request a declaration that a local 
state of emergency exists in San Juan County. Under Title 53-2a-208 authorizes the County Commission to 
declare an emergency and is the elected official(s) charged with overall responsibility for the response and 
recovery during a declared local state of emergency. After 30 days, the declaration will expire unless it is 
ratified by the County Commission. Nothing in this section is intended to preclude the declaration of an 

100

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

emergency and the exercise of emergency powers as long as those actions are consistent with the 
requirements of declaring an emergency outlined herein.  
 
The proclamation declaring an emergency situation will be filed with the County Clerk and will include, at a 
minimum, the following:  

 The nature of the emergency  

 The area or areas of the community that are threatened  

 The various conditions which cause the emergency to be declared  

 The anticipated or initial period of the emergency  
 
The declaration will be kept on file with the Clerk Auditor’s office including other supporting documentation of 
the need for a declaration, which will be the official record of the situation and may be used to justify the 
disbursement of disaster assistance funds or a reallocation of available funding to meet the needs of the 
disaster.   
 
The San Juan County EOP will be fully activated upon declaration of a local state of emergency  
Damage assessment updates from the affected areas should follow at regular intervals to the State EOC  
As specific assistance requests are received, San Juan County departments may respond with available 
resources to assist in response, recovery, and mitigation efforts.   
 
The federal disaster law restricts the use of arithmetical formulas or other objective standards as the sole 
basis for determining the need for federal supplemental aid. As a result, FEMA assesses a number of factors to 
determine the severity, magnitude, and impact of a disaster. In evaluating a governor's request for a major 
disaster declaration, a number of primary factors along with other relevant information are considered in 
developing a recommendation to the president for supplemental disaster assistance. Primary factors 
considered include the following:  

 Amount and type of damage (number of homes destroyed or with major damage)  

 Impact on the infrastructure of affected areas or critical facilities  

 Imminent threats to public health and safety  

 Impacts to essential government services and functions  

 Unique capability of federal government  

 Dispersion or concentration of damage  

 Level of insurance coverage in place for homeowners and public facilities  

 Assistance available from other sources (federal, state, local, voluntary organizations)  

 State and local resource commitments from previous, undeclared events  

 Frequency of disaster events over recent time period  

 The very nature of disasters—their unique circumstances, the unexpected timing, and varied impacts—
precludes a complete listing of factors considered when evaluating disaster declaration requests. 
However, the above lists most primary considerations.  

 
3.3.4 Local Government Resources 
Local governments shall use their own resources first in an emergency or disaster situation and may call for 
assistance from San Juan County Emergency Management during events that overwhelm or threaten to 
overwhelm their own response and recovery resources. 
 

101

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

State and Federal relief may be overwhelmed when damage is widespread and severe therefore, the local 
jurisdiction must develop and maintain an ongoing program of mitigation preparedness, response and 
recovery.  
 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) coordinates the Federal government's role the State 
coordinates their role in preparing for, preventing, mitigating the effects of, responding to and recovering 
from all domestic disasters, whether natural or human-caused, including ac of terror. 
 
When required, the county’s declaration will take into account the primary factors required by FEMA for their 
declaration process. 
 
3.5 Emergency Operations Center  
The San Juan County EOC will serve as the county’s coordination center for all disaster response operations it 
is located at 881 E Center Street, Monticello, UT. If a disaster or emergency situation prevents the use of the 
primary facility, an alternate EOC will be activated at the 684 Hideout Way in Monticello in the shared building 
with the City of Monticello.  
 
The EOC serves as a centralized management and command center during an emergency situation or disaster. 
EOC personnel will keep the County Commission updated with all information so decisions and plans can be 
made based on up to date information. An emergency situation is not an ideal time for debate and discussion. 
Therefore, the direction of the County Commission should be implemented without delay and discussion 
should only occur if the safety of responders is in jeopardy.  
 
The Emergency Manager is responsible to ensure that the EOC is properly equipped and that the equipment 
operates correctly. The Emergency Manager will submit an annual budget that indicates the items needed to 
maintain the proper function of the EOC. The Emergency manager shall also seek any grant funding available 
which may assist in purchasing equipment of supplies to successfully operate an EOC. The Emergency 
Manager will maintain an inventory of all EOC equipment and a schedule of replacement and regular 
maintenance. On at least an annual basis, the EOC will be completely assembled and each Emergency 
Response Team will participate in an EOC training exercise. Following the exercise, the list of necessary items 
will be reviewed, updated, and submitted for consideration. 
 
3.5.1 Escalation of Levels in the Emergency Operations Center  
The EOC activation level may be elevated by the Commission, the County Emergency Manager, or their 
designees during any situation where the need for EOC-level coordination is evident. Escalation of levels may 
also extend to the following: 
 
San Juan County Emergency Management may also utilize the EOC in preparation for planned events in which 
EOC-level coordination is needed. If a department recognizes a need for EOC support during pre-event 
planning, a request may be submitted to the Emergency Manager. Examples of planned events may include, 
but are not limited to, protests and demonstrations, political event parades, fairs, concerts, rodeos and 
holiday events. 
 
3.5.2 EOC Levels of Operation  
Emergencies or disasters that can potentially affect San Juan County are divided into three levels of readiness 
to establish emergency operations. These levels are outlined below. 

102

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 
San Juan County is constantly monitoring events within the county. How severe an event is will directly affect 
the level of activation. Increasing or decreasing levels of activation will be directly decided by The San Juan 
County emergency manager. The EOC activation levels provide a means for a centralized response and 
recovery, with operational plans and activities focused on efficiency, quality and quantity of resources. There 
are three levels of activation: 
 

 Level I: Full-Scale Activation. 

 Level II: Limited Activation. 

 Level III: Daily Operations / Monitoring  
 
See below for a concise depiction and summary of the levels of emergencies or disasters and corresponding 
San Juan County Emergency Management EOC operational level. 
 
Levels of Emergencies/Disaster and Corresponding Actions  
 
Full Activation: 24/7 staffing of command, general staff, and ESF agencies as needed for event/incident 
coordination, determined by operational needs. Incidents that overwhelm local response capability; requiring 
county assistance and requiring full activation. Widespread threats to the public safety; large-scale County, 
State and Federal response anticipated. 
 
Limited Activation: Extended staffing with selected command, general staff and ESF agency 
representation as needed. 
 
Monitoring and assessment of incidents: Emergency incident for which local response capabilities are likely 
adequate. Emergency Management staff monitors situations 24/7 
 
3.5.3 Level I – Full-Scale Activation 
 In a full-scale activation, all primary and support ESF agencies under the county plan are notified. San Juan 
County Emergency Management staff and all primary ESFs will report to the county EOC. When an event 
warrants a Level I activation, the EOC will be activated on a 24-hour, 7 day schedule due to the severity of the 
event or an imminent threat. All staff and all ESFs are activated and will be contacted to provide 
representatives at the EOC. ICS is implemented and all sections and branches are activated, the EOC Planning 
Section initiates the incident support planning process to establish operational objectives and priorities. It is 
expected at this level of activation that response and recovery operations will last for an extended period. As 
county resources are exhausted, the state Division of Emergency Management (DEM) will be contacted for 
assistance and the State will then notify FEMA of the response operations and status of needs. 
 
3.5.4 Level II - Limited Activation 
Level II is limited agency activation. Coordinators of primary ESFs that are affected will be notified by San Juan 
County Emergency Management staff to report to the EOC. All other ESFs are alerted and put on standby. All 
agencies involved in the response will be requested to provide a representative to the county EOC. Some ESFs 
may be activated to support response/recovery operations. Emergency Management staff will report to the 
EOC as well as the local agencies involved in the response and recovery. This level can warrant a 24-hour 

103

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

schedule. The ICS system is activated and all sections and branches are activated as required. 
 
3.5.5 Level III – Monitoring  
Level III is typically a monitoring phase in which events are typically handled by jurisdictional response 
agencies. San Juan County Emergency Management Staff monitor and follow-up on situations, threats or 
events and report to the EOC as needed to assess the situation and escalate activation level when necessary. 
Notification will be made to those local agencies and ESFs who would need to take action as part of their 
everyday responsibilities. This level typically involves observation, verification of appropriate action, and 
follow-up by San Juan County Emergency Management staff. Most events can be resolved in a small amount 
of time using small amounts of resources. The day-to-day operations are typically not altered and the 
management structure stays the same. Emergency Management Staff  apprised of the event evaluate the 
situation and, if conditions warrant, appropriate individuals and agencies are alerted and advised of the 
situation and instructed to take appropriate action as part of their everyday responsibilities. At the conclusion 
of the event, the staff verifies completion of the actions taken and document the incident. Incident action 
planning is not necessary, although it may be necessary to provide briefings or meetings for response or 
mitigation efforts for the event. 
 
3.5.5.2 Level III – ICS Forms 
In the event of an incident progressing beyond normal day-to-day operations or elevation in the EOC 
activation an Incident Support Plan (ISP) should be prepared. This ISP should be created as the transition is 
made from initial response to operational periods and incident support objectives are established. The initial 
EOC incident response activities should be documented on an ICS 201 form. 
 
3.5.6 Emergency Support Functions 
 The EOC is organized based on the Incident Command System (ICS) structure, which provides EOC staff with a 
standardized operational structure and common terminology. The EOC is organized into 15 Emergency 
Support Function (ESF) annexes. ESFs are composed of local agencies and voluntary organizations that are 
grouped together to provide needed assistance. 
 
These 15 categories or types of assistance constitute San Juan County ESFs and will serve under a section as 
designated under ICS, within the EOC structure. ESFs, in coordination with San Juan County Emergency 
Management, are the primary mechanism for providing response and recovery assistance to local 
governments through all disaster levels. Assistance types are grouped according to like functions.  

 County agencies and organizations have been designated as primary and support agencies for each ESF 
according to authority, resources and capability to coordinate emergency efforts in the field of each 
specific ESF. 

 Primary agencies, with assistance from one or more support agency, are responsible for coordinating 
the activities of the ESF and ensuring that tasks assigned to the ESF by San Juan County Emergency 
Management are completed successfully. 

 ESF operational autonomy tends to increase as the number and complexity of mission assignments 
increases following an emergency event. However, regardless of circumstance, the ESFs will coordinate 
within the EOC in executing and accomplishing their missions. 

 

Annex Scope Primary Agency Support Agency 

ESF #1- Transportation Safety Road UDOT 

104

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

Transportation Restoration/recovery of 
transportation infrastructure 
Movement restrictions 
Damage and impact assessment 

Department 

ESF #2 
Communications 

Coordination with 
telecommunications and 
information technology 
industries 
Restoration and repair of 
telecommunications 
infrastructure 
Protection, restoration and 
sustainment of county cyber and 
information technology 
resources 
Oversight of communications 
within the county incident 
management and response 
structures 

Communications 
Department,  
IT 

UCA, DTS, South 
Easter Utah 
Association Of 
Local 
Governments 

ESF #3 Public Works 
and Engineering 

Infrastructure protection and 
emergency repair 
Infrastructure restoration 
Engineering services and 
construction management 
Emergency contracting support 
for life-saving and life-sustaining 
services 

Road 
Department 

Local Public 
Works 

ESF #4 Firefighting Coordination of county 
firefighting activities. Support to 
wild-land rural firefighting 
operations 

County Fire Local Fire 
Departments 

ESF #5 Emergency 
Management 

Coordination of incident 
management and response 
efforts 
Issuance of mission assignments 
Resource and human capital  
Incident action planning 
Financial management 

County 
Emergency 
Manager, County 
Administrator, 
County 
Clerk/Auditor, 
County Treasurer 

Neighboring 
Counties, State 
of Utah  

ESF #6 Mass Care Mass Care 
Emergency Assistance 
Disaster Housing 
Human Services 

County EMS, 
Public Health, 
Local Faith Base 
Organizations, 
Health District, 
Local Homeless 
Coordinating 

Red Cross 
State of Utah 

105

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

Committee, 
Aging & Adult 
Services 

ESF #7 Resource 
Support 

Comprehensive county incident 
logistics planning, management 
and sustainment capability 
Resource support (facility space, 
office equipment and supplies, 
contracting services, nutrition 
assistance etc.) 

County 
Emergency 
Manager, County 
Administrator, 
County 
Clerk/Auditor, 

State of Utah  

ESF #8 Public Health Public Health 
Food Safety and Security 
Medical 
Mental Health Services 
Mass fatality management 

County Public 
Health, EMS, 
Hospitals, Clinics, 
Health District, 
UNHS 

State of Utah  

ESF #9 Search and 
Rescue 

 Life-saving assistance 
Search and rescue operations 

San Juan Sheriff’s 
Office 

State of Utah 

ESF #10 Hazardous 
Materials 

Oil and hazardous materials 
response 
Environmental short and long-
term clean up 

County EM,  
County Fire 

State of Utah  

ESF #11 Agricultural 
and Natural 
Resources 

Animal and plant disease and 
pest response 
Safety and wellbeing of 
household pets and livestock 
Natural Resources 

San Juan Sheriff’s 
Office, San Juan 
County 
Conservation 
District 

Agriculture and 
Natural 
Resources  

ESF #12 Energy Energy infrastructure 
assessment, repair and 
restoration 
Energy industry utilities 
coordination 
Energy forecast 

Local Utilities  

ESF #13 Law 
Enforcement 

Facility and resource security 
Security planning and technical 
resource assistance 
Public safety-Law Enforcement 
and security support 
Support to access, traffic, and 
crowd control  

San Juan Sheriff’s 
Office 

Local Law 
Enforcement, 
Utah Highway 
Patrol, National 
Guard 

ESF #14 Long Term 
Recovery 

Social and economic community 
impact assessment 
Long term community recovery 
assistance to local governments, 
and the private sector  
Analysis and review of 

San Juan County State of Utah,  
FEMA 

106

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

mitigation program 
implementation 
Historic properties protection 
and restoration 
Cultural Resources 

ESF #15 Public 
Information  

Provide timely, accurate and 
useful information and 
protective action instructions to 
San Juan County residents in 
times of emergency; and in  
Provide Emergency 
Preparedness Educational 
Materials 
 

County 
Administrator or 
Designee  

State Of Utah  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

107

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

3.5.7 EOC Coordination 

 
  
 
 
 
 

108

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

San Juan County Emergency Management is responsible for emergency operations and coordination before, 
during and after an event. Resource management and policy coordination take place in the EOC. San Juan 
County’s response to and recovery from an emergency and/or pending disaster is carried out through the 
County Emergency Management Organization. ESFs are grouped by the types of assistance provided. Each ESF 
is led by a primary agency or agencies and is supported by other county agencies and volunteer organizations. 
The principles of this plan conform to the National Incident Management System (NIMS), which provides a 
core set of common concepts, principles, terminology and technologies. The EOC will especially be needed 
when incidents cross disciplinary boundaries or involve complex scenarios.  
 
The EOC utilizes ICS to develop a structured method for identifying priorities and objectives to support an 
incident or event. These priorities serve as guidance for the allocation of resources and enable the EOC to 
coordinate requests. The EOC utilizes ICS to manage ESF coordination. The use of distinct titles for ICS 
positions allows for filling ICS positions with the most qualified individuals rather than by seniority. 
Standardized position titles are useful when requesting qualified personnel. Local and county agencies and 
responders may have various roles and responsibilities throughout the duration of an emergency. Therefore, it 
is particularly important that the local command structure established to support response and recovery 
efforts maintain significant flexibility in order to expand and contract as the situation changes. Typical duties 
and roles may also vary depending on the severity of impacts, size of the incident(s), and availability of local 
resources. It is imperative to develop and maintain depth within the command structure and response 
community. 
 
3.5.8 EOC Support Planning  
The planning section is responsible for developing the ISP and facilitating planning meetings. EOC support 
plans are developed for a specified operational period, which may range from a few hours to 24 hours. The 
operational period is determined by establishing an initial set of priority actions to be performed. A reasonable 
timeframe is then determined for the accomplishment of those actions. EOC support plans should be 
sufficiently detailed to guide EOC elements in implementing the priority actions but do not need to be 
complex. EOC support plans provide designated EOC personnel with knowledge of the objectives to be 
achieved and the steps required for their achievement. EOC support plans also provide a basis for measuring 
achievement of objectives and overall system performance. Planning is an important management tool that 
involves the following: 
 
3.6 After Action Reports Prepared  
As immediate threats to life and property subside and the need for sustained ESF operations diminishes, the 
debriefing of responsible individuals and the documentation of lessons learned will begin. Resulting 
information will be consolidated and reviewed by San Juan County Emergency Management personnel and a 
written report will be prepared. Matters requiring corrective action will be forwarded to San Juan County 
Emergency Management planning staff to be addressed as needed. 
 
3.7 Notification and Warning  
San Juan County response agencies are dispatched by the San Juan County Sheriff’s Office a 24/7 Dispatch 
Center. San Juan Dispatch is responsible for after-hours notification of the Emergency Management staff, 
responders. The County Commission and Emergency Manager may request notifications and warnings take 
place if conditions warrant. Conditions to be considered include threat to life and property and safety of the 
responders. The Dispatch Center is equipped with an emergency generator, computers and uninterrupted 

109

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

power supplies. For redundancy there is an alternate dedicated dispatch space located in the EOC at 881 E 
Center Street, Monticello Utah.  
 
Section 4 
ORGANIZATION AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Local and county agencies and response partners may have various roles and responsibilities throughout the 
duration of an emergency. Therefore, it is particularly important that the local command structure established 
to support response and recovery efforts maintain significant flexibility in order to expand and contract as the 
situation changes. Typical duties and roles may also vary depending on the severity of impacts, size of the 
incident(s), and availability of local resources. Each agency and department is responsible for ensuring that 
critical staff are identified and trained at levels that enable effective Implementation of existing response 
plans, procedures and policies. Agencies and organizations tasked by this plan with specific emergency 
management responsibilities should complete the following: 
 
Maintain current internal personnel notification rosters and standard operating procedures to perform 
assigned tasks (notifications, staffing, etc.). 

 Negotiate, coordinate and prepare mutual aid agreements, as appropriate. 

 Analyze need and determine specific communication resource needs and requirements. 

 Provide the San Juan County Emergency Manager with current contact information. Identify potential 
sources of additional equipment and supplies. 

 Provide for continuity of operations by taking action to: 
o Ensure lines of succession for key management positions are established to ensure continuous 

leadership and authority for emergency actions and decisions in emergency conditions. 
o Protect records, facilities, and organizational equipment deemed essential for sustaining 

government functions and conducting emergency operations. 
o Ensure, if practical, that alternate operating locations are available should the primary location 

suffer damage, become inaccessible, or require evacuation. 
o Protect emergency response staff. Actions include: 

Obtain, as required, personnel protective equipment for responders 
o Provide security at facilities 
o Rotate staff or schedule time off to prevent fatigue and stress 
o Make stress counseling available 
o Encourage staff to prepare family disaster plans including arrangements for the 

safety and welfare of emergency worker’s families if sheltering is required  
 
The following are county agencies tasked with primary or support responsibilities as detailed by the 
Emergency Operations Plan. More specific assignments can be found in the emergency support function 
section and incident annex appendices to this EOP. 
 
The Operations Section will be determined by the emergency or incident, it could be Sheriff’s Office, Fire, EMS 
or Public Works. In the event of an emergency situation or disaster, the Operations Section Chief is hereby 
authorized to use all authority provided by federal, state, and local law to protect the lives and property of 
citizens.  
4.1 Operations Section:  

110

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 Provide regular updates to the Emergency Manager or designee about the safety conditions of the 
community  

 Provide advice to the Emergency Manager or designee about actions that should be taken to protect 
life and property in the county  

 Coordinate public safety efforts of local, county, state, and federal law enforcement from a local 
government perspective  

 Identify and provide emergency services to special needs residents including the elderly and physically 
challenged persons  

 
4.2 Logistics Section 
 In addition to the assigned daily duties the Road Department shall have specific responsibilities during an 
emergency situation or disaster:  

 Complete tasks as assigned by the Emergency Manager or designee 

 Provide the Emergency Manager or designee with an initial damage assessment of municipal 
infrastructure and facilities including all roads and bridges.  

 Identify and properly indicate traffic control and evacuation routes, and manage all other 
transportation-related issues in cooperation with the Sheriff’s Department, including procurement of 
fuel for municipal and emergency vehicles.  

 Provide equipment and resources as assigned by the Emergency Manager or designee 

 Provide assistance to other departments with the compilation of emergency-related financial 
information.  

 Assist in identifying sources of emergency funds if departmental budgets are exceeded.  

 Coordinate emergency-related purchases and expenditures.  

 Coordinate the disposal of solid waste and other tasks to ensure a clean and sanitary environment in 
the community during an emergency situation or disaster.  

 
The Road Department shall work with the Emergency Manager to create a complete list of municipal 
resources that could be used in the case of an emergency situation or disaster. The list will include items 
already owned by the county and those needed to provide effective emergency response and mitigation. The 
Public Works Director will also coordinate mitigation efforts with the Emergency Manager in an effort to 
prevent disasters or minimize their impact.  
 
4.3 Finance and Administration Section  
In addition to the assigned daily duties, the County Administrator/County Clerk/Treasurer/Recorder shall have 
specific responsibilities during an emergency situation or disaster. These duties include:  

 Complete tasks as assigned by the Emergency Manager or designee 

 With the assistance of the County Recorder, identify and preserve essential records of all local 
emergency situations. In order to create final reports, all records, messages and logs will be compiled 
and submitted to the Emergency Manager following deactivation of the EOC.  

 The provision of assistance to other departments with the compilation of emergency-related financial 
information including all accounting/reimbursement items.  

 Assistance in identifying sources of emergency funds if departmental budgets are exceeded.  

 Coordination of emergency-related contracts, purchases and expenditures.  
 

111

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

The Finance and Administration Section shall work with the Emergency Manager to create an emergency 
finance plan for review by the County Administrator and consideration by the County Commission. The plan 
will include emergency contingencies for emergency operations, payroll and hospitality during emergencies 
and other emergency finance-related matters.  
 
4.4 Planning and Intel / Community Development Section 
In addition to the assigned daily duties, the Planning and Intel Section shall have specific responsibilities during 
an emergency situation or disaster.  

 Complete tasks as assigned by the Emergency Manager or designee  

 With the assistance of the Building Official, conduct initial damage assessment for all affected structure 
and determine if structures are inhabitable or if building should remain unoccupied until further 
assessment can be completed.  

 Provide expertise and recommendations for reconstruction, demolition, condemnation and structural 
mitigation during emergency recovery and response.  

 Provide maps, plans, and other information that will allow rapid identification of municipal 
infrastructure, roads, neighborhoods, and other specific locations.  

 Create a streamlined permit process for disaster recovery efforts.  

 Coordinate land use, environmental protection, and economic development mitigation issues during 
emergency recovery.  

 
Planning and Intel / Community Development Section will review the development ordinances of the county 
to ensure that all practicable regulations that will eliminate or reduce the impact of disasters have been 
included and are implemented.  
 
4.5 Authority and Role of Support Staff 
In additional to normal department functions, each department in the county will have specific emergency 
functions. Under the direction of the Department Head, each department is responsible for developing and 
maintaining its own emergency management procedures. These procedures will be coordinated with the 
Emergency Manager and shall consider the elements of the EOP. In any instance where a department 
procedure is in conflict with the provisions of this document, the provisions of this document shall take 
precedent. Each Department Head is responsible to educate their employees on the procedures of the EOP 
and the emergency management procedures of the department.  
 
With assistance from the Emergency Manager, each department will conduct training and preparation 
exercises that will familiarize employees with the EOP and the procedures of the department. In addition to 
departmental training, designated employees elected and appointed officials of San Juan County shall 
complete a minimum of the ICS-100- and ICS-700 training in the National Incident Management System 
(NIMS). Some employees will be required to complete additional training depending on their emergency role 
and responsibilities.  
 
4.6 Direction and Control 
 Notwithstanding the contents of this chapter, during an emergency situation or disaster, the elected official(s) 
will be available to interact with constituents and forward community concerns, provide emergency policy 
direction and enact emergency legislation.  
 

112

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

General Responsibilities of County Departments Under the direction of the Emergency Manager, each 
department will create internal emergency management standard operating procedures (SOPs) which are 
consistent with the provisions of this EOP.  
 
The SOPs for each department will include, at a minimum:  

 Specific departmental and individual responsibilities and tasks coordinated with other departments in 
the county to avoid redundancy and enhance cooperation  

 Specific education and training programs and exercises that will result in adequate knowledge of 
responsibilities and tasks and the ability to perform such without hesitation in an emergency situation  

 A complete list of all department resources that could be of benefit in an emergency situation or 
disaster and information on all personnel trained to utilize the resources of the department  

 Specific procedures for inter-department communication and reporting to the Emergency Manager or 
designee. These procedures will include notification and employee activation methods, suspension of 
normal business activities, release of non-essential employees, evacuation procedures and similar 
communication challenges  

 A checklist identifying the working order or damage to all department assets  

 An updated line of succession for key management positions to ensure continuous leadership and 
authority for emergency actions and decisions in emergency conditions  

 Methods to protect records, facilities, and organizational equipment deemed essential for sustaining 
government functions and conducting emergency operations  

 A budget plan to obtain necessary equipment to protect employees in an emergency situation and 
funding to rotate staff to prevent fatigue and stress, and make stress counseling available  

 
Coordination with Outside Agencies and External Parties If it is determined that County resources have been 
exhausted or that the County is not able to adequately respond to a disaster, assistance from outside agencies 
will be requested. Requests for assistance from outside agencies and/or external parties shall be consistent 
with all negotiated mutual aid agreements; memorandums of understanding; established local, state, and 
federal emergency assistance protocols; and any other governing agreements. In the absence of an effective 
agreement, the County Attorney shall negotiate expense and reimbursement agreements for emergency 
consideration by the County Commission. The Emergency Manager, with assistance from the County 
Administrator shall determine the extent of aid necessary to address the emergency situation or disaster. The 
following sections identify the general roles of federal, state, county, nonprofit, and other potential partners 
in an emergency situation. The roles and responsibilities listed herein are for reference only in recognition that 
San Juan County has no jurisdiction or authority to compel adherence to the responsibilities listed herein 
 
State Agencies Consistent with the emergency declarations of the County Commissioners, the Emergency 
Manager may choose to request assistance from the State of Utah when local resources have been exhausted 
or the significance of the emergency situation or disaster warrants a request for services beyond the capacity 
of San Juan County. Requests for assistance will be forwarded to the Utah Department of Emergency 
Management through the Liaison Officer, who can orchestrate outside resources and materials to meet the 
situation at hand.  
 
4.7 Utah Division of Emergency Management  

 Coordinate the State’s response to disasters.  

113

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 Supports San Juan County Emergency Management efforts when local resources are fully committed 
and found to be inadequate to cope with the situation and when a particular capability or resource is 
required and not available.  

 Contact the Federal Government for assistance if the State is unable to fulfill the request.  
 
4.8 Federal Agencies/Federal Emergency Management Agency  

 Coordinate the federal government’s role in preparing for, preventing, mitigating the effects of, 
responding to, and recovering from all domestic disasters, whether natural or human-caused, including 
acts of terror.  

 When warranted, federal agencies will provide assistance to San Juan County through established 
protocols and recognized programs.  

 
National Weather Service  

 Issue severe weather watches and warnings.  
 
4.9 Non-governmental Organizations/American Red Cross  
Immediately following a disaster, the American Red Cross (ARC) provides emergency shelter, food, medicine, 
and first aid to provide for basic human needs. ARC workers distribute food and home clean-up items 
throughout the affected areas in an effort to enable victims of disasters to resume living independently. ARC 
also helps when all other resources, such as insurance benefits and government assistance, are not available 
or are inadequate to meet disaster-related needs. ARC aid is provided on an individual basis, based on verified 
disaster-caused needs, and, at no cost. ARC disaster relief work also includes the following:  

 Feeding emergency workers  

 Referring those affected by disaster to other available resources  

 Handling inquiries from concerned family members outside the disaster area  

 Providing disaster-related mental health services and specialized counseling  

 Providing staff to work daily at the EOC in support of mass care and sheltering activities  

 Providing subject-matter expertise on regulations, policies, and all relevant ARC issues, including 
general mass care planning, preparedness, response, and recovery activities as ARC-specific activities in 
these areas  

 Providing information on current ARC mass care activities as required  

 Supporting reunification efforts through its Safe and Well website and in coordination with 
government entities as appropriate  

 Provide public health and safety, and lessen or avert the threat of an incident becoming a 
catastrophic incident.  
External Parties  

 
Because each emergency situation or disaster is different, there is a wide array of external parties that may be 
asked for assistance. The parties listed below are not intended to be a complete list, but are included herein as 
a resource and reference.  
 
4.10 General Public 
The general public is responsible for their individual and family disaster preparedness. Each family should be 
prepared to survive and provide for basic human needs, for at least two weeks after a disaster, with little 
outside assistance.  

114

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 
4.11 Business and Industry  
Businesses and Industries based in San Juan County are responsible for the development of their own 
Emergency Operating Plan and Continuity of Operations Plan. Business and industry should be prepared to 
survive the immediate consequences of disasters, initially take care of on-site employees, and take necessary 
steps to ensure the long-term viability of their organization.  
 
4.12 County 
Commission’s Office: The Commission is responsible for ensuring the public safety and welfare of the people 
of that jurisdiction. Specifically, they provide strategic guidance and resources during preparedness, response, 
and recovery efforts. Emergency management, including preparation and training for effective response, is a 
core obligation of local leaders. Chief elected or appointed officials must have a clear understanding of their 
roles and responsibilities for successful emergency management and response. At times, these roles may 
require providing direction and guidance to constituents during an incident, but their day-to-day activities do 
not focus on emergency management and response. On an ongoing basis, elected and appointed officials may 
be called upon to help shape or modify laws, policies, and budgets to aid preparedness efforts and to improve 
emergency management and response capabilities. 
 
4.13 Delegation of Authority  
If the County Commission determines that all or portions of the Incident Management should be managed by 
a third party, a specific Delegation of Authority shall be negotiated and executed in written form by the 
County Commission or designee and the responsible official of the proposed managing entity. Transfer of 
authority may occur through a documented transfer of all or part of the operational command but shall be 
supported by a specific written Delegation of Authority. 
 
Section 5 
DIRECTION, CONTROL, AND COORDINATION 
 The emergency response forces of the community (EMS, fire, law enforcement and public works, public 
health) are the primary forces of the county in response to community emergencies and disasters.  
 
When the local emergency response forces are unable to meet the immediate demands of the event or 
require EOC functions, the EOC will be activated to the appropriate level. San Juan County Emergency 
Management coordinates resources to support response to major events when required. The County 
Emergency Manager, in collaboration with the County Commission, will focus on a declaration of a local state 
of emergency when county resources are inadequate.  
 
If the emergency exceeds locally available resources of the emergency response forces, San Juan County will 
request mutual aid under the statewide mutual aid agreement. The County Emergency Manager may also 
request state assistance from DEM, which is the state agency charged with coordinating the State of Utah’s 
response to disasters.  
 
Coordination of the EOP components will be as follows: 

 This promulgated EOP is effective immediately upon approval and implementation. 

 All departments, agencies and organizations involved in the implementation of this EOP will be 
organized, equipped and trained to perform all designated responsibilities contained in this plan and it 
is implementing instructions for preparedness, response and recovery activities. 

115

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 All organizations are responsible for the development and maintenance of their own internal operating 
and notification procedures. 

 All responding organizations are responsible for filling any important vacancies; recalling personnel 
from leave, if appropriate; and alerting those who are absent due to other duties or assignments. 

 Unless directed otherwise, existing organization/agency communications systems and frequencies will 
be employed. 

 Unless directed otherwise, the release of information to the public or media will be handled through 
the county's joint information system, using the concepts outlined in Emergency Support Function 
(ESF) #15 – Public Information. 

 Personnel designated to the EOC will make prior arrangements to ensure that their families are 
provided for in the event of an emergency to ensure a prompt, worry-free response and subsequent 
duty. 
 

At the EOC, organizational and agency representatives will: 

 Report to EOC check-in immediately upon arrival for an update on the situation and to confirm 
table/telephone assignments.  

 Provide name, agency and contact information on EOC staffing chart. 

 Ensure adequate 24/7 staffing for long-term EOC activations.  

 Ensure that their departments/agencies are kept constantly informed of the situation, including major 
developments, decisions and requirements.  

 Maintain coordination with other appropriate organizations/agencies.  

 Thoroughly brief incoming relief personnel and inform the EOC appropriate section chief of the 
changeover prior to departing. The briefing will include, at a minimum, information on what has 
happened, problems encountered, actions pending, and the location and phone number of the person 
being relieved. 

 
The safety of both the affected population and response or recovery personnel will be a high priority 
throughout an emergency. All actions contemplated will consider safety prior to implementing any decision, 
and safety will be constantly monitored during the operation itself. 
 
5.1 Rapid Damage Assessment 
Is a rapid assessment that takes place within hours after an incident and focuses on lifesaving needs, imminent 
hazards, and critical lifelines. 
 
5.2 Preliminary Damage Assessment 
Is conducted within the framework of a declaration process and identifies and affixes a dollar amount to 
damages. The preliminary damage assessment assists the Commission in determining resources available and 
additional needs that may be required. Damage assessments are to be conducted in areas affected by the 
disaster and relayed to the EOC through the call center. Cities working with San Juan County Emergency 
Management assemble assessments in the EOC environment.  
 
A preliminary damage assessment team may be composed of personnel from FEMA, the state emergency 
management agency, county and local officials, and the U.S. Small Business Administration. The team's work 
begins with reviewing the types of damage or emergency costs incurred by the units of government, and the 
impact to critical facilities, such as public utilities, hospitals, schools and fire and police departments.  

116

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 
They will also look at the effect on individuals and businesses, including the amount of damage and the 
number of people displaced as well as the threat to health and safety caused by the event. Additional data 
from the American Red Cross may also be reviewed. During the assessment, the team will collect estimates of 
the expenses and damages compiled by the EOC.  
 
This information can then be used by the governor to support a declaration of a state of emergency request 
that will outline the cost of response efforts, such as emergency personnel overtime, other emergency 
services shortfalls, community damage and citizenry affected, and criteria to illustrate that the needed 
response efforts are beyond state and local recovery capabilities. The information gathered during the 
assessment will help the governor certify that the damage exceeds state and local resources. 
 
5.3 Response Procedures 
 San Juan County Emergency Management will monitor impending emergencies and actual occurrences. If the 
readiness level indicates, the San Juan County Emergency Management staff will notify any key response 
organizations. When events are such that normal response procedures and/or local resources are inadequate, 
the San Juan County Emergency Manager will direct the operations of the EOC and activate the appropriate 
response personnel.  
 
For those situations where response is beyond the capability of San Juan County due to the severity or the 
need for special equipment or resources, the county will declare a State of Emergency and request assistance 
from the State through DEM. For such, the governor may declare a state of emergency activating state 
assistance Title 53-2a-206. Further, where response is beyond the capability of the state and county, the 
governor will request assistance from the federal government.  
 
Title 53-2a-208 authorizes San Juan County to declare a state of emergency within its boundaries. All executive 
proclamations or resolutions shall indicate the nature of the emergency, the area or areas (including 
countywide) threatened or involved, and the conditions creating the threat or emergency. The contents of 
such proclamations or resolutions shall be promptly disseminated to the public and filed with the county clerk. 
Copies shall be maintained in the San Juan County Emergency Management office and the county attorney’s 
office.  
 
The EOC serves as the central location for coordination of resources and information sharing activities. When 
the EOC is fully activated, it will be staffed by the county’s emergency management staff and personnel from 
each of the emergency support functions that are activated. Each ESF will designate a lead who will direct that 
ESF operation. These individuals will report to the County Emergency Manager. Emergency response actions 
may be undertaken and coordinated on-scene or at the County EOC, depending on the severity of the 
impending or actual situation. The decision to escalate the level of activation will be made by the San Juan 
County Emergency Manager in conjunction with field command staff. The priorities of response will focus on 
life safety; then basic survival issues (water, food, basic medical care, shelter); restoration of the community’s 
vital infrastructures (water/waste systems, electric, phones, roads); clean up and emergency repairs; and then 
recovery.  
 
When the county requires shelter facilities, ESF #6 will be notified to coordinate sheltering operations. The 
Joint Information Center (JIC) will organize notifications to the public, business community, and other parties 
of developments and activities via all available communication systems. Local resources will be utilized fully 

117

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

before requesting mutual aid or state/federal assistance. If county resources are overwhelmed and become 
inadequate to cope with an emergency, the county will request mutual aid or state assistance.  
 
San Juan County is a participant in the Statewide Mutual Aid Act. All requests for mutual aid and State/Federal 
assistance will be coordinated by the county EOC and forwarded to the state EOC. The State liaison will assist 
the county with appropriate procedures to accomplish these efforts. 
 
5.4 Response Recovery  
County Emergency and the Road Department personnel, volunteers, humanitarian organizations, and other 
private interest groups provide emergency assistance required to protect the public's health and safety and to 
meet immediate human needs.  
 
The county EOC will conduct a preliminary damage assessment immediately after a disaster occurs. This 
assessment shall identify resources required to respond and recover from the disaster. This will form the basis 
for the request of state and federal assistance. ESF agencies shall report to the county EOC as their first 
priority. They will prioritize their needs as quickly as possible accordingly: 
 

1. Life Safety 
2. Property Preservation Environmental Preservation.  

 
An important success factor is the ability of the County to efficiently and effectively access and analyze the 
level and magnitude of damage resulting from an emergency situation and how quickly recovery efforts are 
underway. Early assessments are important in order for the Incident Commander to evaluate the potential 
impact on the community and the socioeconomic system of San Juan County. The damage assessment will 
also determine the declared level of emergency and whether outside resources are necessary. 
 
 Initial damage assessment will be focused on critical life safety facilities such as hospitals, roads and bridges, 
public safety buildings, and similar locations. If more detailed assessments are necessary to determine the 
status of these facilities, a concentrated effort will be placed on this task. Where possible, pictures or 
videotape media will be used in compiling the preliminary damage assessment. State, and federal teams may 
be dispatched to assist in completing the damage assessment if the preliminary damage assessment indicates 
that the damage is severe and widespread or if a financial estimate (best completed by experienced 
personnel) is necessary.  
 
In some instances, a walk-through inspection may be required. A walk-through inspection involves a structure-
by-structure damage assessment, which will be completed by county/city building inspectors who may engage 
the assistance of county and state inspectors.  
 
Determining the extent and level of damage is important in supporting a disaster declaration. County records, 
appraisals, real estate records and other means may be used to determine monetary damage and to assess 
economic injury. 
 
5.5 Incident Reporting  
During an emergency, situation reports should be forwarded to the EOC as quickly as they become available. 
The information provided in the initial and subsequent reports should outline a sequential record of actions 
taken from the point of first response through restoration activities. Although the degree of detail will vary 

118

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

with the type and severity of the incident, reports should include enough detail to create an accurate record of 
the emergency. The information should be consistent, non-inflammatory, and complete. In general, initial 
situation reports should include:  

 The location and nature or degree of the damage  

 The anticipated economic impact on the community  

 The type of response actions necessary to address the situation and if San Juan County is capable of 
providing the assistance or if supplemental state and federal assistance is needed  

 
All members of the EOC staff will maintain and complete an ICS Form 214 Activity log. This process may be 
repeated several times to allow the Incident Commander to modify and coordinate the response as conditions 
change.  
 
5.6 Reports and Record Keeping  
During a declared emergency, an accurate record of conditions, expenses, actions, and mitigation must be 
maintained at all times. Although state and federal agencies may assist San Juan County or retain redundant 
records, they will often rely on the initial assessment and situation reports generated at the local level. These 
documents will be important in the identification of state and federal financial assistance, declaration of a 
state or national emergency as well as for incident review and mitigation.  
 
Federal Records: The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) is responsible for coordinating and 
administering all federal disaster relief programs subsequent to a presidential declaration. The Federal 
Coordinating Officer will establish a field office in the disaster area to administer disaster relief programs 
according to Public Law 93-288, the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance, and the Code 
of Federal Regulations, Title 44, Part 206. All contracts must follow the procurement guidelines found in Title 
44 of the Code of Federal Regulations Part 13.36. 6.4.3.2.  
 
State Records: The Governor’s Authorized Representative is responsible to execute all necessary documents 
on behalf of the State of Utah for state and federal disaster assistance including the certification of any 
applications for public assistance. In addition, the Governor’s Authorized Representative will provide guidance 
and assistance to city officials involved in the preparation and maintenance of their required reports and 
records. 
 
5.7 Post Assessment Communication and Reporting  
Following the initial damage assessment and implementation of the appropriate and measured response, 
communication between the various Emergency Response Teams is critical. It is during this period that plans 
are established to return the county to a state of normalcy and residents are allowed to engage in the 
activities of daily life. Each Emergency Response Team is assigned to a specific and important element of 
emergency management and is responsible to report their findings to the Incident Commander in a timely and 
complete fashion.  
 
The Incident Commander will organize a meeting between Emergency Response Team leaders to discuss the 
most current status of the incident and the existing efforts of San Juan County. At these meetings, suggestions 
and analysis for addressing particular issues may be provided to the Emergency Manager. Following the 
meetings, new instructions and direction will be provided to team leaders and future meetings times will be 
scheduled.  

119

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 
Requesting State and Federal Resources Requests for assistance will be forwarded to the Liaison of the Utah 
Division of Emergency Management from the County Emergency Manager or designee. When County 
resources are exhausted or capabilities are unable to meet the need. The Utah Division of Emergency 
Management can orchestrate and bring to bear outside resources and materials to meet the situation. The 
State of Utah is able to contact the federal government for assistance if it is unable to fill the request.  
 
5.8 Determination of Recovery Strategy  
Each emergency situation or disaster is unique and an appropriate recovery strategy is highly dependent on 
the damage that occurs during the emergency. The general concept for San Juan County recovery operations 
is based upon a coordinated effort of county, state, federal, and private resources during the recovery phase. 
In some instances, outside assistance may not be necessary and in a more catastrophic situation, significant 
federal resources may be needed.  
 
The Emergency Manager, with consultation with the County Administrator, County Commission, and outside 
officials will create an appropriate and measured recovery strategy. The strategy will include cost estimates, 
equipment needed to complete the work, anticipated staff hours, a projected time line, and any other 
information necessary to ensure there is a clear scope of work and obligations. 
 
5.9 Continuity of Government  
Continuity of government is an essential function of emergency management and is vital during a community 
emergency or disaster situation. All levels of government (federal, state, and local) share a constitutional 
responsibility to preserve life and property of its citizenry. Local continuity of government is defined as the 
preservation and maintenance of the local civil government ability to carry out its constitutional 
responsibilities. Ordinances, administrative rules, and departmental procedures address continuity of 
government in San Juan County.  
 
The County Administrator is appointed to provide oversight to the administrative functions of the county. 
Under the direction of the County Administrator the Emergency Manager will be assigned to administer the 
emergency management program of San Juan County. The Emergency Manager will complete all training 
necessary to function as an effective Emergency Manager and recommend all training, purchases, and other 
actions necessary to prepare the community for a potential emergency situation or disaster.  
 
Section 6 
DISASTER INTELLIGENCE 
 Disaster intelligence relates to collecting, analyzing and disseminating information and analyses that describe 
the nature and scope of hazards and their impacts. Intelligence and information sharing in the EOC is 
important, especially for each emergency support function (ESF) that is activated. It will be vital in evaluation 
of ESF resources, capabilities and shortfalls (for example, availability of trained personnel, equipment and 
supplies) and will help to determine the level of assistance that is needed, according to each ESF group. This 
information will become part of the planning and response process as ESF shortfalls are relayed to the county 
EOC command staff.  
 
ESF #5 - Emergency Management is responsible for establishing procedures for coordination of overall 
information and planning activities in the EOC. The EOC supports local emergency response and recovery 
operations, provides a nerve center for collection and dissemination of information to emergency 

120

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

management agencies in order to qualify for state and federal assistance. It also gauges required commitment 
of resources, and supports other emergency response organizations in their assigned roles.  
 
Disaster intelligence incorporates essential elements of information, which include but not limited to the 
following: 

 Information element 

 Specific requirements 

 Collection method 

 Responsible element 

 Deliverables 
 
 
The Rapid assessment includes all immediate response activities that are directly linked to preliminary damage 
assessment operations in order to determine life-saving and life-sustaining needs. It is a systematic method 
for acquiring life-threatening disaster intelligence after a disaster has occurred. In an event that occurs 
without warning, this assessment must be conducted, at least initially, with county resources. This assessment 
will lay the foundation for determining immediate response efforts and provide adequate local government 
response. Coordinated and timely assessments allow for prioritization of response activities, allocation of 
resources, criteria for requesting mutual aid and state and federal assistance.  
 
San Juan County Emergency Management staff monitors events 24/7, which provides immediate information 
management. The county will coordinate preliminary damage assessments following any event where disaster 
intelligence is needed. This assessment involves teamwork and requires personnel who are in place and know 
their responsibilities. This assessment will be organized for information flow to the Joint Information Center 
(JIC).  
 
Assessments are accomplished in three phases: 

 Rapid assessment, which takes place within hours and focuses on life-saving needs, hazards, and 
critical lifelines  

 Preliminary damage assessment, reviewed by legal authority, which affixes a dollar amount to damage 

 Combined verification, which includes a detailed inspection of damage to individual sites by specialized 
personnel  

 
Development of preliminary assessment procedures will provide guidance to all participating agencies that will 
be involved in the process. Procedures will include: 

 Development of a county profile  

 Sectoring the county and performing an assessment by sector 

 Look at county staffing patterns and possible resource needs 

 Develop communication procedures 

 Testing and exercising  
 
Development of preliminary assessment forms will assist pre-identified personnel as they collect intelligence. 
These checklists will ensure uniformity for information gathered, disseminated and collected. 
 

121

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

Section 7 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 Emergency communications is defined as the ability of emergency responders to exchange information via 
data, voice and video. Emergency response at all levels of government must have interoperable and seamless 
communications to manage emergencies, establish command and control, maintain situational awareness, 
and function under a common operating picture for a broad spectrum of incidents. Emergency 
communications consists of three primary elements: 

 Operability - The ability of emergency responders to establish and sustain communications in support 
of the operation.  

 Interoperability - The ability of emergency responders to communicate among jurisdictions, disciplines 
and levels of government using a variety of communication mediums. System operability is required 
for system interoperability. 

 Continuity of communications - The ability of emergency response agencies to maintain 
communications in the event of damage to or destruction of the primary infrastructure. 
 

7.1 Common Operating Picture 
 A common operating picture is established and maintained by the use of integrated systems for 
communication, information management, intelligence and information sharing. This allows a continuous 
update of data during an incident and provides a common framework that covers the incident life cycle across 
jurisdictions and disciplines.  
 
A common operating picture accessible across jurisdictions and functional agencies should serve the following 
purposes: 

 Allow incident managers at all levels to make effective, consistent decisions. 

 Ensure consistency at all levels of incident management.  
 
Critical aspects of local incident management are as follows: 

 Effective communications 

 Information management 
 
Information and intelligence sharing a common operating picture and systems interoperability provide the 
information necessary to complete the following: 

 Formulate and disseminate indications and warnings 

 Formulate, execute, and communicate operational decisions 

 Prepare for potential requirements and requests supporting incident management activities 

 Develop and maintain overall awareness and understanding of an incident within and across 
jurisdictions  

 
An Emergency Operations Center uses a combination of networks to disseminate critical information that 
constitutes a common operating picture, including the following: 

 Indications and warnings 

 Incident notifications 

 Public communications  
 

122

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

Notifications are made to the appropriate jurisdictional levels and to private sector and nongovernmental 
organizations through the mechanisms defined in the Emergency Operations Plan, Continuity of Operations 
Plan and the Communications Plan.  
 
The types of communication used in an incident or event will vary depending on the complexity of the incident 
or event and consist of both internal communications and external communications. They may cross a broad 
spectrum of methods such as: 
 
Internal Communications 

 Landline  

 Cellular phone 

 Texting 

 Paging/notification 

 800 MHZ 

 Internet/WebEOC 

 Amateur Radio Emergency Service (ARES) 
External Communications 

 Landline 

 Fax 

 Cellular phone 

 Text 

 800 MHZ 

 Internet/WebEOC 

 Joint Information System/Joint Information Center 

 Emergency activation system 

 Reverse 911 

 Press releases 

 News media  

 Facebook 

 Twitter 
 
Agencies must plan for the effective and efficient use of information management technologies such as 
computers and networks for the following purposes: 

 Tie together all command, tactical, and support units involved in incident management 

 Enable these entities to share information critical to mission execution and the cataloguing of required 
corrective actions prior to an incident. 
 

Entities responsible for taking appropriate pre-incident actions use communications and information 
management processes and systems to inform and guide various critical activities. These actions include the 
following: 

 Mobilization or pre-deployment of resources  

 Strategic planning by: 
o Preparedness organizations 
o Multiagency coordination entities 
o Agency executives 

123

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

o Jurisdictional authorities 
o EOC personnel 

 
During an incident, incident management personnel use communications and information processes and 
systems to inform preparedness organizations, multiagency coordination entities, agency executives, 
jurisdictional authorities, and EOC personnel of the formulation, coordination, and execution of operational 
decisions and requests for assistance. Sustained collaborative effort over time will result in common 
communication and data standards and systems interoperability. 
 
Section 8 
ADMINISTRATION, FINANCE, AND LOGISTICS 
8.1 Administration Information 
The EOC monitors continuously 24/7 and is administered by San Juan County Emergency Manager. Day-to-day 
operations are under the direction the County Emergency Manager. 
 
The operational readiness of the EOC is the responsibility of San Juan County Emergency Manager. 

 Narratives and operational journals of response actions will be kept. 

 All written records, reports, and other documents will follow the principles of the National Incident 
Management System (NIMS). 

 Contracts, agreements and memorandums of understandings must be entered into by duly authorized 
officials and should be formalized in writing whenever possible prior to emergencies. 

 
Organizations tasked with responsibilities in the implementation of this plan are responsible for providing 
their own administrative and logistical needs and for the preparation and maintenance of a resource list for 
use in carrying out their emergency responsibilities. 
 
8.1.1 Records Preservation and Restoration 
 All affected governments in San Juan County must ensure protection of their records so normal operations 
can continue after the emergency. Such records may also be vital to the rapid recovery from the effects of an 
emergency, with the maintenance of plans for the safety, recovery and restoration of the county’s data, 
network, and telecommunication systems during a disaster. 
 
8.1.2 Reports and Records  
General - The planning and activation of an effective emergency response requires timely and accurate 
reporting of information and the maintenance of records on a continual basis.  
 
Reporting guidelines - San Juan County will submit consolidated reports to DEM to include information from 
local municipalities. Local governments will submit situation reports, requests for assistance, and damage 
assessment reports to San Juan County Emergency Management by the most practical means and in a timely 
manner. Municipal and county governments will use pre- established bookkeeping and accounting methods to 
track and maintain records of expenditures and obligations. Narrative and written log-type records of 
response actions will be kept by the municipal emergency management agency. The logs and records will form 
the basis for status reports to the county and state.  
 

124

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

Initial reports (needs assessment) are the necessary basis for the governor’s decision to declare a state of 
emergency and to request a presidential disaster declaration. These reports determine the specific types and 
extent of assistance made available to the affected area.  
 
Updates - Situation reports outlining new developments and more complete information will be forwarded as 
often as necessary in the most expeditious manner available. At a minimum, a daily situation report will be 
forwarded to the state EOC duration a local activation.  
 
Post emergency reports – San Juan County Emergency Management will submit the appropriate post 
emergency reports to the:  
Utah Division of Emergency Management  
Department of Public Safety 1110 State Office Building  
Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 801 538-3400 
 
8.1.2.3 Reports and Record Keeping  
 
Record keeping is a key element of effective emergency management. Accurate records are needed for the 
county to be eligible for emergency funding or reimbursement.  
 
Reports and Records the planning and activation of an effective emergency response requires timely and 
accurate reporting of information and the maintenance of records on a continuous basis. San Juan County will 
submit comprehensive reports that address, at a minimum, the following items:  
 
Training of personnel and exercises completed to prepare the community for an effective response to an 
emergency; list of trained personnel, equipment and other emergency resources shall be filed with the County 
Emergency Manager  

 Initial damage assessments and reports of the severity of the incident  

 Initial needs assessments necessary to declare the appropriate emergency declaration and to request 
assistance from the state and federal government  

 Approved Incident Response Plans and mitigations plans  

 Situation reports outlining new developments and more complete information as a situation 
progresses  

 Post-emergency reports that include a complete review of the situation which will also be submitted to 
the Utah Department of Emergency Management and Homeland Security as appropriate 

 
 
8.2 Financial Management  
The San Juan County EOP assigns Primary and support agencies for 15 functional areas of disaster response. 
Each agency assigned to an emergency support function (ESF) is responsible for mobilizing existing personnel, 
equipment, materials, supplies and other resources under their control. When agencies require additional 
resources, these requests will be referred to ESF #7 – Logistics Management and Resource Support in the 
county EOC. ESF #7 is tasked with identifying the most appropriate and economical method of meeting the 
resource request. There are several basic methods of meeting a resource request as follows: 

 Local forces are those resources under direct control of the county EOC. They can be assigned based on 
priorities established by the EOC organizational response agencies. 

125

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 Mutual aid can be requested by the county EOC to augment local forces during a locally declared state 
of local emergency.  

 San Juan County is a signature party of the Utah Mutual Aid Agreement for Catastrophic Disaster 
Response and Recovery. All requests for mutual aid must follow the procedures established by the 
State Division of Emergency Management (DEM) under this agreement. 

 A preferred method of meeting temporary disaster demands is utilizing the County Administration 
Office, who can issue contracts to meet resource requirements. 

 State and federal agencies’ response may be required when either mutual aid or contracting can meet 
the resource request. It is anticipated that this response would occur early in the disaster for short 
time periods. 

 All ESF procurements and expenditures will be documented. All receipts and invoices with explanations 
and justifications will be forwarded to the Clerk Auditor’s office in a timely fashion. The Clerk Auditor 
will ensure all documentation is complete, recorded on appropriate forms and proper in all respects. If 
the County was federally declared, the Clerk Auditor will submit for reimbursement. If the County was 
not declared, the documentation will serve as a recorded history of activity with expenditures. 

 
Emergency Procurement: As anticipated in the County’s Purchasing Policy, emergency procurement is 
appropriate when an emergency condition exists that limits the capability of the County to obtain competitive 
bids and to follow the financial limit without going to Commission for approval. An emergency condition is a 
situation which creates a threat to public health, welfare, or safety such as may arise by reason of floods, 
epidemics, riots, equipment failures, or such other reason as may be proclaimed by the Emergency Manager. 
During such an event Emergency procurements using other than normal bid or price quotation procedures 
may be made only by the County Administrator, Emergency Manager or his/her designee. Procurements shall 
be made according to policy as near as possible and still assure that the required supplies, services, or 
construction items are procured in time to meet the emergency. During times of Emergency there is no 
spending limit for the Emergency Manager however care will be taken to only purchase or procure needed 
and essential items. This will ensure that the emergency situation can be taken care of in a timely manner. All 
expenditures and anticipated procurements shall be requested and tracked using requests made on the ICS-
209 form.  
 
8.2.1 Accounting  
Complete and accurate accounts of emergency expenditures and obligations, including personnel and 
equipment costs, will be maintained. Such records are essential to identify and document (1) costs for which 
no Federal reimbursement will be requested and (2) those costs eligible for reimbursement under major 
emergency project applications. When Federal public assistance is provided under the Disaster Relief Act, local 
projects approved by FEMA are subject to both state and Federal audit. The County Clerk Auditor will 
coordinate the reimbursement documentation for the FEMA Public Assistance program during a presidentially 
declared disaster for county government. 
 
8.2.2 Fiscal Agreements  
A clear statement of agreement between all major agencies responding to an emergency concerning payment 
or reimbursement for personnel services rendered, equipment costs and expenditures of materials used in 
response to an emergency is crucial for accurate cost accounting. 
 
8.3 Logistics 

126

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

San Juan County Emergency Management maintains current resource information on supplies, equipment, 
facilities and skilled personnel available for emergency response and recovery operations. 
 
ESF # 7 - Logistics Management and Resource Support provides logistical and resource support, including 
locating, procuring, and issuing resources (such as food, water, ice, supplies, office space, office equipment, 
fuel and communications contracting services, personnel, heavy equipment and transportation) to local 
entities involved in delivery emergency response and recovery efforts. 
 
The Commission or designee has the authority to appropriate services and equipment from citizens as 
necessary in response to a disaster. 
 
Unless covered in a mutual aid agreement/memorandum of understanding, emergency resources may not be 
sent outside San Juan County unless the Commission, the San Juan County Emergency Manager or other 
designated representative grants approval. 
 
8.4 Training and Mitigation  
Disaster preparedness training and education is essential for public, private and volunteer disaster agencies 
and all residents and businesses in the county. The two primary goals of San Juan County emergency 
preparedness training are to 1) encourage individual and family preparedness, and 2) develop personnel 
expertise to become effective and responsive in an emergency. Individuals and agencies with assigned tasks 
under this EOP must receive preparatory training and participate in exercises reflective of situations that could 
occur in San Juan County. Effective training will be ongoing and current to ensure that San Juan County 
emergency responders are prepared and qualified to act in an emergency situation or disaster.  
 
Training Opportunities: In addition to participating in the training necessary to administer the emergency 
management activities of the county, it is the responsibility of the Emergency Manager to organize training 
opportunities and exercises that mimic emergency situations and the challenges faced in these unique 
circumstances. Training can be accomplished through attendance at seminars and conferences, participation 
in exercises at the local, county, state, and federal level, emergency preparedness classroom and 
correspondence courses and similar opportunities. San Juan County will also train staff members in NIMS.  
 
Emergency Exercises: On a semi-annual, annual or as need basis, the Emergency Manager will organize an 
emergency exercise design to mimic an emergency situation or disaster that could happen in San Juan County. 
The exercise will include participation from emergency and public safety providers, and any other appropriate 
public safety entity, medical service providers including hospitals and clinics, and any other entity that would 
increase the reality of the simulation.  
 
The Emergency Manager will concentrate on emergency situations that are most likely to occur in the 
community rather than those with a low likelihood of occurrence. In addition to the emergency exercise, the 
Emergency Manager will evaluate yearly the Emergency Operations Center to test all equipment and update 
or replace what is needed. 
Some, but certainly not all, of the purposes of emergency exercises include: 

 To take every opportunity to prepare for an emergency that will serve to protect life and property. 

 Opportunities for interaction and development of cooperation with other agencies in order to broaden 
emergency response and recovery capabilities.  

127

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 To increase familiarity with emergency management equipment and operations and allow personnel to 
gain experience in employing these tools during an actual incident.  

 Evaluation of training exercises for effectiveness and clarity of purpose.  

 Implementation of corrective actions and improvements to better respond in an emergency situation.  
 
8.4.1 Public Education and Awareness 
 A high level of public consciousness, awareness and education are crucial to effective emergency 
management. Informed and knowledgeable residents respond in a more efficient and safer manner in 
emergency situations. Public education about the potential vulnerabilities and hazards will also result in an 
opportunity to develop individual and family preparedness plans. In cooperation with community volunteer 
organizations, the Emergency Manager will organize public education opportunities.  
 
Public training opportunities may include public safety fairs, educational workshops and other public/private 
presentations and speaking engagements.  
 
Preparedness activities develop response capabilities needed if an emergency situation or disaster occurs as 
well as the ability of individuals to be self-reliant for short periods of time during a disaster. Related to 
mitigation, preparedness differs because activities are focused on efforts to educate, organize, train and 
practice for emergencies rather than the completion of improvements intended to reduce or limit damage. 
Perhaps more than any other emergency management activity, preparedness requires participation from 
entities and individuals outside of the County structure. In particular, San Juan County will rely heavily upon 
the following groups and entities in order to be properly prepared to address an emergency situation:  

 San Juan County Emergency Management  

 San Juan County Commissioners 

 Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA)  

 Utah Department of Emergency Management and Homeland Security  

 Local Fire Departments  

 Religious and congregational 
 
Although preparation includes many groups and individual residents, County employees must also be 
prepared to act in an emergency situation. Department heads should take necessary actions to educate and 
train appropriate staff members to coordinate and implement emergency and disaster procedures and 
instructions. The emergency management staff will schedule exercises, drills intended to simulate emergency 
situations that will allow staff and outside entities to become familiar with the emergency procedures, and 
protocols so that in the unfortunate event of a disaster, the response will be organized and effective. 
 
Section 9 
PLAN MAINTENANCE  
San Juan County Emergency Management is responsible for the overall maintenance (review and update) of 
this EOP and for ensuring that changes and revisions are prepared, coordinated, published and distributed. 
Each functional annex and incident annex describes the organization or agency responsible for those 
documents.  
 

128

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

This EOP will be reviewed annually and updated bi-annually based on deficiencies identified in simulated or 
actual use or due to organizational or technological changes. All changes shall be recorded by San Juan County 
Emergency Management.  
 
Revisions to the EOP will be forwarded to all organizations or agencies assigned responsibilities in the plan. 
Contact names and telephone numbers (for EOC staff, departments, agencies, special facilities, schools, etc.) 
shall be maintained by appropriate departments and agencies. 
 
9.1 EOP Multiyear Strategy  
The EOP Multiyear Strategy includes the objectives and key strategies for developing and maintaining the EOP 
including the support for short- and long-term initiatives. The objectives, key strategies and short and long-
term initiatives are summarized below:  
EOP Multiyear Strategy 

 Ensure San Juan County is prepared for any emergency or disaster. 

 Protect essential facilities, equipment, records and other assets. 

 Reduce or mitigate disruptions to operations. 

 Reduce loss of life and minimize damage and losses. 

 Achieve timely and orderly recovery from an emergency and resumption of full services. 

 Develop a clear understanding of San Juan County Emergency Management’s current emergency 
preparedness capabilities. 

 Develop initial EOP capabilities outside current San Juan County Emergency Management locations.  F 

 Establish an effective ability to execute the EOP. 

 Continue to work on EOP ESF primary and support agencies. 

 Conduct training and exercises. 

 Conduct training and tabletop exercises to reinforce knowledge of the plan. 

 Perform annual reviews of plans and assessments. 

 Ensure compliance with the National Incident Management System and the Incident Command 
System. 

 Standard operating procedures for ESF, incident, and functional annexes 

 Coordinate plans and procedures with local, state and federal agencies. 
 
Section 10 
AUTHORITIES AND REFERENCES 
10.1 Authorities 
 Under the provisions of HSPD-5, the Secretary of Homeland Security is the principal federal official for 
domestic incident management. 
 
Federal Authorities: Federal Civil Defense Act of 1950, (PL 81 -950), as amended Disaster Relief Act of 1974, 
(PL 93-288) as amended. Title III, of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986, (SARA), (PL 
100- 700). Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Title 44. Emergency Management and Assistance October 1, 
2008.  
 
The authorities under which this plan is developed include the following: 
 

129

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

State of Utah: Title 53, Chapter 2, “Emergency Management Act.” 
Ordinance 2.86.010-120 State of Utah, Emergency Operations Plan National Response  
Framework 
 
10.2 Supporting Documents/Plans 
 

 State of Utah Emergency Operations Plan 

 State of Utah Hazard Mitigation Plan 

 FEMA 501, National Incident Management System 

 FEMA 501-3, NIMS Basic – Preparedness 

 FEMA 501-7, NIMS Basic - Ongoing Management and Maintenance 

 Comprehensive Preparedness Guide (CPG) 101 

 San Juan County Continuity Plan 

 San Juan County Communications Plan 

 San Juan County Pre-Disaster Mitigation Plan 

 Emergency Preparedness Local Homeless Plan 
 
10.3 Agreements  
San Juan County has entered into the Statewide Mutual Aid Act, 53-2-501 for Catastrophic Disaster Response 
and Recovery 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

130

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

Section 11 
GLOSSARY 
All-Hazards: Describes all incidents, natural or human-caused, that warrant action to protect life, 
property, environment, and public health or safety, and to minimize disruptions of government, social, or 
economic activities 
County Commission: Chief Executive Officer of the County 
County Liaison Officer: Point of contact for assisting and coordinating county agencies. The Liaison 
Officer should establish relationships with county agencies and be able to communicate information 
effectively with them. 
Emergency Management: The preparation for, the mitigation of, the response to, and the recovery from 
emergencies and disasters. Specific emergency management responsibilities include, but are not limited 
to the following: 

 Reduction of vulnerability of people and communities of this state to damage, injury, and loss of life 
and property resulting from natural, technological, or human-caused emergencies or hostile military 
or paramilitary action 
Preparation for prompt and efficient response and recovery to protect lives and property affected by 
emergencies 

 Response to emergencies using all systems, plans, and resources necessary to preserve adequately 
the health, safety, and welfare of persons or property affected by the emergency 

 Recovery from emergencies by providing for the rapid and orderly start of restoration and 
rehabilitation of persons and property affected by emergencies 

Emergency Manager: Emergency Management Bureau Chief is assigned the role of Emergency Manager and 
has the responsibility of overseeing county emergency management programs, planning and activities, as well 
as coordinating all aspects of the county’s mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery capabilities. The 
Emergency Manager directs all county EOC coordination before, during and after an emergency. 
Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC): A congressionally ratified organization that 
provides form and structure to interstate mutual aid. Through EMAC, a disaster-affected state can request and 
receive assistance from other member States quickly and efficiently, resolving two key issues up front: liability 
and reimbursement. 
Emergency Operations Center (EOC): A designated site from which public, private or voluntary 
agency officials can coordinate emergency operations in support of on-scene responders. 
Emergency Operations Plan (EOP): Overview of San Juan County emergency response organization 
and policies. It cites the legal authority for emergency operations, summarizes the situations addressed by the 
EOP, explains the general concept of operations and assigns responsibilities for emergency planning and 
operations. 
Emergency Support Function (ESF): A functional emergency management responsibility established to 
facilitate assistance required during mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery to save lives, protect 
health and property, and maintain public safety. 
Emergency Support Function (ESF) Assignment Matrix: Organizational grouping of all primary and 
support ESF agencies. 
Emergency Support Function (ESF) Coordinator: The primary ESF coordinator is the entity with 
management oversight for that particular ESF. The coordinator has ongoing responsibilities throughout 
the preparedness, response and recovery phases of incident management. Responsibilities of the ESF 
coordinator include: 

 Coordination before, during, and after an incident, including pre-incident planning and coordination 

131

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 Maintaining ongoing contact with ESF primary and support agencies 

 Conducting periodic ESF meetings and conference calls 

 Coordinating efforts with corresponding private-sector organizations 

 Coordinating ESF activities relating to catastrophic incident planning and critical infrastructure 
preparedness, as appropriate 

Emergency Support Function (ESF) Primary Agency: Agency assigned primary responsibility to 
manage and coordinate a specific ESF. Primary agencies are designated based on their having the most 
authorities, resources, capabilities or expertise relative to accomplishment of the specific emergency 
support function. 
Emergency Support Function (ESF) Support Agency: Entities with specific capabilities or resources 
that support the primary agency in executing the mission of the ESF. 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA): Agency of the U.S. government tasked with 
disaster mitigation, preparedness, response and recovery planning. 
Finance/Administration Section: Responsible for tracking incident costs and reimbursement accounting. 
Homeland Security Presidential Directive (HSPD) 5: Enhances the ability of the United States to 
manage domestic incidents by establishing a single, comprehensive National Incident Management 
System. 
Incident Command System (ICS): An all-hazard, on-scene functional management system that 
establishes common standards in organization, terminology and procedures. 
Incident Support Plan (ISP): The ISP includes the overall incident objectives and strategies established by 
the Emergency Manager for EOC operations. The Planning Section is responsible for developing and 
documenting the ISP. 
Joint Information Center (JIC): The primary location for the coordination of media relations located in 
or near the Emergency Operations Center. 
Joint Information System (JIS): Provides the public with timely and accurate incident information and 
unified public messages. This system employs Joint Information Centers and brings incident 
communicators together during an incident to develop, coordinate and deliver a unified message. This 
will ensure that federal, state, and local levels of government are releasing the same information during an 
incident. 

Local Government: Local municipal governments, the school board and other government authorities 
created under county or municipal legislation. 
Local Nonprofits: Nonprofit agencies active in providing local community services that can either 
provide assistance during an emergency or would require assistance to continue providing their service to the 
community. United Way Agencies are an example of local nonprofits under this category. 
Logistics Section: Provides facilities, services and materials, including personnel to operate the requested 
equipment for the incident support. 
Municipality: Legally constituted municipalities are authorized and encouraged to create municipal 
emergency management programs. Municipal emergency management programs shall coordinate their 
activities with those of the county emergency management agency. Municipalities without emergency 
management programs shall be served by their respective county agencies. If a municipality elects to 
establish an emergency management program, it must comply with all laws, rules and requirements 
applicable to county emergency management agencies. Each municipal Emergency Operations Plan must be 
consistent with and subject to the applicable county Emergency Operations Plan. In addition, each 
municipality must coordinate requests for state or federal emergency response assistance with its county. This 
requirement does not apply to requests for reimbursement under federal public disaster assistance programs. 

132

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

National Incident Management System (NIMS): A systematic, proactive approach to guide 
departments and agencies at all levels of government, nongovernmental organizations, and the private 
sector to work seamlessly to prevent, protect against, respond to, recover from, and mitigate the effects of 
incidents, regardless of cause, size, location, or complexity, in order to reduce the loss of life and property and 
harm to the environment. 
National Response Framework: The guiding principles that enable all response partners to prepare for 
and provide a unified national response to disasters and emergencies. It establishes a comprehensive,  
national, all-hazards approach to domestic incident response. 
Operations Section: Directs and coordinates all operations and assists the county coordinating officer in 
development of incident operations. 
Planning Section: Responsible for the collection, evaluation, dissemination and use of information about 
the development of the incident and status of resources. 
Policy Group: Consists of executive decision-makers that are needed to collaborate to manage the 
consequences of the disaster. This group makes critical strategic decisions to manage the emergency. 
Policy Group Liaison: Individual assigned to act as liaison to coordinate county policy group and 
readiness and decision making processes. Effectively communicate executive level concerns and 
decisions during emergency operational periods to and from the County Coordinating Officer. 
Public Information: Emergency information that is gathered, prepared, and coordinated for 
dissemination during a disaster or major event. 
Safety/Security: Safety/security is monitored and measures are developed for ensuring a safe and secure 
environment in which to run emergency operations. 
State Liaison: Individual appointed by the Utah Division of Emergency Management to act as liaison 
during emergency periods to coordinate state actions for providing effective coordination and 
communications during the event. 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs): States in general terms what the guideline is expected to 
accomplish. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

133

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

Section 12 
ACRONYMS 
ARES – Amateur Radio Emergency Service 
COG – Continuity of Government 
CFR – Code of Federal Regulations 
COOP – Continuity of Operations 
DEM – Division of Emergency Management 
EMAC – Emergency Management Assistance Compact 
EMS – Emergency Medical Service 
EOC - Emergency Operations Center 
EOP - Emergency Operations Plan 
ESF - Emergency Support Function 
FEMA - Federal Emergency Management Agency 
HAZMAT - Hazardous Materials 
HSPD – Homeland Security Presidential Directive 
ICS - Incident Command System 
ICP - Incident Command Post 
ISP - Incident Support Plan 
JIC - Joint Information Center 
JIS – Joint Information System 
NIMS – National Incident Management System 
NRF – National Response Framework 
SARA – Superfund Amendment and Reauthorization Act 
San Juan County – San Juan County  
SOP – Standard Operating Procedures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

134

Item 11.



 
 
 
  
 

 

 

135

Item 11.



GARY R. HERBERT 

Governor 

SPENCER J. COX 

Lieutenant Governor 

 

 

 

 

State of Utah 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 

1594 West North Temple, Suite 2110, PO Box 146301, Salt Lake City, UT 84114-6301 

telephone (801) 538-4700  facsimile (801) 538-4709  TTY (801) 538-7458  www.wildlife.utah.gov 

   

 

 BRIAN C. STEED 

 Executive Director 

      Division of Wildlife Resources   
   MICHAL D. FOWLKS 

 Division Director 

 

 
  

 
October 13, 2020 

 

Dear San Juan County Commissioners: 

 

My name is Krystal Tucker and I am a Sergeant with the Utah Division of Wildlife Resources. I 

am currently working within the Aquatic Invasive Species (AIS) Program. This program focuses 

on preventing quagga mussels and other invasive species from spreading throughout the state. 

 

 

One of our most valuable and effective prevention strategies includes contacting watercraft off-

water and conducting inspections to verify their mussel-free status. When mussels are found or 

the vessel doesn’t meet clean, drain, dry standards, we provide a cost-free hot water wash inside 

and outside of the vessel. This program has ensured our beautiful waters in the state remain clean 

and mussel-free. Due to the hard work and determination of UDWR staff, we’ve successfully 

kept mussels out of all waterbodies in the state except Lake Powell, which was infested around 

2013. 

 

 

We want to make sure Quagga mussels do not spread to additional waterbodies because they 1) 

potentially damage essential drinking water sources by leaving a foul taste and smell 2) Infiltrate 

and clog up water filtration pipes 3) Clean healthy bio-nutrients out of the water and remove fish 

food supply 4) Cause potentially millions of dollars of damage and mitigation work. Worst of 

all- there is no current way to remove mussels so once they have infiltrated a waterbody, they are 

likely there to stay. 

 

 

Just this year, we’ve seen an estimated 25% increase in boaters travelling through Utah, many 

from surrounding states such as Arizona, Colorado, and California. Recapture Reservoir is an 

excellent example of a waterbody receiving increased use. Many boaters after leaving Lake 

Powell, both out of state and locals, choose to recreate at Recapture Reservoir. If they didn’t 

follow proper protocols after leaving Lake Powell, they pose a very large threat to potentially 

spreading quagga mussels into Recapture.  

 

 

Due to an overwhelming increase in boating throughout the state, UDWR recognizes the need 

for additional locations for our mandatory inspection stations (MIS). A MIS located at the south 

end of the town will provide a layer of protection against infestation of your favorite local 

waters. Also, by providing a MIS nearby, local boaters in the Blanding and Monticello area will 

have a convenient area for decontamination of their boats.  

 

 

136

Item 12.



 

Page 2 

October 14, 2020 

 

The MIS would be staffed robustly from around April to October and still operational but with 

minimal staffing during the off season, around November through March. Between 15-20 staff 

would be needed during the busy season for full and part time work.  We would hire locally to 

help provide job opportunities to residents. Having a MIS nearby would entice visitors and likely 

increase business locally at restaurants, gas stations and various other businesses.  

 

 

We look forward to building partnerships with the City of Blanding as well as San Juan County 

to make this plan become a reality. Thank you for your time and consideration. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Krystal Tucker  
 

Krystal Tucker 

AIS Operations Sergeant 

Utah Division of Wildlife Resources 

Salt Lake City Office 

(801) 391-9846 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

137

Item 12.



 

 

Tuesday, 20 October 2020 
 
 
 

International Dark Sky Association 
 
RE: International Dark Sky Designation for Goosenecks State Park 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
The San Juan County Commission would like to express its full support for the Utah State Parks’ request to 
designate Goosenecks State Park as an International Dark Sky Park. 
 
Specific to San Juan County we have seen a steady 10% increase in Transient Room Tax over the past five years, 
with a slight bump in the latest comparison of 2018 to 2019’s collections. The average dollar value of each visitor 
transaction in San Juan County for domestic visitors is $35, with international visitors spending $77. The total 
(Visa card) spend for international tourism in 2018 was just over $6 million. 
 
In light of recent current events with COVID-19 visitors are becoming even more intrigued and interested in 
visiting remote, open spaced areas. Utah State Parks’ proposal to designate Goosenecks State Parks as an 
International Dark Sky park would support connecting to the visitor demographic San Juan County would like to 
see. 
 
The goal targeted in this designation will positively contribute to the continued positive growth of San Juan 
County’s tourism economy, as well as regional quality of life. The San Juan County Commission fully supports this 
effort. 
 

 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Kenneth Maryboy 
San Juan County Commission, Chair 
 
 
 
 

435-587-3235    //    117 South Main St Monticello UT 84535    //   www.utahscanyoncountry.com 

138

Item 13.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Natalie Randall 

TITLE: Director Economic Development & Visitor Services 

RECOMMENDATION: Letter of Support for Goosenecks State Parks Dark Sky 

Designation 

 

SUMMARY 

Submission of a letter of support for Goosenecks State Park to be designated an International Dark Sky 

Park. Goosenecks would join existing San Juan County IDA parks: Natural Bridges National 

Monument, Dead Horse Point State Park, Canyonlands National Parks, and Rainbow Bridge National 

Monument. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

EnterTextHere 

FISCAL IMPACT 

EnterTextHere 

139

Item 13.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Nick Sandberg, County Public Lands Coordinator 

TITLE: Lisbon Valley Mine Plan Modification Comment Letter 

RECOMMENDATION: Make a motion to approve comment letter 

 

SUMMARY 

Lisbon Valley Mine proposes modifications to its mine plan of operation with reopening of mining 

operations.  Modifications would continue open pit mining with heap leach pad, solvent extraction and 

electrowinning process (electro-extraction).  Total mining disturbance would be 917 acres which is 315 

acres less than approved in the 2016 mine plan modification.  Fewer disturbed acres is due to optimal pit 

planning and the ability to dispose of more mine waste during pit backfilling.   

The proposed modification is consistent with the goals, objectives and policies of the San Juan County 

Master Plan and Resource Management Plan as well as being consistent with the Utah Energy Zone 

Amendments of 2015. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

NA 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Continued mining operations would benefit the County through tax revenues and local employment at 

the mine.   

140

Item 14.



SAN JUAN COUNTY COMMISSION 
Kenneth Maryboy                Chairman 

                                                                                                                                                     Willie Grayeyes                  Vice-Chair 
Bruce Adams               Commissioner 
Mack McDonald          Administrator 

PO BOX 9   -   117 South Main Street   -   Monticello, Utah 84535-0009   -   435-587-3225   -   Fax 435-587-2447 

 

  October 20, 2020 

 

Nicollee Gaddis-Wyatt, Field Manager 

Moab Field Office 

Bureau of Land Management 

82 East Dogwood 

Moab, Utah  84532 

 

Re:  Lisbon Valley Mining Company 

 

Dear Ms. Gaddis-Wyatt: 

 

San Juan County has been and continues to be a supporter of mining operations at the Lisbon Valley Mine.  This 

operation has been an important contributor to the county economy through tax revenues and jobs for county 

residents. 

 

We have reviewed the current proposal to modify the mining plan of operations and find it to be consistent with 

the goals, objectives and policies of the San Juan County Master Plan and Resource Management Plan.  It is also 

consistent with the intent and policy of the Utah Energy Zone Amendments of 2015 which includes the area of 

the mining operation. 

 

We look forward to the reopening of the mining operations and implementation of the proposed mining plan 

modification. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Kenneth Maryboy 

Chairman 

 

 

   

141

Item 14.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Sheriff Jason Torgerson 

TITLE: Consideration and Agreement of a Cooperative Law Enforcement 

Agreement between San Juan County and the USDA, Forest Service 

Manti-La Sal National Forest 

RECOMMENDATION: Make a motion approving support of the agreement 

 

SUMMARY 

The Agreement recognizes that the public use of the National Forest System lands is usually located in 

areas that are remote or sparsely populated. The parties of this agreement recognize that the enforcement 

of State and Local law is related to the administration and regulation of National Forest System lands 

and the agreement establishes a cooperative effort to provide and perform law enforcement activities 

including jurisdiction thereof.  

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

This is a reoccurring agreement for the County and has been approved in prior years.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Total of $5,000.00 reimbursed back to the County for patrol Activities and Equipment 

 

 

142

Item 15.



143

Item 15.



144

Item 15.



145

Item 15.



146

Item 15.



147

Item 15.



148

Item 15.



149

Item 15.



150

Item 15.



151

Item 15.



152

Item 15.



153

Item 15.



154

Item 15.



155

Item 15.



156

Item 15.



157

Item 15.



158

Item 15.



159

Item 15.



160

Item 15.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Tammy Gallegos, Aging Director 

TITLE: Aging Contract 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

SUMMARY 

This is a new contract with San Juan County and the Utah Division of Services for People with 

Disabilities It is for 3 months and it is to provide meal service to those clients identified by Utah 

Division of Services for People with Disabilities. 3 clients within the county have been identified for this 

service.  

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

New Contract 

FISCAL IMPACT 

3,906.00 

161

Item 16.



Log # 39539                 Contract # A03225              

STATE OF UTAH 

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES  

       GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
 
 

1. CONTRACTING PARTIES:  This contract is between the State of Utah Department of Human Services (Agency Code: 200), referred 

to as STATE and/or DHS, and the following CONTRACTOR:              
  

 

San Juan County 

San Juan County Area Agency on Aging 

Name 
PO Box 9 

Address 
Monticello UT 84535-3225 

City State Zip 

 
 

LEGAL STATUS OF CONTRACTOR 
 Sole Proprietor 
 Non-Profit Corporation 
 For-Profit Corporation 
 Partnership 
 Government Entity 

 Contact Person Tammy Gallegos   Phone #435-587-3225   Email tgallegos@sanjuancounty.org  

 Vendor #6866H Commodity Code #95243 

   
2. GENERAL PURPOSE OF CONTRACT: The general purpose of this contract is to provide Meals on Wheels for approved individuals 

on the DSPD waiting list. 
   

3. PROCUREMENT: This contract is entered into as a result of a procurement process under Utah Code 63G-6a-2103. 
 

4. CONTRACT PERIOD:  Effective date: 9/1/2020 Termination date: 12/30/2020 unless terminated early or extended in accordance 

with the terms and conditions of this contract.  Renewal options (if any):  N/A. 

 

5. CONTRACT COSTS:  CONTRACTOR will be paid a maximum of $3,906.00 for costs authorized by this contract.  Additional 

information regarding costs: N/A. 

 
6.  ATTACHMENT A: DHS Standard Terms and Conditions for Services Provided by Utah Governmental Entities 
 ATTACHMENT B: Scope of Work 
 
7. Each signer below represents that he or she has the requisite authority to enter into this contract. 
 
The parties sign and cause this contract to be executed. This contract is not fully executed until the State of Utah Approving Authority has 
signed this contract. 
 
SAN JUAN COUNTY      DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 
SAN JUAN COUNTY AREA AGENCY ON AGING  DIVISION OF AGING AND ADULT SERVICES 
 
By: ____________________________________________  By: _____________________________________________ 

 Name: Date  Nels Holmgren, Director Date 

 Title:  

By: ____________________________________________   

 Name: Date   

 Title: 

 

STATE OF UTAH APPROVING AUTHORITY 

STATE DIVISION OF FINANCE 
  
By: ____________________________________________ 

 State Finance Date    

 Michael Floor  801-538-4217    mfloor@utah.gov  
 Agency Contact Person  Telephone Number    Email  

 

The State of Utah Department of Human Services is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  The department’s EEOP 

Utilization Report is available at hs.utah.gov/about.  
162

Item 16.



ATTACHMENT A: DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR SERVICES PROVIDED 
BY UTAH GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 
 

This is for a contract for services between government entities within the State of Utah to be used only when both parties are Utah 
governmental entities as defined in the Utah Government Immunity Act (U.C.A. 63G Chapter 7). 
 
1. DEFINITIONS: The following terms have the meanings set forth below: 

 
a. “Confidential Information” means information deemed confidential under applicable state and federal laws, including 

personal information.  
 

b. “Contract” means the document with signature page(s), including all referenced attachments and documents incorporated by 

reference and may include any purchase orders that result from this Contract. 
 

c. “Contract Signature Page(s)” means the State of Utah cover page(s) signed by the parties. 

 
d. “Contractor” means the individual or entity delivering the Services identified in this Contract. The term “Contractor” includes 

Contractor’s agents, officers, employees, and partners. 
 

e. “DHS” means the Utah Department of Human Services, including each division, office, bureau, agency, or other organization 

identified on the Contract Signature Page(s). 
 

f. “Services” means the furnishing of labor, time, or effort by Contractor pursuant to this Contract.  Services include all 

deliverables that result from Contractor performing the Services pursuant to this Contract, including any professional services 
identified in § 63G-6a-103 of the Utah Procurement Code. 

g. “State of Utah” means any institution, agency, department, division, authority, instrumentality, board, commission, elected or 

appointed officer, employee, agent, or authorized volunteer of the State of Utah government. 
 

2. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE: This Contract is governed by the laws, rules, and regulations of the State of Utah.  Any action or 

proceeding arising from this Contract must be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State of Utah. Venue is in Salt 
Lake City, in the Third Judicial District Court for Salt Lake County. 

3. LAWS AND REGULATIONS: Contractor and all Services performed under this Contract must comply with all applicable federal 

and state constitutions, laws, rules, codes, orders, and regulations, including applicable licensure and certification requirements.  

4. RECORDS ADMINISTRATION: Contractor shall maintain or supervise the maintenance of all records necessary to properly 

account for Contractor’s performance and the payments made by DHS to Contractor under this Contract. These records must be 
retained by Contractor for at least six (6) years after final payment, or until all audits initiated within the six (6) years have been 
completed, whichever is later. Contractor agrees to allow, at no additional cost to the State of Utah, the State of Utah and federal 
auditors, and DHS staff, access to all such records. 

5. CERTIFY REGISTRATION AND USE OF EMPLOYMENT "STATUS VERIFICATION SYSTEM”: INTENTIONALLY DELETED 

6. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor shall implement, maintain, and enforce policies and procedures that prohibit conflicts of 

interest. 

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: Contractor’s legal status is that of an independent contractor, and in no manner will the 

Contractor be deemed an employee or agent of DHS or the State of Utah, and therefore is not entitled to any of the benefits 
associated with such employment. Contractor, as an independent contractor, has no authorization, express or implied, to bind DHS 
or the State of Utah to any agreements, settlements, liabilities, or understandings whatsoever, and agrees not to perform any acts 
as an agent for DHS or the State of Utah. Contractor shall remain responsible for all applicable federal, state, and local taxes, and 
all FICA contributions. 

8. INDEMNITY: Both parties to this agreement are governmental entities as defined in the Utah Governmental Immunity Act (“Act”). 

Nothing in this Contract may be construed as a waiver by either or both parties of any rights, limits, protections or defenses 
provided by the Act, nor may this Contract be construed, with respect to third parties, as a waiver of any governmental immunity to 
which a party to this Contract is otherwise entitled.  Subject to and consistent with the Act, each party is responsible for its own 
actions or negligence and will defend against any claims or lawsuit brought against it.  There are no indemnity obligations between 
the parties.  

9. EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES: Contractor agrees to abide by the following employment laws: (i)Title VI and VII of the Civil Rights 

Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000e) which prohibits discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment or any applicant 
or recipient of services, on the basis of race, religion, color, or national origin; (ii) Executive Order No. 11246, as amended, which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; (iii) 45 CFR § 90 which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (iv) § 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, or the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disabilities; 
and (v) Utah's Executive Order, dated December 13, 2006, which prohibits unlawful harassment in the work place. Contractor 
further agrees to abide by any other laws, regulations, or orders that prohibit the discrimination of any kind by any of Contractor’s 
employees. 

10. AMENDMENTS: This Contract may only be amended by a mutual written agreement of the parties, which amendment must be 

attached to this Contract. Automatic renewals do not apply to this Contract. 

11. DEBARMENT: INTENTIONALLY DELETED 
163

Item 16.



12. TERMINATION: Unless otherwise stated in this Contract, this Contract may be terminated, with cause by either party, in advance 

of the specified expiration date, upon written notice to the other party. The party in violation may be given ten days after receipt of 
written notification to correct and cease the violations, after which this Contract may be terminated for cause immediately and is 
subject to the remedies listed below. This Contract may also be terminated without cause (for convenience), in advance of the 
specified expiration date, by either party, upon 60 days written termination notice to the other party. DHS and the Contractor may 
terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, at any time, by mutual agreement in writing. Upon termination of this Contract, all 
accounts and payments will be processed according to the financial arrangements set forth herein for approved Services ordered 
prior to date of termination. 

 Contractor shall be compensated for the Services properly performed under this Contract up to the effective date of the notice of 
termination. Contractor agrees that in the event of termination, Contractor’s sole remedy and monetary recovery from DHS or the 
State of Utah is limited to full payment for all Services properly performed as authorized under this Contract up to the date of 
termination, as well as any reasonable monies owed as a result of Contractor having to terminate other contracts necessarily and 
appropriately entered into by Contractor pursuant to this Contract. 

13.  NONAPPROPRIATION OF FUNDS, REDUCTION OF FUNDS, OR CHANGES IN LAW: Upon 30 days written notice delivered to 

the Contractor, this Contract may be terminated in whole or in part at the sole discretion of DHS, if DHS reasonably determines 
that: (i) a change in federal or state legislation or applicable laws materially affects the ability of either party to perform under the 
terms of this Contract; or (ii) a change in available funds, including federal and state funds, affects DHS’s ability to pay under the 
terms of this Contract.   

If a written notice is delivered under this section, DHS will reimburse Contractor for the Services properly performed until the 
effective date of said notice. DHS will not be liable for any performance, commitments, penalties, or liquidated damages that 
accrue after the effective date of said notice.  

14. SUSPENSION OF WORK: Written notice to the Contractor is required should circumstances arise which would cause DHS to 

suspend, but not terminate, the Contractor’s responsibilities under this Contract.  The Contractor’s responsibilities may be 
reinstated upon advance written notice from DHS.  

15. SALES TAX EXEMPTION: The Services under this Contract will be paid for from DHS’s funds and used in the exercise of DHS’s 

essential functions as a State of Utah entity. Upon request, DHS will provide Contractor with its sales tax exemption number. It is 
Contractor’s responsibility to request DHS’s sales tax exemption number. It also is Contractor’s sole responsibility to ascertain 
whether any tax deduction or benefits apply to any aspect of this Contract. 

16. INSURANCE: INTENTIONALLY DELETED 

17. WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE: INTENTIONALLY DELETED 

18. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: INTENTIONALLY DELETED 

19. PUBLIC INFORMATION: INTENTIONALLY DELETED 

20. DELIVERY: All deliveries under this Contract will be F.O.B. destination with all transportation and handling charges paid for by 

Contractor. Responsibility and liability for loss or damage will remain with Contractor until final inspection and acceptance by DHS.  

21. ACCEPTANCE AND REJECTION: DHS shall have 30 days after delivery of the Services to perform an inspection of the Services 

to determine whether the Services conform to the scope of work prior to acceptance of the Services by DHS. If Contractor delivers 
nonconforming Services, DHS may at Contractor’s expense: (i) return the Services for a full refund; (ii) require Contractor to 
promptly correct or reperform the nonconforming Services subject to the terms of this Contract; or (iii) obtain replacement Services 
from another source, subject to Contractor being responsible for any cover costs. 

22. BILLING REQUIREMENTS:  

a. Billing.  To obtain payment for the Services provided pursuant to this Contract, Contractor shall submit to DHS an itemized 

billing for its authorized services, together with the supporting documentation required for the reimbursement forms supplied 
by DHS.   

b. Billing Deadlines.  DHS may delay or deny payment to Contractor for billings or claims for services that do not meet the 

billing deadlines outlined below. 

(1) Ongoing Billings:  Contractor shall submit all billings and claims for services rendered during a given billing period 
within twenty (20) days after the last date of that billing period, EXCEPT that Contractor shall submit all billings for 

services performed on or before June 30th of a given fiscal year pursuant to paragraph c. below. 

(2) State Fiscal Year-End Billings:  The state fiscal year is from July 1st through June 30th.Contractor shall submit all 
billings for services performed on or before June 30th of a given fiscal year no later than July 14th of the following fiscal 

year, regardless of Contractor’s billing period or the expiration or termination date of this Contract. 

(3) Final Contract Billings:  Contractor shall submit all final billings under this Contract within 14 days of expiration or 

termination of the Contract, regardless of Contractor’s billing period. 

c. Supporting Documentation.  Contractor shall maintain documentation necessary to support the Services and costs billed by 

Contractor and shall submit the documentation with the billings, if requested.  

d. Questioned Costs.  DHS may question any billing by Contractor if the billing is not supported by proper documentation. 

e. Overpayments and Audit Exceptions.  If, during or after the contract period, an independent CPA audit or a fiscal review 

determines that payments made by DHS to Contractor were incorrectly paid or were based on incorrect information from 
Contractor, Contractor will be required to repay the incorrect payments it received.  DHS may withhold any or all subsequent 

164

Item 16.



payments under this or other contracts with Contractor until DHS fully recoups any payments to Contractor determined to have 
been made incorrectly. 

f. Uniform Billing Practices.   Contractor guarantees that the amounts it charges for client Services under this Contract are not 

higher than the amounts Contractor charges others for comparable Services. 

g. Lapsing Funds.   If Services are provided for the Division of Substance Abuse and Mental Health, any funds not expended by 

the end of the funding period for which they were allocated will lapse and Contractor will have no further claim to the funds. 

23.  PAYMENT: Payments will be made within 30 days after a correct invoice is received. All payments to Contractor will be remitted by 

mail, electronic funds transfer, or the State of Utah’s Purchasing Card (major credit card). If payment has not been made after 60 
days from the date a correct invoice is received by DHS, then interest may be added by Contractor as prescribed in the Utah 
Prompt Payment Act (U.C.A. 15, Chapter 6). The acceptance by Contractor of final payment, without a written protest filed with 
DHS within ten business days of receipt of final payment, release DHS and the State of Utah from all claims and all liability to the 
Contractor. DHS’s payment for Services is not an acceptance of the Services and does not affect any claims DHS or the State of 
Utah may have against Contractor. 

24.  TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE: The Services must be completed by any applicable deadline stated in this Contract. For all Services, 

time is of the essence. Contractor shall be liable for all reasonable damages to DHS and the State of Utah, and anyone for whom 
the State of Utah may be liable, as a result of Contractor’s failure to timely perform the Services required under this Contract. 

25. CHANGES IN SCOPE: Any changes in the scope of the Services performed under this Contract must be in the form of a written 

amendment to this Contract, mutually agreed upon and signed by both parties, specifying any changes. 

26. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: DHS may conduct a performance evaluation of Contractor’s Services at any time. Results of any 

evaluation may be made available to the Contractor upon Contractor’s request. 

27. STANDARD OF CARE: The Services of Contractor shall be performed in accordance with the standard of care exercised by 

licensed members of their respective professions having substantial experience providing similar services which similarities include 
the type, magnitude, and complexity of the Services that are the subject of this Contract. Contractor shall be liable to DHS and the 
State of Utah for claims, liabilities, additional burdens, penalties, damages, or third party claims (i.e. another Contractor’s claim 
against the State of Utah), to the extent caused by wrongful acts, errors, or omissions that do not meet this standard of care. 

28. REVIEWS: DHS reserves the right to perform plan checks, plan reviews, other reviews, and/or comment upon the Services of 

Contractor. Such reviews do not waive the requirement of Contractor to meet all of the terms and conditions of this Contract. 

29. SUBCONTRACTING AND ASSIGNMENT: Contractor shall not subcontract or assign any right or obligation under this Contract, in 

whole or in part. 

30.  REMEDIES: In addition to terminating the Contract upon default or breach of the Contractor, DHS may do one or more of the 

following: (i) exercise any remedy provided by law or equity; (ii) impose liquidated damages; (iii) debar or suspend Contractor from 
receiving future contracts from DHS or the State of Utah; and (iv) demand a full refund of any payment DHS has made to 
Contractor for Services that do not conform to this Contract. 

31.  FORCE MAJEURE: Neither party to this Contract will be held responsible for delay or default caused by fire, riot, acts of God, war, 

or any condition which is beyond that party's reasonable control. DHS may terminate this Contract if it determines that a delay 
caused by force majeure may prevent successful performance of this Contract. 

32. CONFIDENTIALITY: If Confidential Information is disclosed to Contractor, Contractor shall: (i) advise its agents, officers, 

employees, and partners of the obligations set forth in this Contract; (ii) keep all Confidential Information strictly confidential; and 
(iii) not disclose any Confidential Information received to any third parties. Contractor shall immediately notify DHS of any potential 
or actual misuse or misappropriation of Confidential Information.  

Contractor shall be responsible for any breach of this duty of confidentiality, including any required remedies and notifications 
under applicable law. Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend DHS and the State of Utah, including anyone for 
whom DHS or the State of Utah is liable, from all claims related to a breach of this duty of confidentiality, including any notification 
requirements by Contractor or anyone for whom the Contractor is liable.  

Upon termination or expiration of this Contract, Contractor must return all copies of Confidential Information to DHS or certify, in 
writing, that all Confidential Information in its possession has been destroyed. This duty of confidentiality is ongoing and survives 
the termination or expiration of this Contract. 

33. PUBLICITY: Contractor shall submit to DHS for written approval all advertising and publicity matters relating to this Contract. It is 

within DHS’s sole discretion to provide approval, which must be in writing. 

34.  CONTRACT INFORMATION: INTENTIONALLY DELETED. 

35. INDEMNIFICATION RELATING TO INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY: Contractor will indemnify and hold DHS and the State of Utah 

harmless from and against any and all damages, expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees), claims, judgments, liabilities, 
and costs in any action or claim brought against DHS or the State of Utah for infringement of a third party’s copyright, trademark, 
trade secret, or other proprietary right. The parties agree that if there are any limitations of Contractor’s liability such limitations of 
liability will not apply to this section. 

36. OWNERSHIP IN INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY: DHS and Contractor recognize that each has no right, title, interest, proprietary or 

otherwise in the intellectual property owned or licensed by the other, unless agreed upon by the parties in writing. All deliverables, 
documents, records, programs, data, articles, memoranda, and other materials not developed or licensed by Contractor prior to the 
execution of this Contract, but specifically created or manufactured under this Contract, is considered work made for hire, and 
Contractor shall transfer any ownership claim to DHS.   165

Item 16.



37. WAIVER: A waiver of any right, power, or privilege will not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent right, power, or privilege. 

38. ATTORNEY’S FEES: INTENTIONALLY DELETED 

39. PROCUREMENT ETHICS:  Contractor understands that giving or offering to give any compensation, gratuity, contribution, loan, 

reward, or any promise thereof to any person acting as a procurement officer on behalf of the State of Utah, or to any person in any 
official capacity participating in the procurement of supplies, services, construction, or insurance, whether it is given for their own 
use or for the use or benefit of any other person or organization, will subject the Contractor to criminal prosecution. 

40. DISPUTE RESOLUTION: INTENTIONALLY DELETED. 

41. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE: In the event of any conflict in the terms and conditions in this Contract, the order of precedence is as 

follows: (i) this Attachment A; (ii) Contract Signature Page(s); (iii) the State of Utah’s additional terms and conditions, if any; (iv) any 
other attachment listed on the Contract Signature Page(s); and (v) Contractor’s terms and conditions attached to this Contract, if 
any. Any provision attempting to limit the liability of Contractor or to limit the rights of DHS or the State of Utah must be in writing 
and attached to this Contract or it is rendered null and void. 

42. SURVIVAL OF TERMS: Termination or expiration of this Contract does not extinguish or prejudice DHS’s right to enforce this 

Contract with respect to any default of this Contract or defect in the Services that has not been cured.   

43. SEVERABILITY:  The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision, term, or condition of this Contract does not affect the validity or 

enforceability of any other provision, term, or condition of this Contract, which will remain in full force and effect. 

44. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes any and all other 

prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings between the parties, whether oral or written.       

45. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND MONITORING OF PERFORMANCE: DHS shall have immediate access to all records relating to 

this Contract, and Contractor shall not limit or interfere with DHS' access rights.  The parties agree that DHS has the right to 
monitor Contractor's performance pursuant to this Contract.  Monitoring of Contractor's performance is at the complete discretion of 
DHS.  Performance monitoring may include both announced and unannounced visits.  The Contractor shall allow independent 
auditors State and federal auditors or contract reviewers to have access to any records related to this Contract, including all 
personnel, training, client, treatment and financial records (such as accounting records and supporting documentation) for audit 
review and inspection. 

46. DEFICIT REDUCTION ACT - MEDICAID FRAUD AND ABUSE:  The Contractor shall meet requirements for Medicaid-specific 

Federal Assurances, Section 6032 of the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 (Employee Education About False Claims Recovery).  The 

Contractor shall educate its employees and  agents about: 

a. The False Claims Act, 31 United States Code §§3729–3733; 

b. Administrative Remedies For False Claims and Statements, 31 United States Code §§3801–3812; 

c. The Utah False Claims Act, Utah Code § 26-20-1, et seq.;  

d. The Utah Protection of Public Employees Act, Utah Code § 67-21-1, et seq.; 

e. Policies and procedures for detecting and preventing fraud, waste, and abuse; 

f. How to report suspected fraud, waste and abuse of Medicaid funds;  

g. The whistleblower protections afforded employees that report suspected fraud, waste, and abuse of Medicaid funds in good 

faith; and 

h. The penalties for filing false or fraudulent claims for Medicaid payment.  

If the Contractor maintains an employee handbook, the Contractor shall include the information described above and its policies 
and procedures for detecting and preventing Medicaid fraud, waste and abuse, in its employee handbook.  Additional information is 
available on DHS website. 

47. COMPLIANCE WITH DHS' PROVIDER CODE OF CONDUCT:  Contractor shall follow and enforce DHS' Provider Code of 

Conduct.  DHS Provider Code of Conduct may be found on DHS Bureau of Contract Management website. 

a. Before allowing any employee or volunteer to work with clients under this Contract, the Contractor shall also comply with the 
following requirements: 

 (1) The Contractor shall provide a current copy of the Code of Conduct to each employee or volunteer currently working for 
the Contractor and to any new employees or volunteers; and 

 (2) The Contractor shall retain in each employee or volunteer's file a signed and dated statement in which that person 

certifies that he or she has read and understood the Code of Conduct and will comply with it. 

b. As used in this Paragraph, "volunteer" means a person who: 

(1) donates services to the Contractor without pay or other compensation, except for expenses incurred (such as meals and 
other travel costs); and  

(2) is a board member, officer, or other person who is substantially involved in the Contractor's decision-making processes, 
or is a person who has direct unsupervised contact with DHS Clients. 

48. OWNERSHIP OF CLIENT RECORDS:  The State retains ownership of all client records created or maintained by Contractor in 

connection with the services provided under this Contract and all such records must remain at the State facility or location where 
Contract services are provided, unless otherwise required by law.  For records related to youth offenders, the Contractor shall 
comply with Utah Code 62A-7-108.5. 

166

Item 16.



49. PROTECTING THE CONFIDENTIALITY OF CLIENT RECORDS:  Client records are confidential.  The Contractor shall restrict 

access to client records in accordance with State and federal laws.  Client records include but are not limited to hard copy records, 
electronic data, audio and video tapes, digital files, photographs, scans, and other images.  The Contractor shall, at a minimum, 
maintain all client records in locked rooms or cases or in password-protected electronic files.  If records are transported or 
contained on any electronic medium (including but not limited to computers, tablets, smart phones, zip-drives, etc.) the medium 
must be password protected.  The Contractor shall not use or disclose any client information except as specifically provided by this 
Contract, or as required by law.  The Contractor's representatives shall have access only to those portions of the records directly 
related to their work assignments. 

50. LOSS OR DISCLOSURE OF CLIENT RECORDS OR INFORMATION:  The Contractor shall have and comply with policies and 

procedures to protect confidential client records and information from loss, unauthorized disclosure, or data breaches (hereinafter 
collectively referred to as “loss”), and shall make those policies available to DHS.  The policies and procedures must address how 
client records and information will be maintained, transmitted, stored, and secured to protect against any loss.  The policies and 
procedures must also address the steps that will be taken in the event of any loss to notify, protect and reimburse those impacted 

by the loss against potential damages as well as to prevent future losses. 

The Contractor shall be responsible for any loss of client records or client information by it or its representatives and for any and all 
costs, remediation (including but not limited to credit monitoring), and damages associated with such loss.  In the event of a loss, in 
addition to any actions required by the Contractor’s policies and procedures, the Contractor shall notify the following individuals of 
the loss no later than 24 hours after it is discovered: 

a. DHS signatory on this Contract;  

b. DHS Risk Manager; and  

c. The client or the client’s parent(s) or legal guardian. 

51. ACCESS TO RECORDS PRODUCED BY THE CONTRACTOR:  The Contractor acknowledges that some of the records it 

produces in connection with the services or programs provided under this Contract, may be available to the public and to clients 
pursuant to GRAMA and other state and federal laws, including the federal "Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Mental 
Illness Act," 42 U.S.C. §§ 10801 et seq.  Therefore, upon receiving a request for records or information from any individual or entity 
other than the State, the Contractor shall immediately notify the State about the request and allow the State to respond directly to 
the records request. 

52. NO IMPOSITION OF FEES:  The Contractor shall not charge clients for any services provided pursuant to this Contract, except as 

expressly authorized in this Contract. 

53. HUMAN SUBJECTS RESEARCH:  The Contractor may not conduct any research involving human subjects or their private data if 

the subjects are employees of DHS or individuals receiving services (whether direct or contracted) from DHS, or where DHS has 
provided funding for a project that includes research in the contract, unless the Contractor has obtained prior written approval from 
DHS Institutional Review Board (IRB), and from any other federal or state agencies whose approval is required for research on 
human subjects.  Before conducting such research, the Contractor shall fully comply with any requirements or conditions, including 
requirements relating to informed consent, imposed by such IRB committees or agencies.  DHS Policy Manual, Policy No. 01-10, 
explains the policies and procedures for obtaining approval from DHS IRB.   

54. CONTRACTOR CONTACT INFORMATION:  Contractor shall ensure that DHS has accurate contact information for Contractor at 

all times throughout the duration of this Contract and throughout the duration of Contractor’s record retention responsibilities. 
Contractor shall immediately notify DHS of any changes to contact information. 

55. COMPLIANCE WITH UTAH 211 INFORMATION REQUESTS: The Contractor shall provide Utah 211 with information about the 

Contractor’s services for inclusion in the Utah 211 statewide information and referral system. Information must be provided in the 
form determined by Utah 211. 

56. RETENTION OF RECORDS:  The Contractor shall retain all records related to this Contract for at least the following periods of 

time:  

a.  Records Relating to Adult Clients:  The Contractor shall retain all adult client records (including records that support Title XIX 
reimbursements) for at least six years from the date of last service to the adult client.   

b. Records Relating to Child Clients:  The Contractor shall retain all records relating to clients under 18 years old (including 
records that support Title XIX reimbursements) for at least six years from the date of last service to the child client, or until the 
child client reaches the age of 22, whichever period is longest. 

c. Administrative Records:  The Contractor shall retain all administrative records relating to this Contract (including records that 
support Title XIX reimbursements) for at least six years after DHS makes the last payment on this Contract. 

d. Discontinued Operations:  If the Contractor discontinues its programs or ceases to provide services pursuant to this Contract, 
the Contractor shall protect DHS access rights by implementing one of the following options: 

 (1) Transfer the client records to a successor agency or entity which has: 

(a)  entered into a contract with DHS to provide such services formerly provided by the Contractor; and 

(b)  agreed to provide DHS with the same access to the records as required under the Contractor's contract with DHS; 
or 

(2) Deliver the client records to an office within the Contractor's organization under an arrangement by which the Contractor 

authorizes DHS to have continuing immediate access to the records. 

(3) With the prior written consent of DHS, which may be withheld for any reason, deliver the client records to DHS. 

(4) Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records:  If the Contractor is bound by the requirements of 42 C.F.R. Part 2 and 
discontinues its alcohol or drug abuse program or ceases to provide its services pursuant to this Contract, the Contractor 167

Item 16.



shall comply with the following requirements before destroying the records of any patients served pursuant to this 
Contract: 

(a)  the Contractor shall notify DHS in writing at least 30 days before it discontinues its operations or ceases to provide 
its services; 

(b) upon request from DHS, the Contractor shall give each of its alcohol and drug abuse patients a consent form which 
meets the requirements of 42 C.F.R. § 2.31, and which authorizes the Contractor to transfer its patient records to 
DHS; and 

(c) upon obtaining signed consent forms from patients, the Contractor shall deliver the consenting patients’ records to 
DHS. 

e. Audits and Litigation:  The Contractor shall maintain all records related to any audits initiated by federal and state auditors or to 
any pending litigation until six years after all audits are completed or litigation is resolved, including any related appeals or the 
time for appeal has expired, or for six years from the date of termination of this Contract, whichever is longer. 

f. Method for Destruction of Client Records:  Client records which may be destroyed pursuant to this Contract shall be cross-
shredded or burned to protect client confidentiality.  In the case of electronic records, the Contractor shall use a technique of 
destroying the records that adequately prevents unauthorized persons from reading or accessing the records. 

57. BACKGROUND SCREENING:  The Contractor and any individuals associated with Contractor shall comply with the background 

screening requirements in Utah Code 62A-2-120 and Utah Administrative Code R501-14. 

 (Revision date: 10 December 2019) 
  

 

 

The State of Utah Department of Human Services is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  The department’s EEOP 

Utilization Report is available at hs.utah.gov/about.  

168

Item 16.



ATTACHMENT B: SCOPE OF WORK 

Description of service:  The Department of Human Services (“DHS”), Division of Aging and 

Adult Services (“DAAS”) is partnering with Utah Area Agencies on Aging (“AAA”), to  provide 

Meals on Wheels services (“MOW”) to individuals on the DHS Division of Services for People 

with Disabilities (“DSPD”) waiting list, using Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 

Act (“CARES”) funding. 

MOW delivers prepared meals to people in need. Many who qualify for DSPD services are at 

higher-risk of developing severe illness from COVID-19.  People who qualify for DSPD services 

may experience difficulty in obtaining and preparing food due to limiting exposure to the virus 

and limited incomes. DSPD and DAAS will partner to extend the existing program to people 

between the ages of 22 and 59 who are waiting for DSPD services. 

 

A.   Contractor Requirements  

After receiving the data set of people approved to receive MOW from DSPD, the 

 Contractor shall:  

1. Contact and coordinate with each person approved by DSPD to receive MOW. 

The coordination shall include ensuring: 

a. Each person receives meals that are in compliance with any dietary needs 

and restrictions the person may have as disclosed by the person during the 

Contractor’s contact with the person, 

b. Each person receives a meal on each day MOW is available, unless the 

person requests not to receive a meal on a specific day,  

c. Each person is provided with information explaining their responsibility 

on how to receive MOW, and 

d. The MOW delivery address provided by DSPD is correct. 

2. Contact DSPD with any issues preventing timely MOW start date for any person.  

  If it takes longer than two weeks from receiving the data set of approved people to 

  get a person set up to receive MOW it will be consider untimely. 

 

B. Limitation 

 

  The Contractor shall NOT provide MOW to any person after December 30, 2020. 

 

C.  Billing Requirements 

  

 The Contractor’s billing period is monthly.  The Contractor shall: 

 

1. Submit a monthly invoice with supporting documentation for authorized 

MOW by the 15th day of each month for the previous month’s services. The 

169

Item 16.



monthly invoice and supporting documentation must be submitted via email to 

Cheryl Sharp cherylsharp@utah.gov    

 

a. The monthly invoice must include:  

 

1) Contractor’s name, 

2) Month and year the services were rendered, and 

3) Total cost of meals provided. 

 

b. The supporting documentation must be on a separate list accompanying 

the monthly invoice and must include: 

 

   1) Contractor’s name, 

   2) Month and year the services were rendered,  

   3) Name of each person who received Meals on Wheels services, 

4) The number of meals provided, and 

5) Cost per meal. 

 

 

 

170

Item 16.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 20, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer 

TITLE: Consideration and Approval of the lease agreement with Horsepower Fleet 

Leasing, LLC Master Lease Agreement 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

SUMMARY 

For several years, San Juan County has leased fleet vehicles from Horsepower Fleet Leasing, LLC. 

Horsepower Fleet is a State Contracted Vendor which allows us to lease without obtaining bid through 

other companies. A majority of the vehicles leased are the Sheriff Deputy Vehicles. During this last 

year, I had explored other lease options with another State vendor as well as Enterprise Rental who also 

has a lease program. Overall, Horsepower Fleet Leasing offered the best lease rates to the County.  

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

We have used this company since 2017 

FISCAL IMPACT 

2019-(5) $18,500, 2018-(6) $21,000 

171

Item 17.



172

Item 17.



173

Item 17.



174

Item 17.



175

Item 17.



176

Item 17.



177

Item 17.



178

Item 17.



179

Item 17.



180

Item 17.



181

Item 17.



182

Item 17.



183

Item 17.



184

Item 17.



185

Item 17.



Lessee VIN Make Year Model
San Juan County 1FTEW1EP4LKD24416 Ford 2020 F150
San Juan County 1FM5K8HC2LGB29023 Ford 2020 Explorer
San Juan County 1GNSKJKC1LR205110 Chevrolet 2020 Suburban
San Juan County 1FTEW1E43LKD18337 Ford 2020 F150
San Juan County 1FTEW1E49LKD39466 Ford 2020 F150
San Juan County 1GNSKCKJ5LR220574 Chevrolet 2020 Tahoe
San Juan County 1FT8W3BT4LEC30724 Ford 2020 F350
San Juan County 1FT7W2BT5KEG52425 Ford 2019 F250
San Juan County 1FT7W2BT4KEG52416 Ford 2019 F250
San Juan County 1FT7W2BT1KEG52406 Ford 2019 F250
San Juan County 1FT7W2BT2KEF81023 Ford 2019 F250
San Juan County 1FM5K8GT4KGA41235 Ford 2019 Explorer
San Juan County 1FT8W3BTXLEE22178 Ford 2020 F350
San Juan County 3C63RRJL9KG642495 Ram 2019 3500

186

Item 17.



187

Item 18.



188

Item 19.



189

Item 20.



190

Item 21.


	Top
	1.	10-20-2020 Online Login Info
	10.20.2020 Commission Meeting Login

	2.	Approval of the October 6, 2020 Minutes
	October 6, 2020

	3.	10-20-2020 Check Registers
	20201014scan

	4.	Public Health Department - FY21 Violence and Injury Prevention Program
	Commission Agenda Item-template (VIPP)
	FY21 Violence and Injury Prevention Program contract

	5.	UHSO Rural Seat Belt 2021
	Commission Agenda Item-template (Seatbelt Safety)
	Rural MOA 2021 San Juan

	6.	Ambulance Radio Purchase CARES Act Funds
	ITEM-Staff-69640efa86b448eea0f1e3f5ad9420f5 (2)
	Scan San Juan County Quotes

	7.	San Juan County Drought Declaration Renewal
	Staff report for Commission Drought Declaration 10 20 2020
	Drought Briefing_101320
	drought declaration  2020 2

	8.	UDOT Federal Aid Agreement Contract McElmo Creek Bridge
	ITEM-Staff-69640efa86b448eea0f1e3f5ad9420f5 McElmo)2
	McElmo No Pass

	9.	UDOT Federal Aid Agreement Contract for Recapture Creek Bridge
	ITEM-Staff-69640efa86b448eea0f1e3f5ad9420f5 McElmo)
	Recapture No Pass

	11.	San Juan County Basic Emergency Operations Plan
	Staff report for Commission Basic EOP Plan 10 20 2020
	Draft EOP 2020

	12.	Aquatic Invasive Species (AIS) Program.
	FINAL commissioners letter

	13.	Letter of Support Goosenecks State Park International Dark Sky Designation
	10082020_StateParksLOS_Internation Dark Sky (Commission)
	2020-10-20 Commission Meeting Goosenecks Dark Sky

	14.	Lisbon Valley Mine Plan Operation Modification Letter
	StaffRptLisbonMineMod (1)
	BLMLisbonMinePlanEA

	15.	2020 Sheriff Annual Forest Service Contract
	ITEM-Staff-69640efa86b448eea0f1e3f5ad9420f5 (1)
	1331_001

	16.	San Juan County Aging Contract with Division of Services for People with Disabilities
	Staff report for Commission dspd contract 10 20 2020
	39539 San Juan County (UGE) A03225(1)

	17.	HorsePower Fleet Lease 2020
	ITEM-Staff-69640efa86b448eea0f1e3f5ad9420f5 (2)
	Blank MLA
	San Juan County Current VINs

	18.	Deer Haven Park Subdivision Amendment 6, La Sal
	Deer Haven_9-8-2020 (1)

	19.	Double R Ranch Subdivision, Amending and vacating Lot 1 of the Dyke Subdivision, La Sal
	DOUBLE R RANCH (4)

	20.	Zufelt Subdivision, Lot 4 Amendment, Spanish Valley
	103-20 SUB PLAT (2)

	21.	San Juan Estates, Phase 3 Lot 33 Amendment 2, Spanish Valley
	130-20 SUB-Plat - San Juan County (1)

	Bottom

